Employee Benefits Guide for the Group Health and Welfare Benefits Plan for Employees of Envoy Air Inc. and Its Affiliates

Effective January 1, 2020

About This Guide

Envoy Air, Inc. (the "Company") provides you with a comprehensive benefits package designed to help you meet the health, life, accident, disability, and dependent care needs of you and your eligible family members. To help you make the most of those benefits, this Employee Benefits Guide (the "Guide" or "EBG") describes the provisions of the Group Health and Welfare Benefits Plan for Employees of Envoy Air Inc. and Its Affiliates (the "Plan") effective January 1, 2020.

This Guide provides a comprehensive overview of the benefits available under the Plan as well as limitations, exclusions, Deductible and Coinsurance requirements. A detailed list of benefit types provided under the Plan, along with contact information, can be found in the chapter "Reference Information." The provisions of this Guide apply to eligible employees on the United States payroll, Spouses, dependents, and surviving Spouses who elect coverage of the Company, Eagle Aviation Services, Inc., and Executive Airlines, Inc. (collectively, the "Affiliates"). The provisions of this Guide do not apply to employees of Executive Ground Services, Inc.

This Guide serves as the Summary Plan Description for the Plan. This Guide provides a comprehensive overview of the benefits available under the Plan as well as limitations, exclusions, Deductible and Coinsurance requirements. A detailed list of benefit types provided under the Plan, along with contact information, can be found in the chapter "Benefits under the Plan and Contact Information."

The terms and conditions of the Plan are set forth in this Guide, the formal Plan Document, and insurance policies/evidence of coverage related to the benefits under the Plan. Together, these documents are incorporated by reference into the formal Plan Document and constitute the written instruments under which the Plan is established and maintained. An amendment to one of these documents constitutes an amendment to the Plan. In our efforts to provide you with full multi-media access to benefits information, the Company has created an online version of this Guide. A paper version of this Guide will be available to you at no charge, upon request.

Unless otherwise noted, if there is a conflict between a specific provision under the Plan Document and an insurance policy/evidence of coverage, or this Guide, the Plan Document controls. If the Plan Document is silent, then the Guide controls, except where the Guide refers to an insurance policy/evidence of coverage. If both the Plan Document and Guide are silent, the terms of the applicable insurance policy/evidence of coverage controls, except where this Guide refers to an insurance policy/evidence of coverage. If both the Plan Document and this Guide are silent, the terms of the applicable insurance policy/evidence of coverage controls. However, with respect to fully insured benefits, the terms of the certificate of insurance or insurance policy/evidence of coverage control when describing specific benefits that are covered or insurance-related terms. If there is any discrepancy between the online version and this Guide, then the benefits outlined in this Guide, plus the official notices of changes to the Plan, will govern. See the chapter "Reference Information" to determine whether a particular benefit is self-funded by the Company or fully insured by the insurer. The Company, or its authorized delegate, reserves the right to modify, amend or terminate any of the Plans, any program described in this Guide, or any part thereof, at its sole discretion, except as otherwise specified in the collective bargaining agreements. You will be notified of any changes that affect your benefits, as required by federal law. In the event of a conflict between the Plan's provisions contained in this Guide and the provisions contained in any applicable

collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement shall govern in all cases with respect to employees covered by such agreement.

The Company reserves the right to modify, amend or terminate the Plan, any of the Plan's benefits, any program described in this Guide, or any part thereof, at its sole discretion. You will be notified of any changes that affect your benefits, as required by federal law.

Only the Company or the Envoy Benefits Administration Committee ("EBAC") is authorized to change the Plan. From time to time, you may receive updated information concerning changes to the Plan. Neither this Guide nor updated materials are contracts or assurances of compensation, continued employment, or benefits of any kind.

Contents

Benefits at a Glance	7
General Eligibility	9
Dependent Eligibility	
Determining a Child's Eligibility	
Proof of Dependent Eligibility	
Determining a Spouse or Common Law Spouse's Eligibility	17
Other Information	
How to Enroll	22
Coverage Levels	23
When Coverage Begins	
Paying for Coverage	<u>23</u>
Coverage Under the Plan While on a Family and Medical Leave, Unpaid Sick	
Military Leave	<u>26</u>
Table of Life Events and Permitted Benefit Changes	<u></u>
Life Event Considerations	<u></u>
Benefit Coverage Affected by Life Events	<u>46</u>
Benefit Coverage Not Affected by Life Events	
Medical Benefits Overview	<u>48</u>
Key Features of the Medical Benefit Options	
Medical Benefit Options Comparison	<u>53</u>
Prior Authorization and Pre-Determination for Certain Medical Services	
Pre-Authorization	
Covered Expenses	<u></u>
Mental Health and Chemical Dependency Benefits	<u>100</u>
Prescription Drug Benefits	100
Mail Service Prescription Drug Option	<u>105</u>
Excluded Expenses.	
Filing Claims	
Claims Filing Deadline	112
Employee Assistance Program (EAP)	
The Legal Plan Benefit	
Critical Illness Insurance	
Dental Benefits	123
How the Dental Benefit Option Works	
Covered Expenses	
Excluded Expenses.	
Filing Claims	
Additional Rules.	
Vision Benefits	
EyeMed Vision Insurance PlanGet any available frame*, any brand — no matter the original retail cos	t at CO aut of packet avange
	100
I :fo Inguyano Danofita	
Life Insurance Benefits	
Employee Term Life Insurance	131
Accident Insurance Benefit	138
Covered Losses and Accident Benefits	
Terrorism and Hostile Act AD&D Insurance for Pilots and Flight Attendants.	
Exclusions	
Exclusions Filing a Claim	
Conversion Rights	
Insurance Policy	147

	Other Accident Insurance	<u> 147</u>
Disab	pility Benefits	158
	Optional Short Term Disability Insurance	158
	Long Term Disability Insurance	162
Healt	th Care FSA and Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account	171
	Enrolling in a Flexible Spending Account	172
	How the Health Care FSA and the Limited Purpose FSA Work	172
	Who Is Covered	173
	Eligible Expenses for the Health Care Flexible Spending Account	173
	Excluded Expenses from your Health Care Flexible Spending Account	175
	Eligible Expenses for the Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account	176
	Receiving Reimbursement for your Health Care Flexible Spending Account	176
	Receiving Reimbursement for your Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account	178
	2-1/2 Month Grace Period of Unused HCFSA and LPFSA Funds	178
	Continuation of Coverage	179
Depe	ndent Day Care FSA	180
	Enrolling in the DDFSA	180
	How the DDFSA Works	180
	Conditions for Deposit and Maximum Allowable Deposit Amounts	181
	Who Is Covered	181
	DDFSA Guidelines	182
	Eligible Expenses	182
	Receiving Reimbursement	182
	Filing Claims	183
	2-1/2 Month Grace Period of Unused DDFSA Funds	184
Healt	th Savings Account	185
<u>Addi</u>	tional Health Benefit Rules	<u> 189</u>
	Qualified Medical Child Support Order	189
	Procedures Upon Receipt of Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or State Agency Notice	
	Procedures Upon Final Determination	<u> 192</u>
	Coordination of Benefits	<u> 192</u>
	Coordination with Medicare	
	<u>Continuation of Coverage — COBRA Continuation</u>	<u> 195</u>
		<u> 196</u>
	Enrolling in COBRA Continuation of Coverage	
	Processing Life Events After COBRA Continuation of Coverage Is in Effect	
	Paying for or Discontinuing COBRA Continuation of Coverage	
	Other Special Rules	
	Surviving Spouses of Active Employees	<u> 200</u>
<u>Plan</u>	Administration	<u> 201</u>
	Plan Information	<u> 201</u>
	Administrative Information	<u>202</u>
	Plan Amendments.	<u> 202</u>
	Plan Funding	<u> 203</u>
		203
		204
	Assignment of Benefits	206
	Time Frame for Initial Claim Determination	<u> 206</u>
	Appealing a Denial	<u> 212</u>
	Compliance with Privacy Regulations	<u> 222</u>
	Your Rights Under ERISA	<u> 226</u>
Refer		228
	Contact Information	228
	Glossary	233
	Anghang	111

Benefits at a Glance

The Plan will include the following benefits for 2020:

MEDICAL BENEFIT				
PPO 750 Option	Self-funded	BCBS	Company and Employee Contributions, and General Assets of the Company	
PPO 1500 Option	Self-funded	BCBS	Company and Employee Contributions, and General Assets of the Company	
PPO 2500 Option	Self-funded	BCBS	Company and Employee Contributions, and General Assets of the Company	
Out of Area Option	Self-funded	BCBS	Company and Employee Contributions, and General Assets of the Company	
DENTAL BENEFIT	Self-funded	MetLife	Company and Employee Contributions, and General Assets of the Company	
VISION BENEFIT	VISION BENEFIT			
Vision Insurance	Insured	EyeMed	Employee Contributions	
LIFE INSURANCE				
Employee Basic Life*	Insured	The Hartford	Company-Paid Premiums	
Employee Voluntary Life	Insured	The Hartford	Employee-Paid Premiums	
Spouse Life	Insured	The Hartford	Employee-Paid Premiums	
Child Life	Insured	The Hartford	Employee-Paid Premiums	
AD&D INSURANCE				
Basic AD&D*	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Company-Paid Premiums	
Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance ("VPAI")	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Employee-Paid Premiums	
Management Personal Accident Insurance ("MPAI")	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Company-Paid Premiums	
Special Purpose	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Company-Paid Premiums	
Special Risk	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Company-Paid Premiums	
Terrorism and Hostile Act Accident Insurance	Insured	LINA (Cigna)	Company-Paid Premiums	

DISABILITY INSURANCE			
Optional Short Term Disability	Insured	The Hartford	Employee-Paid Premiums
Long Term Disability	Insured	The Hartford	Employee-Paid Premiums
FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACC	COUNTS (FSAs)		
Health Care FSA	Self-funded	Alight Solutions	Employee-Paid Contributions
Dependent Day Care FSA	Self-funded	Alight Solutions	Employee-Paid Contributions
HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT (HSA)**	Self-funded	OptumBank	Employee-Paid Contributions
CRITICAL ILLNESS (Not subject to ERISA)	Insured	AllState	Employee-Paid Premiums
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM	Self-Funded	Espyr	General Assets of the Company
LEGAL SERVICES (Not subject to ERISA)	Insured	MetLife	Employee Contributions

^{*}You must be enrolled in a Company-sponsored Medical Benefit Option to be eligible for Basic Life insurance and Basic AD&D insurance.

^{**} This benefit is not sponsored by the Company.

General Eligibility

Eligible Employees

As a Regular Employee on the U. S. payroll of the Company or an Affiliate, you are eligible for Company subsidized health benefits when you have completed one month of employment at the Company. Please note that special rules apply for Fleet Service Clerks, Agents, and Flight Attendants that are described below.

If you enroll by the enrollment deadline, your elected coverage is retroactive to the date that is one month after the first day of your employment and your paycheck is adjusted as necessary. Coverage under the Plan will not begin until: (i) you have reported to your first day of work, and (ii) except as otherwise noted, you are "actively-at-work." Unless otherwise provided in the applicable insurance policy/evidence of coverage, "actively-at-work" means you are at work and performing all of the regular duties of your job.

The "actively-at-work" requirement does not apply to the Medical Benefit Options if the reason you are not actively-at-work is due to a health condition; in that event, your coverage under the Medical Benefit Option is effective after one month of seniority as long as you have reported to your first day of work.

If you do not enroll for coverage when you are first eligible for benefits, you will receive no coverage. Your next opportunity to enroll will be during the annual open enrollment period for the following year or, if earlier, the date you experience a qualifying Life Event.

For benefits requiring proof of good health, coverage becomes effective only after coverage is approved and your first contributions are paid by you through payroll deductions.

Shortly following the start of employment at the Company, you will be able to enroll online through the employee portal (my.envoyair.com) or call the Benefits Service Center to enroll over the phone at 844-843-6869. For more information about enrollment, see *General Enrollment*.

Hours Worked Requirement for Fleet Service Clerks and/or Agents

Newly Hired Employees

Effective January 1, 2015, newly hired employees will be eligible to enroll in benefits after one month of employment and will continue to be eligible for benefits through the end of the year in which the first anniversary of their start date occurs. Thereafter, if they were hired on or before October 3rd, they will be treated as "ongoing employees" and their eligibility and contribution rates will be determined based on their Eligible Hours during the period from October 3rd to October 2nd of the preceding year (the "Look Back Period"). If they were hired after October 3rd, they will remain eligible for coverage through the end of the calendar year in which the second anniversary of their state date occurs, and their rate will be based on their prorated hours over the Look Back Period.

For example, a Fleet Service Clerk or Agent hired on March 3, 2019 will be eligible for benefits on April 3, 2019 and will remain eligible through December 31, 2020. The annual analysis of Eligible Hours performed prior to the annual enrollment occurring in fall 2019 will review the Eligible Hours

credited from October 3, 2019 through October 2, 2020 to determine eligibility for coverage during 2021.

With respect to contribution rates for newly hired employees, the following rules apply:

- From the date of hire through the end of that calendar year, employees will pay the rate according to their hire classification (e.g., Part-time or Full-time).
- For the calendar year following the date of hire, employees who are hired after July 3rd (i.e., less than 90 days before the end of the Look Back Period) will continue to pay the contribution rate according to their hire classification.
- For the calendar year following the date of hire, employees who are hired on or before July 3rd (i.e., 90 days or more before the Look Back Period) will have their Eligible Hours prorated to determine the contribution rate for the next year.
- For the second calendar year following the date of hire, employees who are hired after October 3rd will have their Eligible Hours prorated to determine the contribution rate.

For example, a Fleet Service Clerk or Agent hired on August 3, 2019 and classified as part-time will pay the part-time employee contribution rate for 2019 and 2020. In contrast, a Fleet Service Clerk or Agent hired on March 3, 2019 and classified as part-time will pay the part-time employee contribution rate for 2019, and the rate for 2020 will be determined based on whether he/she was full-time or part-time based on a prorated number of hours worked from March 3, 2019 through October 2, 2019.

"Eligible Hours" shall include all paid work hours, paid sick, paid vacation, Union Business Paid, Union Business Comp, paid Injury on Duty leave, paid/unpaid Family Medical Leave of Absence (FMLA), and other types of leaves of absence as determined by the Company in its sole discretion. Unpaid time off from work is not included in the calculation of "paid hours" for purposes of determining eligibility, except as noted above and in the paragraph below entitled "Break in Service for Agents, Fleet Service Clerks, and Flight Attendants."

Ongoing Employees

Effective with the Plan Year beginning January 1, 2014, for calendar years beginning after the first anniversary of their start date (or, for Fleet Service Clerks and Agents hired after October 3rd, the second anniversary of their start date), after the second anniversary of their start date, Fleet Service Clerks and Agents must have worked 800 or more Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period to be eligible for coverage under the Plan. For example, the annual analysis of Eligible Hours performed prior to the annual enrollment occurring in fall 2019 (for the 2020 calendar year) will review the Eligible Hours credited from October 3, 2018 through October 2, 2019. Any Fleet Service Clerk or Agent who meets the appropriate Eligible Hours requirement during the Look Back Period will be eligible to enroll in benefits during the annual enrollment period for coverage during 2020.

Fleet Service Clerks and Agents who worked between 800 and 1,559 Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period will be eligible for Company-subsidized health benefits at the part-time employee contribution rate. Fleet Service Clerks and Agents who worked 1,560 or more Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period will be eligible for Company-subsidized health benefits at the full-time employee contribution rate.

Hours Worked Requirement for Flight Attendants

Newly Hired Employees

Newly hired employees are eligible to enroll in benefits after one month of employment and will continue to be eligible for benefits through the end of the year in which the first anniversary of their start date occurs. Thereafter, if they were hired on or before October 3rd, they will be treated as "ongoing employees" and their eligibility and contribution rates will be determined based on their Flight Attendant Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period. If they were hired after October 3rd, they will remain eligible for coverage through the end of the calendar year in which the second anniversary of their start date occurs, and their rate will be based on their prorated hours over the Look Back Period.

For example, a Flight Attendant hired on March 3, 2019 will be eligible for benefits on April 3, 2019 and will remain eligible through December 31, 2020. The annual analysis of Flight Attendant Eligible Hours performed prior to the annual enrollment occurring in fall 2020 will review the Flight Attendant Eligible Hours credited from October 3, 2019 through October 2, 2020 to determine eligibility for coverage during 2021.

With respect to contribution rates for newly hired employees, the following rules apply:

- From the date of hire through the end of that calendar year, employees will pay the rate according to their hire classification.
- For the calendar year following the date of hire, employees who are hired after July 3rd (i.e., less than 90 days before the end of the Look Back Period) will continue to pay the rate according to their hire classification for that year.
- For the year following the date of hire, employees who are hired on or before July 3rd (i.e., 90 days or more before the end of the Look Back Period) will have their Flight Attendant Eligible Hours prorated to determine the contribution rate for the next year.
- For the second calendar year following the date of hire, employees who are hired after October 3rd will have their Eligible Hours prorated to determine the contribution rate.

For example, a Flight Attendant hired on August 3, 2019 and classified as part-time will pay the part-time employee contribution rate for 2019 and 2020. In contrast, a Flight Attendant hired on March 3, 2019 and classified as part-time will pay the part-time employee contribution rate for 2019, and the rate for 2020 will be determined based on the prorated number of Flight Attendant Eligible Hours credited from March 3, 2019 through October 2, 2019. "Flight Attendant Eligible Hours" are outlined in the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Ongoing Employees

Effective with the Plan Year beginning January 1, 2014, for calendar years beginning after the second anniversary of their start date, (or, for Flight Attendants hired after October 3, the second anniversary of their start date), Flight Attendants that worked between 350 and 539 Flight Attendant Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period, prorated in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement, will be eligible for Company-subsidized health benefits at the part-time employee contribution rate. Flight Attendants who worked 540 or more Flight Attendant Eligible Hours during the Look Back Period will be eligible for Company-subsidized health benefits at the full-time employee contribution rate.

For example, the annual analysis of Flight Attendant Eligible Hours performed prior to the annual enrollment occurring in fall 2020 (for the 2021 calendar year) will review the Flight Attendant Eligible Hours credited from October 3, 2019 through October 2, 2020. Any Flight Attendant who meets the appropriate Flight Attendant Eligible Hours requirement during the Look Back Period will be eligible to enroll in benefits during the annual enrollment period for coverage during 2021.

Break in Service for Agents, Fleet Service Clerks, and Flight Attendants

If you terminate employment but are rehired, you will be treated as a new hire. However, if you are rehired within 13 weeks of your termination date, you will not be subject to the one month waiting period.

Eligibility After Age 65

As a Regular Employee, your medical coverage continues for you and your covered dependents after you reach age 65 (or your Spouse reaches age 65), unless you (or your Spouse) opt out of the Plan.

If you elect Medicare as your only coverage, your Company-sponsored medical coverage will terminate, including coverage for your dependents. If your Spouse elects Medicare as his or her only coverage, your Spouse's Company-sponsored coverage will terminate.

Ineligibility

The following individuals are ineligible for Plan participation:

- Intern:
- A leased employee, as defined in section 414(n) of the Internal Revenue Code;
- Any person (regardless of how such person is characterized, for wage withholding purposes or any other purpose, by the Internal Revenue Service, or any other agency, court, authority, individual or entity) who is classified, in the sole and absolute discretion of the Company as a temporary worker; this term includes any of the following former classifications:
 - Temporary employee. If a temporary employee becomes a Regular Employee, he/she must meet all of the other requirements to participate in the Plan;
 - Provisional employee:
 - Associate employee;
- An independent contractor;
- Employees of Executive Ground Services, Inc.; or
- Any person:
 - who is not on the Company's salaried or hourly employee payroll (the determination of which shall be made by the Company in its sole and absolute discretion);

- o who has agreed in writing that he or she is not an employee or is not otherwise eligible to participate;
- who tells the Company he/she is an independent contractor, or is employed by another company while providing services to the Company, even if the worker is, or may be reclassified at a later date as, an employee of the Company by the courts, the IRS, or the DOL; or
- o whose compensation is reported to the Internal Revenue Service on a form other than a Form W-2, regardless of whether such person was treated as an employee for federal income tax purposes.

Dependent Eligibility

Dependent eligibility requirements are different depending on the benefit coverage you elect.

Medical Coverage

An eligible dependent is an individual who lives in the United States, Puerto Rico, or U.S. Virgin Islands, or who accompanies an employee on a Company assignment outside the U.S. and is related to the employee in one of the following ways:

- Spouse.
- Child under age 26. See "Determining a Child's Eligibility" below for who qualifies as a "child."
 - o Step-children.
 - o Legally adopted children.
 - Child for whom you are required to provide coverage under a Qualified Medical Child Support Order ("QMCSO") that is issued by the court or a state agency.
- Incapacitated child age 26 or over who maintains legal residence with you and is wholly dependent upon you for maintenance and support.

Coverage for an Incapacitated Child – Medical Coverage Only

An incapacitated child age 26 or older is eligible for continuation of coverage if all of the following criteria are met:

- The child was already continuously covered as your dependent under this Plan before reaching age 26.
- The child is mentally or physically incapable of self-support.
- You file a Statement of Eligibility for Incapacitated Child and your Network/claims administrator approves the application.
 - For Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas: Within 45 days of the date coverage would otherwise end.
- The child continues to meet the criteria for dependent coverage under this Plan.
- You provide additional medical proof of incapacity as may be required by your
 Network/claims administrator from time to time. Coverage will be terminated and cannot be

reinstated if you cannot provide proof or if your Network/claims administrator determines the child is no longer incapacitated. If you elect to drop coverage for your child, you may not later reinstate it.

• And either the child maintains legal residence with you and is wholly dependent on you for maintenance and support, or you are required to provide coverage under a QMCSO that is issued by the court or a state agency.

Dental and Vision Coverage

An eligible dependent is an individual (other than the employee covered by the Plan) who lives in the United States, Puerto Rico, or U.S. Virgin Islands, or who accompanies an employee on a Company assignment outside the U.S. and is related to the employee in one of the following ways:

- Spouse.
- Unmarried "child" under age 23 who maintains legal residence with you. See "<u>Determining a Child's Eligibility</u>" below for who qualifies as a "child."
- Stepchild, under the age 23, if the child lives with you, and you (the employee) either jointly or individually claim the stepchild as a dependent on your federal income tax return
- Child, under age 23, for whom you are required to provide coverage under a QMCSO that is issued by the court or a state agency.

Child Life Insurance and Child Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance

An eligible dependent is an individual (other than the employee covered by the Plan) who lives in the United States, Puerto Rico, or U.S. Virgin Islands, or who accompanies an employee on a Company assignment outside the U.S. Child means the following:

- Incapacitated child age 19 or over who maintains legal residence with you and is wholly dependent upon you for maintenance and support.
- Your natural child, adopted child (including a child from the date of placement with the adopting parents until the legal adoption) or stepchild who is:
 - o under age 19, unmarried, and supported by you; or
 - o under age 23 and:
 - a full-time student at an accredited school, college or university that is licensed in the jurisdiction where it is located;
 - unmarried;
 - supported by you; and
 - not employed on a full-time basis.

The term does not include any person who:

- Is in the military of any country or subdivision of any country; or
- Is insured under the Group Policy as an employee.

For Texas residents, Child means the following for Life Insurance:

• Your natural child, adopted child or stepchild who is under age 25 and unmarried.

The term also includes:

Your grandchild who is under age 25, unmarried and who was able to be claimed by you as
a dependent for Federal Income Tax purposes at the time You applied for Life Insurance.

A child will be considered your adopted child during the period you are party to a suit in which you are seeking the adoption of the child.

The term does not include any person who:

- is in the military of any country or subdivision of any country; or
- is insured under the Group Policy as an employee.

Spouse Life Insurance and Spouse Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance

An eligible dependent is an individual (other than the employee covered by the Plan) who lives in the United States, Puerto Rico, or U.S. Virgin Islands, or who accompanies an employee on a Company assignment outside the U.S. and is the employee's Spouse.

Determining a Child's Eligibility

For the purpose of determining eligibility, "child" includes your:

- Natural child
- Legally adopted child
- Stepchild
- Child for whom you are required to provide coverage under a QMCSO that is issued by the court or a National Medical Support Notice issued by a state agency (see "Procedures upon Receipt of Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or State Agency Notice" in the Additional Health Benefit Rules section).
- Special Dependent, if you meet all of the following requirements:
 - You must have legal custody and legal guardianship of the child.
 - The child must maintain legal residence with you and be wholly dependent on you for maintenance and support
 - You must submit a Special Dependent Statement, available under Health & Welfare forms on the benefits page on my.envoyair.com, to the Benefits Service Center and the Benefits Service Center must approve the form. (Complete and return the form to the Benefits Service Center, along with copies of the official court documents awarding you custodianship or guardianship of the child.) You must receive confirmation from the Benefits Service Center notifying you of its determination.
 - The Benefits Service Center will send you a letter notifying you of its findings. If your request is approved, the notification letter will include an approval date. If you submit your request within 30 days of the date that legal guardianship or legal custodianship is awarded by the court, coverage for the child is effective as of that

date, pending approval by the Benefits Service Center. If you submit the request after the 30-day time frame, the child will not be added to your coverage.

Parents and Grandchildren

Neither your parents nor grandchildren are eligible as dependents, regardless of whether they live with you or receive maintenance or support from you (unless you are the grandchild's legal guardian). However, you may be eligible for reimbursement of their eligible expenses under the Health Care Limited Purpose and Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Accounts (see the <u>Health Care FSA and Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account</u> and the <u>Dependent Day Care FSA</u> sections) if you claim your parent or grandchild as a dependent on your federal income tax return.

Dependents of Deceased Employees

If you have elected medical coverage for your Spouse and Children and you die as an active employee, your dependents' medical coverage may continue for 90 days at no contribution cost by electing COBRA. Your covered dependents are also eligible to continue medical coverage and certain other benefit options for up to 36 months under COBRA (see "Continuation of Coverage – COBRA Continuation" in the *Additional Health Benefit Rules* section) at the full COBRA rate. This 90 days of coverage is part of the 36 months of COBRA coverage.

Your covered dependents can elect to continue Dental Benefits and certain other benefits (if applicable) under COBRA at the full COBRA rate, if they had Dental Benefits at the time of your death. To continue dental coverage, your dependents must pay contributions effective from the day of your death.

Proof of Dependent Eligibility

As a reminder, the Company and its Affiliates reserve the right to request documented proof of dependent eligibility for benefits at any time. If you do not provide documented proof when requested, or if any of the information you provide is not true and correct, your actions will be considered a violation of the <u>Rules of Conduct</u>, available on my.envoyair.com, and may result in termination of employment, benefit or plan coverage termination, and recovery of any overpaid benefits.

Whether you:

- enroll dependents when you are first eligible to enroll in benefits, or
- enroll new dependents at annual enrollments, or
- enroll new dependents as the result of a Life Event,

you must submit to the Benefits Service Center proof of the dependents' eligibility within 30 days of the date you request their enrollment. Proof that dependents you enroll qualify as your dependents includes (but is not limited to) official government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, marriage certificates, etc. The proof of eligibility requirements are listed on my.envoyair.com, under

"Benefits" in the Resources site, or you may contact the Benefits Service Center for proof of eligibility requirements (see "Contact Information" in the *Reference Information* section).

IMPORTANT: Coverage for your dependents will not be in place until you have timely requested their enrollment and provided satisfactory proof of eligibility. Coverage will be retroactive to the date of the event (e.g., marriage, birth, new hire date) and your paycheck is adjusted as necessary.

Determining a Spouse or Common Law Spouse's Eligibility

Unless otherwise noted, throughout this Guide, the term "Spouse" is used to refer to your legally married Spouse (of the same or opposite sex) as well as your eligible Common Law Spouse.

Please see the definitions below of Spouse and Common Law Spouse to understand eligibility requirements for Spouse coverage under the Plan.

- **Spouse.** Your Spouse means the lawful wife or husband of an employee (of the same or opposite sex), provided such marriage has been licensed by a governmental authority. If you and your Spouse were married outside the United States or its territories and protectorates, your marriage must be legally documented via marriage certificate from the state or country government that permitted and certified your marriage. You and your Spouse must not be married to, or have a domestic partner, common law, or other Spouse-like relationship with any person(s) at the same time you are married to each other.
- Common Law Spouse. Common law Spouses are eligible for enrollment in Plan benefits only if your common law marriage is recognized and deemed legal (certified) by the individual state where you reside, and only if you and your Spouse have fulfilled the state's requirements for common law marriage. To enroll your common law Spouse for benefits, you must complete and return a Common-Law Marriage Recognition Request and provide proof of common law marriage, as specified on the form. You and your Common Law Spouse must not be married to, or have a domestic partner (DP), common law, other Spouse-like relationship with any other person(s) at the same time you are in a common law marriage to each other. Although criteria vary by state, the following guidelines usually apply:
 - o The couple cohabitates for a specified period of time established by the state.
 - o The persons recognize each other as husband and wife.
 - o The persons hold each other out publicly as husband and wife.

Special Rules that Apply to Employees Married to Other Employees

Employees Married to Other Employees

When two employees are married to each other, they are referred to as "Married Employees" for this section. Married Employees have the option of being covered as: (1) two single employees, each with their own employee coverage, or (2) under one employee's Medical, Dental, and/or Vision benefits as an employee and a dependent. Married employees may elect to be covered under one employee's benefits during Annual Enrollment or at the time of a qualified Life Event (if the

qualified Life Event allows such a change). If one employee decides to be covered under the other employee as a dependent, the employee covered as a dependent Spouse will not receive the company provided AD&D and Basic Life insurance, which is automatically provided to employees enrolled as employees in medical coverage.

Change in Spouse's employment: If one Spouse ends his or her employment with the Company, the Spouse who changed his or her employment is eligible for coverage as a dependent (if he or she waives coverage under the Company's health benefits). However if an employee is discharged for gross misconduct he or she cannot be covered as a dependent of the active employee.

Spouse not eligible for full benefits: During the one-month waiting period required to be eligible for benefits, the new employee may be covered as the Spouse of the active employee who already has benefits.

Spouse on leave of absence: For leaves such as a personal leave of absence, when Company-provided benefits terminate, a Spouse on a leave of absence may continue to purchase coverage as an employee on leave or elect to be covered as the dependent of the actively working Spouse, but not both.

The actively working Spouse's health coverage determines the health benefit coverage for all dependents. Because a leave of absence is a Life Event (see <u>Life Events</u>), the actively working Spouse may make changes to his or her other coverages.

The actively working Spouse may elect to:

- Add the Spouse on leave as a dependent
- Cover only eligible dependent children
- Cover both the Spouse and children.

If an employee elects to be covered as a dependent during a leave of absence, the following conditions apply:

- Optional coverages the person elected as an active employee end, unless payment for these coverages is continued while on leave
- Proof of good health may be required to re-enroll or increase optional coverages upon the employee's return to work.

Company-provided coverage (where the Company pays its share of the cost and the employee on leave pays his/her share) may continue for a period of time for employees on leave of absence, dependent upon receipt of your payment for the first twelve months of leave of absence for employees on an unpaid sick, unpaid Injury-on-Duty, unpaid FMLA, or unpaid maternity leaves.

Other Information

Eligible dependent children: If both Spouses are covered under the Group Health and Welfare Benefits Plan, eligible dependent children are covered as dependents of the parent whose birthday occurs first in the calendar year, unless the parents elect otherwise. Contact the Benefits Service Center at 844-843-6869 to change this requirement. Children cannot be covered under both parents' health benefits. See "Dependent Eligibility"

Contributions: If both you and your Spouse are covered independently under the Group Health and Welfare Benefits Plan and select exactly the same medical or dental option at the same cost, your contributions will be adjusted to ensure you pay approximately the same for your total family coverage as you would if your Spouse worked elsewhere. The savings will be divided equally and applied to both your paychecks.

Family Deductibles: Family deductibles (described under "Key Features of the Medical Benefit Options" in the *Medical* section) apply if both employees choose the same medical option. If the parents choose different options, the family deductible applies to the employee covering the children and the individual deductible applies separately to the other parent.

Life insurance: Both employees are eligible to elect life insurance covering their Spouse regardless of any other life insurance coverage the Spouse has elected as an employee. Both parents may elect Child Term Life Insurance (see "Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance Benefits" in the *Life Insurance* section) for eligible dependent children.

Accident coverage: Each of you may enroll for yourself. You cannot be covered as an employee and a dependent; therefore, only the parent who elects medical coverage for the dependent children may elect family accident coverage, and the Spouse must waive coverage. If your Spouse works for an American Airlines Group subsidiary that does not offer accident coverage, you may elect Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefits (see "Covered Losses and Accident Benefits" in the Accident Insurance section) for him or her.

Flexible Spending Accounts: Deposits to the Health Care, Limited Purpose, and Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Accounts (see the <u>Health Care FSA and Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account</u> and the <u>Dependent Day Care FSA</u> sections) may be made by one or both Spouses. Either of you may submit claims to the account. However, if only one Spouse is making deposits to the account, claims must be submitted under that person's Social Security number. If you both make deposits, you may only contribute the maximum amount the law permits for a couple filing a joint tax return.

General Enrollment

New Employee Enrollment

As an Envoy or Affiliate employee, in order to receive coverage when first eligible, you must complete an online enrollment or call the Benefits Service Center within 30 days of your start date. If you do not complete the enrollment process, you will not be enrolled in any benefits, and your next opportunity to enroll will be during the annual open enrollment period for the following year unless you experience a qualified Life Event that would enable you to make such a change. The Benefits Service Center will be updated annually with benefit options and new rates for the upcoming year. You will receive enrollment information shortly after you begin working. Upon completing one month of Company service, you will be eligible to receive Company subsidized medical, dental, basic voluntary life, and basic accidental and dismemberment insurance. You may elect coverage for yourself and your eligible dependents (see "Dependent Eligibility" in the General Eligibility section) and have a ONE-TIME opportunity to enroll in the following coverage without having to provide proof of good health:

- Long Term Disability Insurance (LTD) Benefit
- Optional Short-Term Disability Insurance (OSTD) Benefit
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit at one times your annual salary.

You may choose Voluntary Term Life Insurance equal to one times your salary without proof of good health only upon hire. You may choose a higher level of Voluntary Term Life Insurance with proof of good health. During future annual enrollments, you may only increase your life insurance one level each annual enrollment with proof of good health. Proof of good health is required if you wish to enroll in the above coverage after you first become eligible or you choose to increase life insurance coverage levels at a later date. You must submit a completed Personal Health Application form to The Hartford to add or increase Life Insurance coverage or to elect OSTD or LTD at a later date within 30 days after your enrollment. If your Personal Health Application form is not postmarked within 30 days after the close of annual enrollment, or if you do not complete and submit the online Personal Health Application within 30 days of your election, your application for these coverages will not be considered, and you must wait until the next annual enrollment (or your next qualifying Life Event) to apply for any of these coverages.

Employees have the opportunity to select benefits tailored to individual needs and preferences. The Benefits Service Center on the benefits page of my.envoyair.com reflects the current benefits coverage available to you and your eligible dependents and the rates for the coverage.

Current Employees

Annual Enrollment

Each fall, eligible employees have the opportunity to select benefits for the upcoming Plan Year — January 1 through December 31. During the annual enrollment period, you can enroll online for coverage, make changes to your prior elections, or continue your previous elections at the applicable new rates. (New rates will be available in your <u>Benefits Service Center</u> on my.envoyair.com.) With the exception of specific Life Events, annual enrollment is the only time you can change your coverage elections.

Once annual enrollment ends, your benefit elections for the upcoming Plan Year are recorded and "locked in", and you are not allowed to make changes to these elections until the following year unless you experience a Life Event that would enable you to make such changes. If Proof of Good Health is required, the effective date for coverage, if approved, may be delayed to allow for review of your Personal Health Application from The Hartford (e.g., to add or increase Life Insurance coverage).

Some benefits and plans require proof of good health, if you elect these benefits or plans at any time after you first became eligible to enroll. During annual enrollment, if you want to:

- increase the amount of your employee or Spouse term life insurance benefit;
- enroll in Optional Short Term Disability Insurance, or
- enroll in Long Term Disability Insurance.

You must complete a Personal Health Application form from The Hartford within 30 days after the close of annual enrollment. For example, if during annual enrollment for the 2020 benefit year you elect to increase the amount of your employee term life insurance for 2020 plan year, you must submit your Personal Health Application form to The Hartford no later than 30 days after the annual enrollment period ends. If your statement is submitted more than 30 days after the close of annual enrollment, your application for this coverage will not be considered, and you must wait until the next annual enrollment (or your next qualifying Life Event) to apply for the coverage.

Please Be Aware of These Important Points:

The annual enrollment period occurs each fall.

- If you do not enroll for benefits during the annual enrollment period, you will be deemed to have consented to automatically default to your current elections (if available) for the following year, at the applicable rates for the following year and your payroll deductions will be adjusted accordingly. Please note that Health Care FSA and Dependent Day Care FSA require you to enter an election amount each year and do not roll over.
- If one of your current elections is no longer available, you will default to the applicable benefit or plan as listed in the table under "Default Medical Coverage for Current Employees."

Annual Enrollment

- After annual enrollment, you will only be able to make changes to your elections if you experience a qualifying Life Event (see the *Life Events* section).
- If you are adding new dependents to your benefits during the annual enrollment period, keep in mind that you must submit to the Benefits Service Center proof that these dependents qualify as your eligible dependents within 30 days of the date you enroll them. Proof that the dependents you enroll qualify as your dependents includes (but is not limited to) official government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, marriage certificates, federal tax returns, etc. The proof of eligibility requirements are listed on my.envoyair.com, under "Benefits" in the Resources site, or you may contact the Benefits Service Center for proof of eligibility requirements (see "Contact Information" in the Reference Information section).

Note: Flexible Spending Account (FSA) elections do not automatically carry over to the following year. If you do not enroll and enter an amount, you will not have FSA dollars in the following benefit plan year.

Newly eligible employees who do not complete the enrollment process will not be enrolled in any benefits. Your next opportunity to enroll will be during the annual open enrollment period for the following year or, if earlier, the date you experience a qualified Life Event.

As a new employee, you can enroll for benefits when you are first eligible during your "enrollment window," and each year, during annual enrollment, you can enroll for benefits that will be effective for the upcoming year. The Benefits Service Center will be updated annually with benefit options and new rates for the upcoming year.

Default Medical Coverage for Current Employees

This page indicates the default benefits that may be assigned and explains when default benefits apply.

During annual enrollment, if you do not make elections for the upcoming benefit year, you will default to the same benefits and plans (at the applicable new rates) as you are enrolled in for the current year with the following exceptions:

Medical Benefit Option	PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500	If your current medical benefit option is not available in your location, you and your eligible dependents will be enrolled in the Out-of-Area option.
Flexible Spending Account Benefits (Health Care FSA, Dependent Day Care FSA)	No coverage	Your FSA accounts will default to \$0.00 unless you enter an amount.

Waiving Coverage

You may choose to waive coverage if you do not want to participate in the Plan. Please keep in mind that your dependents will not receive coverage unless you are covered. If you waive coverage, you can enroll in coverage later in the year only if you experience a qualifying Life Event such as marriage, divorce, or the birth or adoption of a child.

How to Enroll

Follow these steps to enroll before your enrollment deadline:

Step 1: Visit the Benefits page on my.envoyair.com

- Look over the information contained in the <u>Benefits Service Center</u> widget on my.envoyair.com. The Benefits Service Center displays your benefit options for the remainder of the year and the per pay period costs for each option.
- Verify that the personal information shown is correct.

Step 2: Review your dependents

- You may add your Spouse and any eligible dependent children during enrollment.
- After you have added your dependents, if any, it is necessary to decide whether or not you
 wish to cover each dependent under your Medical Benefit Option before continuing with your
 enrollment for other benefits.
- Within 30 days of enrolling your dependents for benefits, you must submit to the Benefits Service Center proof that these dependents qualify as your eligible dependents. Proof that the dependents you enroll qualify as your dependents includes (but is not limited to) official government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, marriage certificates, etc., as described in the Proof of Dependent Eligibility section.

Step 3: Enroll

- You can enroll online on my.envoyair.com any time before the enrollment deadline. Or if you prefer, you may enroll by calling the Benefits Service Center at 1-844-843-6869.
- Be sure to enroll within 30 days of your hire date. Newly eligible employees that do not complete the enrollment process will not be enrolled in any benefits.
- You will not have another opportunity to enroll until the next annual enrollment period—or unless you experience a qualifying Life Event (see <u>Life Events</u>).

Coverage Levels

You may choose from the following levels of coverage for medical, dental, and vision:

- Employee
- Employee + One
- Employee + Two or more.

When Coverage Begins

If you enroll by the enrollment deadline, your elected coverage is retroactive to the date you are first eligible for benefits and your paycheck is adjusted as necessary.

Paying for Coverage

Each year the Company reviews the benefit options offered to employees and the cost of each plan. Based on your employment status and the number of family members enrolled in your coverage, you pay a specified amount towards the cost of your benefits, and, for certain benefits, the Company pays the rest as described below. Once you have completed one month of Company service, the Company pays a portion of the cost of your medical and dental coverage; you pay the remaining amount of the actual cost for providing these benefits. Your contributions are fixed premium obligations and you will not be entitled to any reduction or refund of your contributions (including, without limitation, applicable Deductibles or co-payments) in the event that the claims experience of the Plan is more favorable than projected or the Plan receives any discount, refund, rebate, settlement, or damages pursuant to an agreement with or settlement or judgment with or from an insurer, any medical Provider or other organization or individual.

Company-Subsidized Benefits

All eligible employees are provided with basic benefits protection that is subsidized by the Company. These benefits include:

- Medical Benefits. You can choose from PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, or an Out-of-Area option, if you do not live within a PPO plan service area. Your contributions fund a portion of the cost with the Company covering the rest.
- **Dental Benefit.** You contribute a portion of the contribution cost with the Company covering the rest.
- Basic Life Insurance & Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance The Company provides coverage based on 1 times your annual salary for benefits (if enrolled in medical) without charge to you.

Employee-Paid Benefits

In addition to these Company-provided benefits, you can select from a number of optional benefits for which you pay the full cost. These include:

- Vision Insurance
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance
- Long Term Disability Insurance
- A Health Care Flexible Spending Account
- A Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Account
- Critical Illness Insurance
- Legal Services
- Health Savings Account (HSA)*
- * The Health Savings Account is not a Company-sponsored plan or benefit option.

You pay the same amount for benefits per pay period. Depending on your pay cycle, here is how payroll deductions work. (The amount may vary by a few cents due to rounding.) If you are paid:

- **Semi-monthly:** You always receive two paychecks per month, so the same amount is deducted from each paycheck.
- **Bi-weekly:** You generally receive two paychecks per month, and the same amount is deducted from each paycheck. In months with three pay periods, all three checks will have the same benefit deductions as your other paychecks.
- Weekly: You generally receive four paychecks per month, and the same amount is deducted from each paycheck. In months with five pay periods, all five paychecks of the month will have the same benefit deductions.

The amount deducted from your paycheck is your contribution to the cost of coverage. (The amount may vary by a few cents due to rounding.)

Taxation of Benefits

You pay for some benefits on a pre-tax basis, which means the cost of your benefits is deducted from your pay before taxes are calculated. Tax withholding is calculated only on the remaining amount. Therefore, your contributions for pre-tax benefits actually reduce your taxable income, and the amount of taxes withheld from your pay is also lower. A few benefits must be paid on an after-tax basis.

The following table summarizes options available to eligible employees under the Plan. The second column shows whether you pay for the benefit pre-tax. The third column indicates whether you may waive coverage (choose no coverage) for this benefit option.

Medical Benefit Options (for employee and tax dependents)	Yes	Yes*
■ PPO 750 Option		
■ PPO 1500 Option		
■ PPO 2500 Option		
 Out of Area Option 		
Vision Insurance Benefit	Yes	Yes
Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit (below \$50,000)	Yes	Yes**
Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit	No	Yes
Spouse Term Life Insurance Benefit	No	Yes**
Child Term Life Insurance Benefit	No	Yes
Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit	No	Yes**
Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit	No	Yes**
Health Care Flexible Spending Account Benefit	Yes	Yes***
Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Account Benefit	Yes	Yes
Critical Illness	No	Yes*
Dental Benefit Option	Yes	Yes*
Legal Services	No	Yes

^{*} Your dependents cannot have coverage if you are not covered.

When Coverage Ends

Coverage for you and your dependents will automatically terminate on the earliest of:

• The date this Plan or benefit option terminates.

^{**} Requires proof of good health any time you increase your level of coverage or if you waive coverage and later decide to elect it.

^{***} During the year, if you experience a qualifying Life Event, you may start or increase contributions to a Health Care Flexible Spending Account only if you are enrolling a dependent that was not previously covered.

- The last day for which your contribution has been paid.
- The date you are no longer eligible for this Plan or benefit option.
- The date the Plan Administrator determines in its sole discretion that you have made a false statement on any enrollment form or claim form or filed a fraudulent request with the Plan.
- The date you terminate employment or cancel coverage.
- The date your dependents no longer meet the eligibility requirements, as explained in the "Dependent Eligibility" Section.

Your Spouse's coverage will automatically terminate on the earliest of:

- The date this Plan or benefit option terminates
- The last day for which your Spouse's contribution has been paid
- The date he or she is no longer your Spouse
- The date you are no longer eligible for this Plan or benefit option
- The date the Plan Administrator determines in its sole discretion that you have made a false statement on any enrollment form or claim form or filed a fraudulent request with the Plan or benefit option.

Expenses incurred after the date your coverage (or your Spouse's coverage) terminates are not eligible for reimbursement under the Plan or benefit option.

If you die as an active employee, your covered dependents continue to receive the same medical coverage they had before you died. COBRA Continuation Coverage continues for 90 days at no cost upon election of COBRA. At the end of 90 days, your eligible dependents are eligible to continue medical coverage for up to 36 months under COBRA at the full COBRA rate. The 90 days of coverage immediately following your death is included in the 36 months. Dental coverage is available for purchase through COBRA. All other coverage ends at the time of your death.

For information regarding benefits that can be continued through COBRA, see "Continuation of Coverage – COBRA Continuation" in the *Additional Health Benefit Rules* section.

Coverage Under the Plan While on a Family and Medical Leave, Unpaid Sick or Injury on Duty Leave, or a Military Leave

Under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (the "FMLA") employees are generally allowed to take up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave for certain family and medical situations and continue their elected medical coverage benefits during this time, referred to in this guide as Family Medical Leave of Absence or FMLA.

If you are eligible, you can generally take up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave in a 12-month period for the reasons listed below:

- For the birth and care of your newborn child or a child that is placed with you for adoption or foster care
- For the care of a Spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition
- For your own serious health condition

If you are eligible, you can generally take up to 26 work weeks of job-protected "military caregiver leave" during a single 12-month period to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness if you are the Spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of the "covered service member." Depending on your state of residence, the number of weeks of unpaid leave available to you for family and medical reasons may vary based on state law requirements.

FMLA for Airline Flight Crewmembers

Special rules apply under FMLA for "airline flight crewmember," which is generally defined as employees that are on board an aircraft during launch or reentry (e.g., pilots and flight attendants). FMLA includes special rules applicable to airline flight crewmembers that outline (i) a separate method to calculate the number of hours of service for eligibility and (ii) a different number of days for which an eligible employee may take FMLA leave. An eligible airline flight crew employee is entitled to up to 72 days of FMLA leave during any 12-month period for the reasons listed below:

- For the birth and care of your newborn child or a child that is placed with you for adoption or foster care
- For the care of a Spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition
- For your own serious health condition

Depending on your state of residence, the number of weeks of unpaid leave available to you for family and medical reasons may vary based on state law requirements.

Unpaid Sick or Injury on Duty Leave of Absence

During the first year (12 months) of an unpaid sick, FMLA, military, Injury on Duty, or other type of leave of absence (as determined by the Company in its sole discretion) (the "12-Month Period"), you may be eligible to continue benefits for yourself and your eligible dependents for a period of time during such leave. You are responsible for timely paying your share of the cost for coverage during your leave. After you have exhausted your accrued sick leave and after the 12-Month Period, your coverage ends, and at that time you may elect continuation of coverage under COBRA. For information regarding benefits that can be continued through COBRA, see "Continuation of Coverage – COBRA Continuation" in the Additional Health Benefit Rules section. However, if you terminate your benefits during the 12-Month Period, when you return to active status you may reactivate your Medical, Dental, and/or Vision benefits if you continue to satisfy the hours requirements applicable to flight, crew, and/or agents. For a detailed description of each leave of absence, consult with your supervisor.

The type of leave you take determines the cost of your benefits (i.e., whether you and the Company share the cost of benefits or whether you pay the full cost of benefits). In order to continue your benefits during a leave of absence, you must timely pay the required monthly contributions during your leave.

When you begin a leave of absence (when your central admin record is changed to reflect that you're on a leave of absence),

■ The Benefits Service Center sends you a letter acknowledging your leave, instructing you to call the Benefits Service Center at 1-844-843-6869 and requesting that you decide whether or not to continue your benefits while on your leave.

- Once you call and record your Life Event and benefit elections with the <u>Benefits Service</u>
 <u>Center</u>, you will receive a confirmation statement showing your choices, the monthly cost of benefits, covered dependents, etc.
- If you have not received a letter within 10 days of being placed on a leave, contact the Benefits Service Center immediately, so that you may continue your benefits while on leave.

During the initial period of an absence for a disability, while you are receiving accrued sick pay and during the 12-Month Period, the Company continues to pay its part toward the cost of your medical coverage for active employees, and you must pay your part of the cost as well. You will receive a personalized Leave of Absence Worksheet when the Central Admin Request placing you on unpaid leave is processed. The worksheet lists your benefits options during the leave, costs for benefit coverage, and the election deadline. If you elect to continue your medical and dental benefit, this coverage ends at the end of the 12th month of your leave.

IMPORTANT: If you elect not to continue your benefits while on your leave, or if you fail to timely pay the required monthly contributions for coverage, your benefits will terminate for the duration of your leave of absence. When you return to active status, you may reactivate most of your benefits; however, some benefits will require that you supply proof of good health in order to reactivate them (i.e., Long Term Disability Insurance, Optional Short Term Disability Insurance, and Voluntary Term Life Insurance).

With respect to reactivating your Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit—if, for example, your prior-leave amount of life insurance was 4 times your annual salary, and you elected not to pay for your life insurance while you were on leave—once you've returned from your leave and provided proof of good health satisfactory to The Hartford, you are allowed to reactivate your life insurance ONLY to the first level of coverage (which is one times your annual salary).

Military Leave

The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA) guarantees certain rights to eligible employees who enter military service. Upon reinstatement, you are entitled to the seniority, rights, and benefits associated with the position held at the time employment was interrupted, plus additional seniority, rights, and benefits that would have been attained if employment had not been interrupted.

If your military leave is for fewer than 31 days, you may continue your medical coverage by paying the same amount charged to active employees for the same coverage. If your leave is for a longer period of time, you will be charged up to the full cost of coverage plus a 2% administrative fee.

The maximum period of USERRA Continuation of Coverage available to you and your eligible dependents is the lesser of 24 months or the day the leave ends.

When you go on military leave, your work hours are reduced. As a result, you and your covered dependents may become eligible for COBRA. Any period of COBRA Continuation of Coverage for which you are eligible will run concurrently with any USERRA continuation period for which you are eligible.

If you choose not to continue your medical coverage while on military leave, you are entitled to reinstated health coverage with no waiting periods or exclusions (however, an exception applies to service-related disabilities) when you return from leave.

For more information regarding your rights under USERRA, visit https://www.dol.gov/vets/programs/userra/.

Life Events and Special Enrollment Rights: Making Changes During the Year

After annual enrollment is completed each year, you may only change your elections if you experience a HIPAA Special Enrollment Event, Special Enrollment for Medicaid and CHIP, or Qualified Life Event and your change is consistent with that event. Allowable changes vary by the type of Life Event you experience, as shown in the "<u>Table of Life Events and Permitted Benefit Changes</u>" and on the Life Events landing page on my envoyair.com.

HIPAA Special Enrollment Rights - Medical Benefit Option Only

If you or your dependents declined coverage under the Medical Benefit Option because you or they have medical coverage elsewhere and one of the following events occurs, you have 30 days from the date of the event to enroll yourself and/or your dependents in a Medical Benefit Option.

You and/or your dependents lose the other medical coverage because:

- eligibility was lost for reasons including legal separation, divorce, death, termination of employment or reduced work hours (but not due to failure to pay premiums on a timely basis, voluntary disensollment, or termination for cause).
- o the employer contributions to the other coverage have stopped.
- o the other coverage was COBRA and the maximum COBRA coverage period ends.
- o you and/or your dependents exhaust a lifetime maximum in another employer's health plan or in other health insurance coverage.
- O Your employer and/or your dependent's employer cease to offer health benefits to the class of employees through which you (or one of your dependents) have coverage.
- o You and/or one of your dependents were enrolled under other group or individual plan or coverage arrangement that will no longer cover you and/or one of your dependents) because you and/or your dependent no longer reside, live, or work in its service area.
- o You have a new dependent as a result of your marriage or your child's birth, adoption, or placement for adoption with you.

As an employee, you may enroll yourself and your new Spouse (and any dependents) within 30 days of your marriage and a new child within 30 days of his or her birth, adoption, or placement for adoption. If you miss the 30-day deadline, the enrollment will not be processed. You will have to wait until the next annual enrollment period to enroll your dependent. In addition, if you are not enrolled in the Benefit Option as an employee, you also must enroll in the benefit option when you enroll any of these dependents. And, if your Spouse is not enrolled in the benefit option, you may enroll yourself and/or him or her in the benefit option when you enroll a child due to birth, adoption or placement for adoption. Coverage is retroactive to the date of marriage, birth, adoption or placement for adoption. To request special enrollment or obtain more information, contact the Benefits Service Center (see "Contact Information" in the Reference Information section).

• If you are adding new dependents to your benefits as a result of a Life Event, keep in mind that you must submit proof that these dependents qualify as your eligible dependents. Proof that the dependents you enroll qualify as your dependents include (but are not limited to) official

government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, marriage certificates, etc. The proof of eligibility requirements are listed on my.envoyair.com, on the Benefits page, or you may contact the Benefits Service Center for proof of eligibility requirements (see "Contact Information" in the *Reference Information* section). Please note you will be responsible for retroactive contributions to coverage from the date of your Life Event.

Special Enrollment Rights Under the Children's Health Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2009 (CHIP)

An employee and/or eligible dependent may enroll in a Medical Benefit Option if he or she is no longer eligible for coverage under a Medicaid plan under title XIX of the Social Security Act or a State child health plan under title XXI of the Social Security Act, if the employee and/or eligible Dependent requests coverage under the Plan within 30 days after the date of termination from coverage. Such coverage shall be effective on the date of the event.

In addition, an employee and/or eligible dependent may enroll a Medical Benefit Option if he or she becomes eligible for assistance under a Medicaid plan under title XIX of the Social Security Act or a State child health plan under title XXI of the Social Security Act, where such assistance will be provided through the Plan, if the employee and/or eligible Dependent requests coverage under the Plan within 30 days of the date that he or she is determined to be eligible for assistance. Such coverage shall be effective on the date of the event.

Keep in mind that if you are adding dependent(s) to your benefits during this special enrollment period, you must submit proof that these dependents qualify as your eligible dependents, and submit proof of loss of Medicaid or CHIP coverage, or proof of eligibility for the state premium assistance (under Medicaid or CHIP). Proof that the dependents you enroll qualify as your eligible dependents includes (but is not limited to) official government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, etc., as described in the Proof of Eligibility Requirements.

Life Event

You also may change certain elections mid-year if you experience a Life Event and your change is consistent with that event. Allowable changes vary by the type of Life Event you experience.

You must register the Life Event with the Benefits Service Center. You must submit proof of the dependent's eligibility to the Benefits Service Center within 31 days of the date the documentation is requested. Proof of eligibility cannot be submitted until you receive the request from the Benefits Service Center. If you miss the 31 day deadline, you will not be able to enroll your dependent in the Plan and your Life Event change will not be processed. You will have to wait until the next Annual Enrollment Period to add your dependent.

When you experience a qualifying Life Event, keep these important thoughts in mind:

- Most Life Events can be processed by calling the Benefits Service Center directly at 1-844-843-6869.
- If your Life Event is the addition of a new dependent due to birth, adoption, or placement for adoption and you process the Life Event within 30 days of the event, your changes are retroactive to the date the Life Event occurred (or the date proof of good health is approved, as applicable). All other Life Events will be effective the first of the month following the date that you provided notice.

However, if your dependent(s) lose eligibility under the Plan, you must contact the Benefits Service Center to remove the ineligible dependent(s) from coverage. You have 60 days to notify the Plan of a dependent losing eligibility due to divorce or legal separation or a dependent child losing dependent status under the Plan. If you contact the Benefits Service Center after the 60-day deadline you will be able to remove your dependent(s) from coverage, but the effective date of the removal may be retroactive to the date the dependent lost eligibility. The Plan may seek to recover costs paid for an ineligible dependent for any coverage provided after the date the dependent was no longer eligible. Refunds are determined upon a case-by-case basis. Keep in mind that if you do not notify the Benefits Service Center of your dependent(s)' eligibility within 60-days of the date of the loss of eligibility, the dependent(s) will lose their right to continue coverage under COBRA, so it is important that you are timely in registering your dependent(s)' removal from coverage within the 60-day timeframe.

The Company and its Affiliates reserve the right to request documented proof of dependent eligibility for benefits at any time. If you do not provide documented proof when requested, or if any of the information you provide is not true and correct, your actions will be considered a violation of the <u>Rules of Conduct</u> and may result in termination of employment and termination of benefits coverage.

If you are adding new dependents to your benefits as a result of a Life Event, keep in mind that you must submit proof that these dependents qualify as your eligible dependents within 30 days of the date you enroll them. Proof that the dependents you enroll qualify as your dependents include (but are not limited to) official government-issued birth certificates, adoption papers, marriage certificates, etc., as described in the <u>Proof of Eligibility Requirements</u>.

- Any change in your cost for coverage generally applies on the date the change is effective. Catch-up contributions or deductions will be deducted from one or more paychecks after your election is processed at the discretion of the Plan Administrator.
- You cannot enroll your dependents for coverage if you are not covered.
- You may start or increase a Health Care Flexible Spending Account only if you have enrolled a dependent that was not previously covered. Starting or increasing either Life, Accident, or Disability insurance may require proof of good health and coverage will only be effective after the applicant is approved. If death occurs before a Life Event is processed, the amount of coverage payable is your current amount of Life and/or Accident Insurance. When you add Life or Accident Insurance, you must designate a beneficiary. Periodically thereafter, you may want to update your beneficiary designations, and you can make beneficiary changes on the Benefits Service Center. Once you complete and submit the online Beneficiary Designation Form, it supersedes all previous designations.
- If a death or accident occurs before your first-time enrollment is processed, the amount of Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance that will be paid is your "default coverage." If you have coverage and you are requesting an increase, the amount payable is your current amount of coverage.
- You or your Spouse may only increase your Life Insurance coverage by one level per year, with proof of good health.
- If you elect to enroll in any coverage requiring proof of good health, you must submit (postmarked) a completed, dated, and signed Personal Health Application from The Hartford

within 30 days after your enrollment/election date. If your statement of health is not postmarked within 30 days after your enrollment/election date, your application for these coverages will not be considered, and you must wait until the next annual enrollment (or your next qualifying Life Event) to apply for any of these coverages.

• See also "<u>Life Event Considerations</u>" for other information regarding Life Events that may trigger allowable changes in coverage.

Table of Life Events and Permitted Benefit Changes

This table describes the changes you may make when certain Life Events occur.

You become eligible for Company-provided benefits	Enroll online through the Benefits Service Center.
You get married	 Medical Benefit Options: Add coverage for your Spouse and eligible dependents; stop coverage for a dependent or yourself. You may change Medical Benefit Options; however, your Deductible and Out-of-Pocket Maximum will not carry over to your new Medical Benefit Option. Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage, however this coverage applies to the employee only.
	 Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
	 Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Add coverage for your Spouse and/or Child, or increase or decrease existing employee coverage.
	 Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage.
	 Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Start or stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
	 Health Savings Account: You can start contributions to a HSA, provided you and your Spouse are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Benefit Option.
	 Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
	 Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
l	

You divorce or legally separate	 Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for your Spouse. Add coverage for yourself and/or your eligible dependents (dependent coverage may be subject to QMCSO—see "Qualified Medical Child Support Order" in the Additional Health Benefit Rules section). You cannot change benefit options at this time. Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for your Spouse and/or Child, or increase or decrease existing employee coverage
	 Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for yourself; stop coverage for Spouse or Child; increase or decrease existing employee coverage
	• Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Start/stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
	■ Health Savings Account: You may start or stop contributing, if you are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or the PPO 2500 medical option.
	• Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
	 Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
You or your Spouse becomes pregnant	 This does not permit you to make any changes in your benefit elections until the baby is born

You or your Spouse gives birth or adopts a child or has a child placed with you for adoption or you add eligible dependent(s) to your household

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Start/add coverage for the dependent(s) and yourself, and/or your Spouse. You may change Medical Benefit Options; however, your Deductible and Out-of-Pocket Maximum will not carry over to your new Medical Benefit Option.
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Add coverage for your Child, increase or decrease existing coverage for you with Proof of Good Health
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage
- Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Start or stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Health Savings Account: You may start contributing to a HSA if you are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or the PPO 2500 medical option.
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

Your covered dependent no longer meets the Plan's eligibility requirement	 Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for dependent. You cannot change benefit options at this time 	
	 Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only 	
	 Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only 	
	 Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for your dependent; increase or decrease existing coverage for you with Proof of Good Health 	
	 Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage 	
	 Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Stop Flexible Spending Accounts; decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions 	
	 Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself. 	
	 Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself. 	
Your dependent child attains age 13 or he no longer requires dependent day care	 Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Account: Stop or reduce Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Account contributions. 	

Your elderly parent no longer requires dependent day care

Your Spouse or dependent dies

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance: Stop coverage for your Spouse or dependent. You cannot change benefit options at this time.
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Long Term Disability Plan: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for your eligible dependent; increase or decrease existing coverage for you with proof of good health.
- Spouse Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage.
- Child Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage.
- Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance:
 Stop coverage for your eligible Spouse or dependent or start or stop coverage for yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage.
- Flexible Spending Account Benefits: Start or stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Health Savings Account: You may contribute to an HSA, if you are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or the PPO 2500 Benefit Option.
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

Change in Spouse's employment or other health coverage

OR

Spouse's employer no longer contributes toward health coverage

OR

Your Spouse's employer no longer covers employees in your Spouse's position

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance: Add coverage for your Spouse, your eligible dependent or yourself; stop coverage for your Spouse, Dependent or yourself. You cannot change benefit plans at this time, if you were already enrolled. If you were not enrolled, you may enroll yourself and your eligible Spouse or dependent in the applicable benefit option.
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Long Term Disability Plan: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage.
- Spouse Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage.
- Child Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage.
- Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage.
- Flexible Spending Account Benefits: Start or stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Health Savings Account: You may contribute to an HSA, if you are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or the PPO 2500 Benefit Option.
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

You and/or your eligible dependent(s) declined Company medical coverage because you or they had coverage elsewhere (external to Company), and any of the following events occurs, you have 30 days from the date of the event to enroll yourself and/or your eligible dependents in a Medical Benefit Option:

- Loss of eligibility for other coverage due to legal separation, divorce, death, termination of employment, reduced work hours (this does not include failure to pay timely contributions, voluntary disenrollment, or termination for cause)
- Employer contributions for the other coverage stopped
- Other coverage was COBRA and the maximum COBRA coverage period ended
- Exhaustion of the other coverage's lifetime maximum benefit
- Other employer-sponsored coverage is no longer offered
- Other coverage ends because you and/or your eligible dependents no longer reside, live, or work in its service area
- You have a new dependent via your marriage, your child's birth/adoption/placement for adoption with you

You have 30 days from the date of the event to enroll yourself and/or your eligible dependents in one of the Medical Benefit Options offered to you. **This event allows you to add coverage under a Medical Benefit Option only.**

You or your dependent exhausts a lifetime limit in another medical plan

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Add coverage for your Spouse and eligible dependents, or yourself; stop coverage for Spouse, your dependent, or yourself. You cannot change benefit options at this time, if you were already enrolled. If you were not enrolled, you may enroll yourself and your Spouse and eligible dependents in any Medical Benefit Option
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage
- Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Start or stop Flexible Spending Accounts; increase or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions

You move to a new home address:

- Update your address online at my.envoyair.com
- Submit a revised W-4 form for payroll tax purposes.
 The form is available online at my.envoyair.com
- Contact other organizations such as the American Airlines Credit Union and C. R. Smith Museum directly to update your contact information

Provide your new address and current emergency contact numbers to your supervisor, as well

- Medical Benefits Option: May select from medical options available in new location if you moved out of the service area to any area with different options available. Contact the Benefits Service Center for more information.
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse and/or dependent; increase or decrease existing coverage
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

You become disabled

- **Notify:** Your supervisor and call The Hartford to initiate a disability claim (if enrolled)
- Complete and submit: Your claim for disability benefits

You take a leave of absence

- You will receive: A personalized Leave of Absence Worksheet from the Benefits Service Center when the payroll transaction placing you on unpaid leave is processed. The worksheet lists your options during the leave, cost for benefits coverage, and the election deadline.
- Your cost depends on: The type of leave you are taking

You return from an unpaid leave of absence

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Resume coverage. You cannot change benefit options at this time
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only.
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; increase or decrease existing employee coverage.
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage.
- Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: Resume Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

You change from part-time to full-time or full-time to part-time*

- Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Add coverage for your Spouse and eligible dependents, or yourself; stop coverage for Spouse, your dependent, or yourself. You cannot change benefit options at this time
- Optional Short Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage; however, this coverage applies to the employee only
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse and/or dependent, or increase or decrease existing coverage
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse, your dependent, or yourself; increase or decrease existing coverage
- Critical Illness Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.
- Legal Services Plan: Start or stop coverage for your Spouse or yourself.

You die You end your employment with the Company	 Continuation of Coverage: Your dependents should contact your supervisor, who will coordinate with Envoy Survivor Support to assist with all survivor benefits and privileges. The Benefits Service Center will send information, including the election of Continuation of Coverage, if applicable. Review: When Coverage Ends within this Guide Review: The information you receive regarding Continuation of Coverage through COBRA Contact: The Benefits Service Center for information
You transfer to another work group or subsidiary of American Airlines Group	Contact: Your supervisor, the Benefits Service Center, or the new subsidiary to determine benefits available to you and to make new benefit elections
Benefit coverages are significantly improved, lowered or lessened by the Company (Plan Administrator/Sponsor will determine whether or not a change is "significant")	Make changes to the applicable benefit coverage: The Company will notify you of the allowable benefit changes, the time limits for making election changes and how to make changes at that time.
You are subject to a court order resulting from a divorce, legal separation, annulment, guardianship or change in legal custody (including a QMSCO) that requires you to provide health care coverage for a child	Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Start or add coverage for the dependent(s) and yourself. You cannot change benefit options at this time.
You, your Spouse or your dependent enroll in Medicare or Medicaid	Medical and Dental Options and Vision Insurance Benefit: Stop coverage for the applicable person. You cannot change benefit options at this time.

You or your dependent(s)	Medica
lose Medicaid or CHIP	yoursel
coverage	Medica
	depende

- Medical, Dental, and Vision Options: Add coverage for yourself and your dependents. If you are already enrolled in Medical, Dental, and Vision Options and are adding dependents, you cannot change medical or dental options at this time.
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: No changes allowed at this time.
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: No changes allowed at this time.
- Flexible Spending Account Benefits: You cannot start, stop, increase, or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Critical Illness Plan: No changes allowed at this time.
- Legal Services Plan: No changes allowed at this time.

You or your dependent(s) become eligible for a state premium assistance program (under Medicaid or CHIP)

- Medical, Dental, and Vision Options: Add coverage for yourself and your dependents. You may change Medical Benefit Options; however, your Deductible and Out-of-Pocket Maximum will not carry over to your new Medical Benefit Option.
- Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: No changes allowed at this time.
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance Benefit: No changes allowed at this time.
- Flexible Spending Account Benefits: You cannot start, stop, increase, or decrease Flexible Spending Account contributions.
- Critical Illness Plan: No changes allowed at this time.
- Legal Services Plan: No changes allowed at this time.

*NOTE: Eligibility and contribution amounts for medical & dental coverage for Agents and/or Fleet Service Clerks is determined by an analysis of hours worked during an annual look back period (as outlined in the Eligibility section of this guide). Once an eligibility and contribution status has been assigned through the look back analysis, it will remain unchanged for the entire Plan year, as long as you remain in the same workgroup.

Life Event Considerations

The following section explains special circumstances that may happen in your life and how these changes affect your benefits. You must take all of the steps described below for your Life Event within 30 days of the date it occurs.

Special dependent: To cover a special dependent (foster child or child for whom you become the legal guardian), you must complete a Statement of Eligibility for Special Dependent and return it to the Benefits Service Center at the address on the form, along with copies of the official court documents awarding you custodianship or guardianship of the child, regardless of the medical option

you select. For detailed criteria regarding coverage for a special dependent, see also "<u>Dependent Eligibility</u>" in the *General Eligibility* section.

Stepchild: You may add coverage for a stepchild if the child lives with you and you the employee, either jointly or individually, claim the stepchild as a dependent on your federal income tax return. However, for coverage in a Medical Benefit Option, all stepchildren are eligible for coverage up to age 26 regardless of residence or tax status.

Birth or adoption of a child: To add a natural child to coverage, you may use hospital records or an unofficial birth certificate as documentation of the birth. You should not wait to receive the baby's Social Security number or official birth certificate. These documents may take more than 30 days to arrive and prevent you from starting coverage effective on the baby's birth date.

To add an adopted child to your benefits coverage, you must supply a copy of the placement papers or actual adoption papers. Coverage for an adopted child is effective on the date the child is placed with you for adoption and is not retroactive to the child's date of birth.

Relocation: If you are enrolled in the PPO 750, PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Option and you move to a location where PPO Providers are not available, you must choose another medical option or you may waive coverage. If you are enrolled in the Out-of-Area Option and move to an area where the PPO is available, you will no longer be eligible for the Out-of-Area Option. However, if you change to another medical option, your Deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums do not transfer to the new option.

If you do not process your relocation Life Event within 30 days of your move, you will automatically be enrolled in another Medical Benefit Option and will receive a confirmation statement indicating your new coverage.

Benefit Coverage Affected by Life Events

Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefit: You may only increase this coverage by one level per year with approved Proof of Good Health.

Vision Insurance: You may add coverage for yourself and your eligible dependents if you experience a qualifying Life Event.

Optional Short Term Disability Insurance: If you elect coverage, your choice remains in effect for two calendar years. After this time, you have the option to continue or waive future coverage. However, you may add coverage if you have experienced a Life Event with approved Proof of Good Health.

Flexible Spending Accounts Benefits: If you change the amount of your election during the year, claims from your Health Care Flexible Spending Account for eligible health care expenses incurred before the change are payable up to the original amount you elected to deposit. Claims for expenses incurred after the change are payable up to your newly elected deposit amount. You forfeit part of your balance when the deposits before your change are greater than your claims before the change and you reduce the amount you elect to deposit. Your Dependent Day Care Flexible Spending Account reimburses based on the deposits in your account at the time of the claim.

Remember, when you process a Life Event change, the change (if applicable) to your Flexible Spending Accounts is only valid for the remainder of the calendar year. Life Event changes to your Flexible Spending Accounts for that year will not be permitted within the last 60 days of that year.

Benefit Coverage Not Affected by Life Events

The following benefits are not affected by Life Event changes, except as noted:

Medical Benefit Options: If you are enrolled in the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500 or Out-of-Area Option, you may not change from one of these options to another due to relocation, unless the option you were enrolled in previously is no longer available in your new location.

Medical Benefits Overview

The Company offers eligible employees the opportunity to elect medical coverage that provides protection for you and your covered dependents in the event of illness or non-occupational injury. Some options may not be offered in all locations. During enrollment periods (as a new employee when you are first eligible for benefits, during the annual enrollment period), or if you experience a qualifying Life Event, the Benefits Service Center will reflect the options that are available to you.

Generally, you may choose one of the Plan options listed below (collectively, the "Medical Benefits"). You may waive coverage; however, your dependents cannot have coverage if you are not covered. You will not be able to file claims under a Medical Benefit Option of the Plan if you waive coverage. You will not be able to enroll in coverage during the year unless you experience a qualified Life Event (see the "Table of Life Events and Permitted Benefit Changes" in the Life Events

- PPO 750 Option
- PPO 1500 Option
- PPO 2500 Option
- Out-of-Area Option*

Regardless of the medical coverage you select, you may take advantage of the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) offered by the Company (see <u>Employee Assistance Program</u> section for more information).

* Out-of-Area Option

Only employees who do not have adequate access to PPO Providers may enroll in the Out-of-Area Option.

The Out-of-Area Option allows you to use any qualified licensed Physician. When you use a Network Provider under the Out of Area Option you receive a higher level of benefits. Network Providers have agreed to charge discounted fees for medical services. Generally, you pay a percentage of the cost for each visit or service and the plan pays the rest. When you use Network Providers, you are not responsible for amounts billed in excess of the Network rate for eligible expenses. When you use Providers that are not part of the Network, the Plan still pays the same Coinsurance percentage but you will be responsible for any portion of the Provider's billed fee that exceeds the Plan's out-of-network reimbursement rate.

Under the Out-of-Area Option you will receive the PPO in-Network level of benefits. This benefit is offered to the Out-of-Area Option members because there are not a reasonable number of PPO Providers within driving distance, as determined by your alternate home address zip code. If you live within a zip code that is covered by the PPO you will not be eligible for the Out-of-Area Option.

PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options

The PPO Options are offered in most locations, but if you live outside the Network/claims administrator access area, you are not eligible for the PPO Options and may choose the Out of Area Option for medical coverage. You may access my.envoyair.com and list up to two addresses – a permanent address (for tax purposes or for your permanent residence) and an alternate address (for a P.O. Box or street address other than your permanent residence). Since many employees maintain

more than one residence, you may list both addresses on my.envoyair.com; however, your alternate address determines which medical options are available to you. If you do not have an alternate address listed on my.envoyair.com, your Network/claims administrator is based on your permanent address. The Enrollment section on my.envoyair.com will reflect which options are available to you. The PPO Options are administered by the same Network/claims administrator, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas.

You may decide whether to use Network or out-of-Network Providers each time you need care under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options. Under the PPO 750 Option, when you use a Network Provider, you pay only a Copayment or 20% Coinsurance after Deductible for most services provided by a Network Provider (with the exception for preventive care). Under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options, you pay 20% Coinsurance after satisfaction of the Deductible for services provided by a Network Provider. A Deductible is required for any Coinsurance-based services under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options. You may enroll in the Health Savings Account if you elect either the PPO 1500 and the PPO 2500 Options.

If you go to a Provider who is not part of the Network, you are still covered for eligible, Medically Necessary services, but at a lower level of benefits, called the out-of-Network benefit level. At the out-of-Network benefit level, you pay a higher Deductible and higher out-of-pocket amounts. For most out-of-Network services, the plan pays 60% and you pay the remaining 40% after you satisfy the Deductible. You will also be responsible for any amount exceeding the out-of-Network reimbursement fee(s) that are calculated based upon Medicare allowable amounts. The amount you pay in excess of the out-of-Network reimbursement rate will not apply to your out-of-pocket maximum. After you meet the annual out-of-pocket maximum for in-network services, eligible medical services for in-network services are covered at 100% for the remainder of the year. After you meet the annual out-of-pocket maximum for out-of-Network services, eligible medical services for out-of-Network services are covered at 100% for the remainder of the year. Please be sure to take this into consideration if you are considering using an out-of-Network Provider.

Prescription Drug Coverage

If you are enrolled in the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, or Out-of-Area Options, you receive Prescription drug coverage through the medical benefit. Coverage includes both retail pharmacy prescriptions (up to a 30-day supply), Smart90 retail option (90-day supply), and mail order prescriptions (up to a 90-day supply). Prescription drug coverage is administered by Express Scripts.

Smart90 is a retail pick up option that allows you to pick up long term medications at participating network pharmacies at the mail order rates (Walmart and most grocery store chains). Note: under the PPO750 plan, the \$50 retail deductible applies to this program.

How the Medical Benefit Options Work

Only employees who do not have adequate access to PPO Providers will have the Out-of-Area Option. All other Medical Benefit Options provide different levels of benefits based on whether or not you use a Network or out-of-Network Provider.

Under the PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options, you are required to satisfy an annual Deductible before the plan begins paying a percentage of the eligible, Medically Necessary expenses (with the exception of preventive care). All of the Medical Benefit Options allow you to use any

qualified licensed Physician. When you use a Network Provider, you are not responsible for the difference between the billed fee and the Network rate. See "Special Provisions," below for information regarding Physicians, hospitals, and other medical service Providers that have agreed to charge discounted fees for medical services.

In a few rare cases, a U.S. employee may live outside all of the Network areas and not have ready access to any of the Provider Networks. If you reside in a ZIP code that is outside of the preferred Network Providers' service areas, you will have the Out-of-Area Option available. You will not incur any penalty or reduction in benefits if you use a Provider outside the preferred administrator's Network as long as your ZIP code is considered "out-of-area." However, when using out-of-Network Providers, you will be responsible for the difference between the Providers' billed fees and the Plan's out-of-Network reimbursement rates. When possible, consider using an in-Network Provider so that you will not be responsible for the difference between the billed fee and the Network contract rate. This should reduce your out-of-pocket costs. In addition, you will pay less when using a Blue Cross Blue Shield Network Provider that is recognized as Blue Cross Distinction Center ("BDC") specifically for knee and hip replacements and transplants. Visit www.bcbstx.com to locate a BDC near you.

After meeting the annual Deductible under the Out-of-Area Option and the in-Network Deductible under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options, the plan pays 80% of most eligible expenses for most Medically Necessary services. Your Coinsurance is 20%. When using a non-Network Provider under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options, once you meet the out-of-Network Deductible, the plan pays 60% of most eligible expenses for most Medically Necessary services and your Coinsurance is 40%. However, any time you use an out-of-Network Provider, you will be responsible for the difference between billed charges and the out-of-Network reimbursement rate. The amount you pay in excess of the out-of-Network reimbursement rate will not apply to your out-of-pocket maximum. After you meet the annual out-of-pocket maximum, eligible medical services are covered at 100% for the remainder of the year.

Under the Medical Benefit Options, you may decide whether to use in-Network or out-of-Network Providers each and every time you need care. You also have the option of seeing any specialist Physician without a referral. However, when you use Network Providers, you receive a higher level of benefit, called in-Network benefits. If you need the care of a specialist and the Network in your area does not offer Providers in that specialty, you should contact your Network/claims administrator for approval to visit an out-of-Network specialist. Provided you have obtained approval from your Network/claims administrator, your out-of-Network care will be covered at the Network benefit level. If an approval is not obtained prior to the visit to the specialist, the visit will be covered out-of-Network.

For a detailed explanation of the eligible expenses and exclusions under the Medical Benefit Options, see "Covered Expenses" and "Excluded Expenses."

Key Features of the Medical Benefit Options

The following are key features of the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and the Out-of-Area Options. See "<u>Covered Expenses</u>" for a list of specific covered expenses.

Medically Necessary: Medical care is covered by the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options when the care is Medically Necessary, is an Eligible Expense, and it is not excluded from coverage. The PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Coverage Options cover annual exams and well-child care at no cost to you when you utilize Network Providers. (Under the Out of Area Option, the same preventive services are covered at 100%.) Please note that just because a Physician orders a service does not mean the service is Medically Necessary.

Out-of-Network Reimbursement Methodology: The Plan provides the following reimbursement for out-of-Network services:

Plan Benefit	Provider Type	Reimbursement
		Methodology
PPO 750	OON Facility	200% of Medicare
	OON Provider	50% of Fair Health
PPO 1500	OON Facility	200% of Medicare
	OON Provider	50% of Fair Health
PPO 2500	OON Facility	200% of Medicare
	OON Provider	50% of Fair Health
Out-of-Area Option	OON Facility	300% of Medicare
	OON Provider	80% of Fair Health

Under the PPO 750 and Out-of-Area Options, once the family annual Deductible has been satisfied, all members of your family are eligible for reimbursement of Eligible Medical Expenses, regardless of whether they have satisfied *individual* annual Deductibles. Please note that you are not required to satisfy the Family Deductible in order for the Plan to begin paying a percentage of covered expenses. Once a covered person meets his/her individual Deductible, the medical option will pay the appropriate percentage. Refer to Medical Plan Comparison for more information regarding individual and family Deductibles.

Claims: Participating PPO Providers typically file claims for you; however, in some cases, you may be required to pay for services in advance and file a claim to receive reimbursement. You will need to file a claim if you receive services from an out-of-Network Provider or facility.

Annual out-of-pocket maximum: The Plan has two separate out-of-pocket maximums – one for innetwork services and one for out-of-Network services. After you satisfy the annual out-of-pocket maximum for Eligible Expenses for in-network services under the option you have selected for coverage, the medical option pays 100% of in-network Eligible Expenses for the rest of the year. After you satisfy the annual out-of-pocket maximum for Eligible Expenses for out-of-Network services under the option you have selected for coverage, the medical option pays 100% of out-of-Network Eligible Expenses for the rest of the year.

 Under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500 and Out-of-Area Options, all amounts applied to the Deductible, Copayments, and Coinsurance amounts, apply to the annual out-of-pocket maximum.

Pre-authorization: Call your Network/claim administrator in the following situations:

- To pre-authorize a surgery or hospitalization.
- If you are using out-of-Network services, you must call your Network/claims administrator to pre-authorize any surgery or hospitalization.
- If you need Emergency care, you should contact your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours after you receive initial care to ensure that your claim is processed at the in-Network benefit level as soon as possible.
- **Injury by others:** If someone else injures you and this Plan pays a benefit, the Company will recover payment from the third party. (This practice is known as *Subrogation*, which is described in more detail under "Claims" in the *Plan Administration* section.)

Prescription drug benefits: The PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options cover Medically Necessary Prescription drugs purchased at any retail pharmacy and offer discounted prescriptions at participating Express Scripts Network pharmacies, including prescriptions for psychotherapeutic drugs. **Please note that you will pay an additional \$5 per Prescription if you use a retail pharmacy that is not part of the Express Advantage Network.** Please see "Retail Drug Coverage" for more information.

Smart90 Retail Pick-up Option – Smart90 allows you to pick up your long term medications at participating network pharmacies at mail order rates*.

How Smart90 works:

Obtain a 90-day RX from your provider.

Locate a participating pharmacy that can fill a 90-day prescription by contacting ESI or visiting their website at https://www.express-scripts.com/.

Drop off or have your provider call in your RX and pick it up when it's ready.

*If you are enrolled in the PPO 750 option, the \$50 retail deductible applies to the Smart90 option. You will be charged the mail order rates once the \$50 retail deductible is met. For PPO 1500 & PPO 2500, the medical deductible applies – no separate RX deductible applies.

The PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options cover Medically Necessary prescriptions with Copayments or Coinsurance after satisfaction of the Deductible when purchased at a participating retail pharmacy (up to a 30-day supply). (The PPO 750 and Out-of-Area Options have an annual \$50 per person retail Deductible. Under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options, the overall medical Deductible also applies to retail and mail pharmacy purchases.) When you visit a Network pharmacy, it is important that you provide your Prescription Drug ID card to ensure that your Coinsurance is based upon the Network price. If you visit an out-of-Network pharmacy, you must submit your receipts to Express Scripts. Prescriptions purchased at an out-of-Network pharmacy will be reimbursed based upon the Network discount price and you will be responsible for the difference.

Prescription drugs covered by the Medical Benefit Options are described in "<u>Covered Expenses</u>." Refer to "<u>Prescription Drug Benefits</u>" for a description of the Prescription drug benefit and to "<u>Excluded Expenses</u>" for a list of drugs not covered by the medical options.

Medical Benefit Options Comparison

The following tables provide a summary of features under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options. Benefits are available for Eligible Expenses that are Medically Necessary.

The tables show the amount or percentage you pay for Eligible Expenses, and you pay any amounts not covered by the options. If you are covered under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, or Out-of-Area Options and you use hospital-based services or services that require Coinsurance, you must satisfy the individual or family annual Deductible before the option pays benefits for Eligible Expenses.

As you review the following Comparison of Options tables, please keep the following points in mind:

- The out-of-pocket maximum under the medical options applies to coinsurance amounts you pay (i.e., for hospital services, including Inpatient and Outpatient care and surgery) as well as flat dollar co-payments. The out-of-pocket maximum also includes Deductibles, but it does not include amounts not covered, or amounts exceeding Plan's reimbursement rate for out-of-Network services.
- Visit your Network/claims administrator website or call to determine if your Physician is a Network Provider.

For information regarding Eligible Medical Expenses and expenses that are excluded from coverage, refer to "Covered Expenses" and "Excluded Expenses."

PPO 750 Option

Facts about the PPO 750 Option

- Coinsurance applies once you have satisfied your individual Deductible. Coinsurance amounts (Medical and RX) apply towards the out-of-pocket maximum.
- The individual deductible applies to each covered person. The family deductible is met when two covered persons meet their individual deductible (in-network).
- \$50 per person retail prescription drug deductible per year.
- Certain Preventive medications bypass the Deductible; however copays/Coinsurance still applies.

DEDUCTIBLES/MAXIMUMS		
Individual Annual Deductible	\$750	\$1,500
Family Annual Deductible	\$1,500	\$4,500
Individual Annual Out-of- Pocket Maximum	\$4,950	\$9,900
Family Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum	\$9,900	\$21,300
PREVENTATIVE CARE		
Annual Routine Physical Exam	\$0	Not Covered
Adult Immunizations	\$0	Not Covered
Pap Test	\$0	40% Coinsurance if Medically Necessary: routine pap tests are not covered OON
Screening Mammogram According to Age Guidelines	\$0	Not Covered
(Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond-once every year.)		
PSA Screening and Colorectal Screening (According to age guidelines – routine coverage begins at age 50.)	\$0	Not Covered
Well Child Office Visits and Immunizations	\$0	Not Covered
(Birth to age 18, initial hospitalization, all immunizations. Up to 7 well child visits, birth to age 2.)		
MEDICAL SERVICES – All se	rvices must be Medically Necessar	ry
Primary Care Physician's Office Visit	\$25 Copayment	40% Coinsurance
Specialist Office Visit	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$15 Copayment per virtual visit	Not Covered

Gynecological Care Visit	\$25 Copayment	40% Coinsurance if Medically Necessary preventive care is not covered OON
Diagnostic Mammogram According to Age Guidelines, (Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond – once every year.)	\$0 if part of office visit or at a non-hospital imaging center; otherwise 20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Prenatal Care	\$25 Copayment	40% Coinsurance
	If your obstetrician refers you to a perinatologist, a 20% Coinsurance charge will apply once you've met your Deductible.	If your obstetrician refers you to a perinatologist, a 60% Coinsurance charge will apply once you've met your out-of-Network Deductible.
Pregnancy – Delivery by Obstetrician	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Second Surgical Opinion	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Urgent Care Center Visit	\$50 Copayment	40% Coinsurance
Chiropractic Care Visit	20% Coinsurance (max of 20 visits per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined per covered family member)	40% Coinsurance (max of 20 visits per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined)
Speech, Physical, Occupational, Restorative, and Rehabilitative Therapy Educational Services are not covered, except for ABA Therapy	20% Coinsurance	Not Covered
Allergy Testing, Shots or Serum	\$0 if administered in the Physician's office. Deductible and Coinsurance applies only if office visit is billed.	40% Coinsurance
Diagnostic X-ray and Lab	\$0 if part of office visit or at a non-hospital imaging center. Otherwise, 20% Coinsurance after Deductible.	40% Coinsurance
OUTPATIENT SERVICES – A	ll services must be Medically Nec	essary
Outpatient Surgery in Physician's Office	\$25 copay PCP office; otherwise 20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance

Outpatient Surgery in a Hospital or Free Standing Surgical Facility (Including anesthesia and Medically Necessary assistant	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
surgeon)		
Pre-admission Testing	\$0 if part of office visit or at a non-hospital facility, otherwise 20% Coinsurance.	40% Coinsurance
HOSPITAL SERVICES – All se	ervices must be Medically Necessa	nry
Inpatient Room and Board (Including intensive care unit or special care unit)	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Ancillary Services (Including x-rays, pathology, operating room, and supplies)	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Newborn Nursery Care (Considered under the baby's coverage, not the mother's. You must add the baby on-line via my.envoyair.com within 30 days or these charges will not be covered.)	20% Coinsurance (separate calendar year Deductible applies to baby)	40% Coinsurance (separate calendar year Deductible applies to baby)
Inpatient Physician Services, Surgery, Anesthesia, and Medically Necessary Assistant Surgeon	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Bariatric Surgery (Covered in-Network only)	20% Coinsurance	Not Covered
Blood Transfusion	\$0 if performed in Physician's office. Otherwise 20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Organ Transplant	20% Coinsurance 10% if you use a Blue Distinction Center provider	40% Coinsurance
Emergency Ambulance	\$0	\$0
Emergency Room (Hospital) Visit	20% Coinsurance	Emergency Services: 20% Coinsurance All other services received in a
		All other services received in a hospital Emergency room: 40% Coinsurance

Convalescent and Skilled Nursing Facility Following Hospitalization	20% Coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization.	40% Coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization.
Home Health Care Visit	\$25 Copayment per day	40% Coinsurance
Hospice Care	20% Coinsurance if performed at a hospital; \$25 Copayment per day if home care	40% Coinsurance
OTHER SERVICES		
Vasectomy (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Tubal Ligation (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)	\$0	40% Coinsurance
Infertility Treatment (Including in-vitro fertilization)	20% Coinsurance Lifetime maximum of \$25,000 applies	Not Covered
Radiation Therapy	No cost if performed in a Physician's office; 20% Coinsurance if performed at a hospital	40% Coinsurance
Chemotherapy	No cost if performed in a Physician's office; 20% Coinsurance if performed in a hospital or freestanding facility	40% Coinsurance
Kidney Dialysis (If the dialysis continues more than 12 months, participants must apply for Medicare)	No cost if performed in a Physician's office; otherwise 20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Supplies, Equipment, and Durable Medical Equipment (DME)	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Hearing Aids	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 20% Coinsurance	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 40% Coinsurance

MENTAL HEALTH AND CHE	EMICAL DEPENDENCY	
Inpatient Mental Health Care	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Alternative Mental Health Center – Residential Treatment	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Alternative Mental Health Care Center – Intensive Outpatient and Partial Hospitalization	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Outpatient Mental Health Care Visit	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$15 Copayment per virtual visit	Not Covered
Marriage Counseling	Not Covered	Not Covered
Detoxification	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Chemical Dependency Inpatient Rehabilitation	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
Chemical Dependency Outpatient Rehabilitation	20% Coinsurance	40% Coinsurance
PRESCRIPTION MEDICATION	DNS	
Retail Deductible	\$50 per person per calendar year	\$50 per person per calendar year

Retail Refill Allowance (RRA)	Applies to maintenance Prescription drugs. The first three times that you purchase a maintenance drug at a participating retail pharmacy, you may pay your retail copay or co-insurance. The Plan does not cover maintenance drugs at the retail pharmacy after the third refill so you will be required to pay 100% of the drug's cost and the amount you pay will not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum. You must move your maintenance medications to Express Scripts' mail order pharmacy or Smart90 retail pickup option to receive coverage after your third fill to receive coverage after your third fill.	
Retail Pharmacy (Up to a 30 day supply)	Generic: 20% Coinsurance (\$10 Min/\$50 Max) Preferred Brand: 30% Coinsurance (\$35 Min/\$100 Max) Non-Preferred Brand: 50% Coinsurance (\$50 Min/\$125 Max) An additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy	Drug reimbursement is based on Network pricing
Smart90 (90-day supply)	The \$50 Retail deductible applies. After your retail deductible is met, you will pay the mail order rates for your prescriptions at participating Smart90 pharmacies. To locate a participating pharmacy, contact ESI at 866-544-2994 or visit their website at https://www.express-scripts.com/	

Mail Service Pharmacy (Up to a 90 day supply)	Generic: 20% Coinsurance (\$25 Min/\$125 Max) Preferred Brand: 30% Coinsurance (\$75 Min/\$200 Max) Non-Preferred Brand: 50% Coinsurance (\$125 Min/\$275 Max)	Not Covered
Prescription-filled Contraceptives	Oral Contraceptives, transdermal, and intravaginal contraceptives covered at 100% at mail order only. This includes both generic and brand name contraceptives. You will be responsible for the cost difference between generic and brand name medications if you select a brand name contraceptive that has a generic equivalent, unless your health care Provider determines that a generic contraceptive would be medically inappropriate. The cost difference you pay does not count toward your out-of-pocket maximum.	Not Covered
Prescription Drug Information	If you select a brand name drug when a generic equivalent is available, you will pay the generic 20% Coinsurance plus the cost difference between brand and generic prices. Maximums do not apply in this situation and the cost difference you pay does not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum.	
Insulin	\$25 for 30-day supply; \$75 for 90-day supply (drug formulary posted on my.envoyair.com)	Not Covered
Infertility Medications	Lifetime maximum of \$15,000 applies	Not Covered
Over-the-counter Medication	Not Covered unless required by the Affordable Care Act	Not Covered unless required by the Affordable Care Act
OTHER INFORMATION		

Pre-determination of Benefits (See Prior Authorization)	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out-of-Network.	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out-of-Network
Hospital Preauthorization (See Prior Authorization)	Required before hospitalization and recommended before Outpatient surgery. Call your Network/claims administrator for more information.	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out-of-Network. Call your Network/claims administrator for more information.

PPO 1500 Option

Facts about the PPO 1500 Option

- Coinsurance applies once you have satisfied the Deductible.
- Coinsurance amounts (Medical and RX) apply towards the out-of-pocket maximum.
- If more than one person is covered, the family Deductible must be satisfied before coinsurance applies.
- If more than one person is covered, the family OOP maximum must be met before the individuals covered in the family plan will receive 100% coverage. However, an individual covered in a family plan will receive 100% coverage after that individual reaches the Plan's out-of-pocket maximum for individuals enrolled in a family plan (\$6,650 for 2020), unless such individual changes benefit options mid-year pursuant to a HIPAA special enrollment right. Note that the Plan's limit is lower than the Affordable Care Act's out-of-pocket maximum for self-only coverage, which is \$8,150 for 2020.

DEDUCTIBLES/MAXIMUMS		
Individual Annual Deductible	\$1,500	\$3,000
(If more than one person is covered, the individual Deductible will not apply)		
Family Annual Deductible	\$3,000	\$6,000
(If more than one person is covered under this option, the Family Deductible applies to all family members.)	True Family Deductible	True Family Deductible
Individual Annual Out-of- Pocket Maximum	\$4,500	\$9,000
(If more than one person is covered, the individual Out-of-Pocket maximum will not apply)		
Family Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum	\$12,900	\$25,800
(If more than one person is covered under this option, the Family Out-of-Pocket Maximum applies to all members of the family.)		
PREVENTATIVE CARE – All	services must be Medically Nece	ssary
Annual Routine Physical Exam	\$0	Not Covered
Adult Immunizations	\$0	Not Covered
Pap Test	\$0	40% coinsurance if Medically Necessary: routine pap tests are not covered OON
Screening Mammogram According to Age Guidelines (Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond-once every year.)	\$0	Not Covered
PSA Screening and Colorectal Screening (According to age guidelinesroutine coverage begins at age 50.)	\$0	Not Covered

Well Child Office Visits and Immunizations (Birth to age 18, initial hospitalization, all immunizations. Up to 7 well child visits, birth to age 2.)	\$0	Not Covered
MEDICAL SERVICES – All se	rvices must be Medically Necessa	nry
Primary Care Physician's Office Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Specialist Office Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$44	Not Covered
Gynecological Care Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance if Medically Necessary preventive care is not covered OON
Diagnostic Mammogram According to Age Guidelines (Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond – once every year)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Prenatal Care	20% coinsurance Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services under the Affordable Care Act	40% coinsurance
Pregnancy – Delivery by Obstetrician	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Second Surgical Opinion	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Urgent Care Center Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Chiropractic Care Visit	20% coinsurance (max of 20 visits per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined per covered family member)	40% coinsurance (max of 20 visits per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined)
Speech, Physical, Occupational, Restorative, and Rehabilitative Therapy	20% coinsurance	Not Covered
Educational Services are not covered, except for ABA Therapy		

Allergy Testing, Shots or Serum	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Diagnostic X-ray and Lab	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
OUTPATIENT SERVICES – A	ll services must be Medically Nec	essary
Outpatient Surgery in Physician's Office	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Outpatient Surgery in a Hospital or Free Standing Surgical Facility (Including anesthesia and	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Medically Necessary assistant surgeon)		
Pre-admission Testing	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
HOSPITAL SERVICES – All se	ervices must be Medically Necessa	ary
Inpatient Room and Board (Including intensive care unit or special care unit)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Ancillary Services (Including x-rays, pathology, operating room, and supplies)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Newborn Nursery Care (Considered under the baby's coverage, not the mother's. You must add the baby on-line via my.envoyair.com within 30 days or these charges will not be covered.)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Inpatient Physician Services, Surgery, Anesthesia, and Medically Necessary Assistant Surgeon	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Bariatric Surgery	20% coinsurance	Not Covered
(Covered in-Network only)		
Blood Transfusion	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Organ Transplant	20% coinsurance 10% if you use a Blue Distinction Center provider	40% coinsurance
Emergency Ambulance	20% coinsurance	20% coinsurance
Emergency Room (Hospital) Visit	20% coinsurance	Emergency: 20% coinsurance Non-Emergency: 40% coinsurance

OUT-OF-HOSPITAL CARE –	All services must be Medically Ne	ecessary
Convalescent and Skilled Nursing Facility Following Hospitalization	20% coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization.	40% coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization.
Home Health Care Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Hospice Care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
OTHER SERVICES		
Vasectomy (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Tubal Ligation (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)	\$0	40% coinsurance
Infertility Treatment (Including in-vitro fertilization)	20% coinsurance* *Lifetime Maximum \$25,000 applies	Not Covered
Radiation Therapy	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Chemotherapy	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Kidney Dialysis (if the dialysis continues more than 12 months, participants must apply for Medicare)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Supplies, Equipment, and Durable Medical Equipment (DME)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Hearing Aids	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 20% coinsurance	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 40% coinsurance
MENTAL HEALTH AND CHE	EMICAL DEPENDENCY	
Inpatient Mental Health Care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Alternative Mental Health Center – Residential Treatment	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance

Alternative Mental Health Care Center – Intensive Outpatient and Partial Hospitalization	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Outpatient Mental Health Care Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$44 per virtual visit, until your deductible is met, then 20% coinsurance applies	\$0
Marriage Counseling	Not Covered	Not Covered
Detoxification	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Chemical Dependency Inpatient Rehabilitation	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Chemical Dependency Outpatient Rehabilitation	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
PRESCRIPTION MEDICATION	DNS	
Pharmacy Deductible (Retail and Mail Order)	Prescriptions are subject to the Deductible; however, certain preventive prescriptions bypass the Deductible – contact Express Scripts for more information	Prescriptions are subject to the Deductible; however, certain preventive prescriptions bypass the Deductible – contact Express Scripts for more information

Retail Refill Allowance (RRA)	Applies to maintenance Prescription drugs. The first three times that you purchase a maintenance drug at a participating retail pharmacy, you may pay your retail copay or co-insurance. The Plan does not cover maintenance drugs at the retail pharmacy after the third refill so you will be required to pay 100% of the drug's cost and the amount you pay will not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum. You must move your maintenance medications to Express Scripts' mail order pharmacy or Smart90 retail pickup option to receive coverage after your third fill to receive coverage after your third fill.	
Retail Pharmacy (Up to a 30 day supply)	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$10 Min/\$50 Max) Preferred Brand: 30% coinsurance (\$35 Min/\$100 Max) Non-Preferred Brand: 50% coinsurance (\$50 Min/\$125 Max) An additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy	Drug reimbursement at an OON pharmacy is based on Network pricing
Retail Pharmacy (Smart90) (90-day supply)	The \$50 Retail deductible applies After your retail deductible is met, you will pay the mail order rates for your prescriptions at participating Smart90 pharmacies. To locate a participating pharmacy, contact ESI at 866-544-2994 or visit their website at https://www.express-scripts.com/	

Mail Service Pharmacy (Up to a 90 day supply)	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$25 Min/\$125 Max) Preferred Brand: 30% coinsurance (\$75 Min/\$200 Max) Non-Preferred Brand: 50% coinsurance (\$125 Min/\$275 Max)	Not Covered
Prescription-filled Contraceptives	Oral Contraceptives, transdermal, and intravaginal contraceptives covered at 100% at mail order only. This includes both generic and brand name contraceptives. You will be responsible for the cost difference between generic and brand name medications if you select a brand name contraceptive that has a generic equivalent, unless your health care Provider determines that a generic contraceptive would be medically inappropriate. The cost difference you pay does not count toward your out-of-pocket maximum.	Not Covered
Prescription Drug Information	If you select a brand name drug when a generic equivalent is available, you will pay the generic 20% coinsurance plus the cost difference between brand and generic prices. Maximums do not apply in this situation and the cost difference you pay does not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum.	
Insulin	\$25 for 30-day supply; \$75 for 90-day supply (Drug Formulary posted on my.envoyair.com)	Not Covered
Infertility Medications	Lifetime maximum of \$15,000 applies	Not Covered
Over-the-counter Medication	Not Covered unless required by the Affordable Care Act	Not Covered unless required by the Affordable Care Act
OTHER INFORMATION		

Pre-determination of Benefits (See Prior Authorization)	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out- of-Network. Call BCBS for more information.	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out-of-Network. Call BCBS for more information.
(See Prior Authorization)	Required before hospitalization and recommended before Outpatient surgery. Call BCBS for more information.	Recommended before hospitalization and surgery for all plans, for Network and out-of-Network. Call BCBS for more information.

PPO 2500 Option

Facts about the PPO 2500 Option

- Coinsurance applies once you have satisfied the Deductible.
- Coinsurance amounts (Medical and RX) apply towards the out-of-pocket maximum.
- If more than one person is covered, the family Deductible must be satisfied before coinsurance applies.
- *If more than one person is covered, the family OOP maximum must be met before the individuals covered in the family plan will receive 100% coverage. However, an individual covered in a family plan will receive 100% coverage after that individual reaches the Plan's out-of-pocket maximum for individuals enrolled in a family plan (\$6,650 for 2020), unless such individual changes benefit options mid-year pursuant to a HIPAA special enrollment right. Note that the Plan's limit is lower than the Affordable Care Act's out-of-pocket maximum for self-only coverage, which is \$8,150 for 2020.
- Certain Preventive medications bypass the Deductible; however, copays/coinsurance still applies.

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network
DEDUCTIBLES/MAXIMUMS		
Individual Annual Deductible	\$2,500	\$5,000
(If more than one person is		
covered, the individual		
Deductible will not apply)		
Family Annual Deductible	\$5,000	\$10,000
(If more than one person is	True Family Deductible	True Family Deductible
covered, the individual		
Deductible will not apply)		
Individual Annual Out-of-	\$6,450	\$12,900
Pocket Maximum		
(If more than one person is		
covered, the individual Out-of-		
Pocket maximum will not		
apply)		
Family Annual Out-of-Pocket	\$12,900*	\$25,800
Maximum		
(If more than one person is		
covered under this option, the		
Family Out-of-Pocket		
Maximum applies to all		
members of the family.)		
PREVENTATI	VE CARE – All services must b	e Medically Necessary
Annual Routine Physical	\$0	Not Covered
Exam		
Adult Immunizations	\$0	Not Covered
Pap Test	\$0	40% coinsurance if Medically
		Necessary: routine pap tests are not covered OON

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Screening Mammogram According to Age Guidelines (Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond-once every year)	\$0	Not Covered
PSA Screening and Colorectal Screening (According to age guidelines- routine coverage begins at age 50)	\$0	Not Covered
Well Child Office Visits and Immunizations (Birth to age 18, initial hospitalization, all immunizations. Up to 7 well child visits, birth to age 2)	\$0	Not Covered
	CRVICES – All services must be M	
Primary Care Physician's Office Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Specialist Office Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$44 per virtual visit, until your deductible met, then 20% coinsurance applies	Not Covered
Gynecological Care Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance if Medically Necessary preventive care is not covered OON
Diagnostic Mammogram According to Age Guidelines (Age 35 thru 39-one every 1-2 years. Age 40 thru 49 as recommended by Physician. Age 50 and beyond – once every year)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Prenatal Care	\$20% coinsurance Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services under the Affordable Care Act	40% coinsurance
Pregnancy – Delivery by Obstetrician	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Second Surgical Opinion	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Urgent Care Center Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Chiropractic Care Visit	20% coinsurance (max of 20	40% coinsurance
	visits per year in-Network and	(max of 20 visits per year in-Network
	out-of-Network combined per	and out-of-Network combined)
Speech, Physical,	covered family member) 20% coinsurance	Not covered
Occupational, Restorative, and	20% consurance	Not covered
Rehabilitative Therapy		
Educational Services are not		
covered, except for ABA		
Therapy		
Allergy Testing, Shots or Serum	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Diagnostic X-ray and Lab	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
OUTPATIENT	SERVICES – All services must be	e Medically Necessary
Outpatient Surgery in	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Physician's Office		
Outpatient Surgery in a	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Hospital or Free Standing		
Surgical Facility		
(Including anesthesia and		
Medically Necessary assistant		
surgeon)	200/	400/
Pre-admission Testing	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
	ERVICES – All services must be	<u> </u>
Inpatient Room and Board	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
(Including intensive care unit or		
special care unit)	200/	100/
Ancillary Services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
(Including x-rays, pathology,		
operating room, and supplies)	200/ 2011-1-1-1	400/ 00:
Newborn Nursery Care (Considered under the baby's	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
coverage, not the mother's. You		
must add the baby on-line via		
my.envoyair.com within 30		
days or these charges will not be		
covered.)		
Inpatient Physician Services,	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance
Surgery, Anesthesia, and		
Medically Necessary Assistant		
Surgeon		
Bariatric Surgery	20% coinsurance	Not covered
(Covered in-Network only)		
Blood Transfusion	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Organ Transplant	20% coinsurance 10% if you use a Blue Distinction Center provider	40% coinsurance	
Emergency Ambulance	20% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	
Emergency Room (Hospital) Visit	20% coinsurance	Emergency: 20% coinsurance Non-Emergency: 40% coinsurance	
OUT-OF-HOSPI	TAL CARE – All services must b	e Medically Necessary	
Convalescent and Skilled Nursing Facility Following Hospitalization	20% coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization. 40% coinsurance Max of 60 days (combined Network and out-of-Network care) per illness or injury. SNF admission must occur within 15 days of IP hospitalization.		
Home Health Care Visit	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Hospice Care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
	OTHER SERVICES		
Vasectomy (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Tubal Ligation (Reversals are only covered if related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits offered under the Plan)			
Infertility Treatment (Including in-vitro fertilization)	20% coinsurance Not Covered Lifetime Maximum \$25,000 applies		
Radiation Therapy	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Chemotherapy	20% coinsurance 40% coinsurance		
Kidney Dialysis (If the dialysis continues more than 12 months, participants must apply for Medicare)	20% coinsurance 40% coinsurance		
Supplies, Equipment, and Durable Medical Equipment (DME)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Hearing Aids	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 20% coinsurance	\$3500 allowable per hearing aid. Replacement allowed every 36 months. 40% coinsurance	
MENTAI	L HEALTH AND CHEMICAL D	EPENDENCY	

PPO 2500 Plan Features	Plan Features In-Network Out-of-Network		
Inpatient Mental Health Care	20% coinsurance 40% coinsurance		
Alternative Mental Health	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Center – Residential Treatment			
Alternative Mental Health	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Care Center – Intensive			
Outpatient and Partial			
Hospitalization			
Outpatient Mental Health Care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Visit			
TeleHealth/MDLive	\$44 per virtual visit, until your	Not Covered	
	deductible met, then 20%		
	coinsurance applies		
Marriage Counseling	Not Covered	Not Covered	
Detoxification	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Chemical Dependency Inpatient Rehabilitation	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
Chemical Dependency Outpatient Rehabilitation	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
	PRESCRIPTION MEDICATION	DNS	
Pharmacy Deductible (Retail	Prescriptions are subject to the	Prescriptions are subject to the	
and Mail Order)	Deductible; however, certain	Deductible; however, certain	
,	preventive prescriptions bypass	preventive prescriptions bypass the	
	the Deductible – contact	Deductible – contact Express Scripts	
	Express Scripts for more information	for more information	

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Retail Refill Allowance (RRA)	Applies to maintenance Prescription drugs. The first three times that you purchase a maintenance drug at a participating retail pharmacy, you may pay your retail copay or co-insurance. The Plan does not cover maintenance drugs at the retail pharmacy after the third refill so you will be required to pay 100% of the drug's cost and the amount you pay will not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum. You must move your maintenance medications to Express Scripts' mail order pharmacy or Smart90 retail pickup option to receive coverage after your third fill to receive coverage after your third	
	fill.	
Retail Pharmacy (Up to a 30 day supply)	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$10 Min/\$50 Max) Preferred Brand: 30% coinsurance (\$35 Min/\$100 Max) Non-Preferred Brand: 50% coinsurance (\$50 Min/\$125 Max) An additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy	Drug reimbursement at an OON pharmacy is based on Network pricing

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Retail Pharmacy (Smart90)	The \$50 Retail deductible	
(90-day supply)	applies.	
	After your retail deductible is	
	met, you will pay the mail order	
	rates for your prescriptions at	
	participating Smart90	
	pharmacies.	
	To locate a participating	
	pharmacy, contact ESI at 866-	
	544-2994 or visit their website	
	at https://www.express- scripts.com/	
14 '16 ' N	*	N + C 1
Mail Service Pharmacy (Up to a 90 day supply)	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$25 Min/\$125 Max)	Not Covered
(Up to a 90 day supply)	Preferred Brand: 30%	
	coinsurance (\$75 Min/\$200	
	Max)	
	Non-Preferred Brand: 50%	
	coinsurance (\$125 Min/\$275	
	Max)	
Prescription-filled	Oral Contraceptives,	Not Covered
Contraceptives	transdermal, and intravaginal	
	contraceptives covered at 100%	
	at mail order only. This includes	
	both generic and brand name contraceptives. You will be	
	responsible for the cost	
	difference between generic and	
	brand name medications if you	
	select a brand name	
	contraceptive that has a generic	
	equivalent, unless your health	
	care Provider determines that a	
	generic contraceptive would be	
	medically inappropriate. The cost difference you pay does not	
	count toward your out-of-pocket	
	maximum.	
Prescription Drug Information	If you select a brand name drug	
	when a generic equivalent is	
	available, you will pay the	
	generic 20% coinsurance plus	
	the cost difference between	
	brand and generic prices. Maximums do not apply in this	
	situation and the cost difference	
	you pay does not count towards	
	your out-of-pocket maximum.	

PPO 2500 Plan Features	In-Network Out-of-Network		
Insulin	\$25 for a 30-day supply; \$75 for	Not Covered	
	a 90-day supply		
	(Drug formulary posted on		
	my.envoyair.com)		
Infertility Medications	Lifetime maximum of \$15,000	Not Covered	
	applies		
Over-the-counter Medication	Not Covered unless required by	Not Covered unless required by the	
	the Affordable Care Act Affordable Care Act		
	OTHER INFORMATION		
Pre-determination of Benefits	Recommended before	Recommended before hospitalization	
(See <u>Prior Authorization</u>)	hospitalization and surgery for	and surgery for all plans, for Network	
	all plans, for Network and out-	and out-of-Network	
	of-Network		
Hospital Preauthorization	Required before hospitalization	Recommended before hospitalization	
(See <u>Prior Authorization</u>)	and recommended before	and surgery for all plans, for Network	
	Outpatient surgery	and out-of-Network	

Out of Area Coverage Option

Out of Area Coverage Option	
OOA Plan Features	In-Network and Out-of-Network
DEDUCTIBLES/MAXIMUMS	
Individual Annual Deductible	\$750
(If more than one person is	
covered, the individual	
Deductible will not apply)	
Family Annual Deductible	\$1,500
(If more than one person is	
covered, the individual	
Deductible will not apply)	
Individual/Family Annual Out-	\$4,950/\$9,900
of-Pocket Maximum	
PREVENTIVE CARE	
Annual Routine Physical	Covered at 100%
Exam, Including Well Woman	
Exam	
Adult Immunizations	Covered at 100%
Pap Test	Covered at 100%
Screening Mammogram as	Covered at 100%
described in the USPSTF A or	
B recommendations	C 1 + 1000/
PSA Screening and Colorectal	Covered at 100%
Screening	
as described in the USPSTF A	
or B recommendations	C1-+1000/
Well Child Office Visits and Immunizations	Covered at 100%
(Preventive Care based on	
USPSTF Grade A & B	
recommendations and CDC	
guidelines)	
MEDICAL SERVICES	
Primary Care Physician's	20% coinsurance
Office Visit	2070 Combutance
Telemedicine/MDLive	20% coinsurance
Specialist Office Visit	20% coinsurance
~peciansi ojjice i isti	
Gynecological Care Visit	20% coinsurance
Diagnostic Mammogram	20% coinsurance (if Medically Necessary); routine Mammograms are
Diagnostic Mammogram	covered according to specific guidelines – refer to Mammograms in
	"Covered Expenses"
Pregnancy – Physician	20% coinsurance
Services	Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services under the Affordable Care
Services	Act
PSA and Colorectal Diagnostic	20% coinsurance
Exam	
Second Surgical Opinion	20% coinsurance
Grand of	

OOA Plan Features	In-Network and Out-of-Network
Urgent Care Center Visit	20% coinsurance
Chiropractic Care Visit	20% coinsurance (max of 20 visits per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined)
Speech, Physical,	20% coinsurance
Occupational, Restorative, and	
Rehabilitative Therapy	
Educational Services are not	
covered, except for ABA	
Therapy	200/
Acupuncture: Medically	20% coinsurance
Necessary Treatment	
(Performed by a Certified	
Acupuncturist) only when acupuncture treatment has been	
proven both safe and effective	
treatment for such diagnosed	
illness or injury	
Allergy Care	20% coinsurance
Diagnostic X-ray and Lab	20% coinsurance
OUTPATIENT SERVICES Outpatient Surgery in	20% coinsurance
Physician's Office	
Outpatient Surgery in a	20% coinsurance
Hospital or Free Standing Surgical Facility	
Pre-admission Testing	20% coinsurance
O O	
HOSPITAL SERVICES	
Inpatient Room and Board	20% coinsurance
(Including intensive care unit or	
special care unit)	
Ancillary Services	20% coinsurance
(Including x-rays, pathology,	
operating room, and supplies)	
Newborn Nursery Care	20% coinsurance
(Considered under the baby's	
coverage, not the mother's. You	
must add the baby on-line via	
my.envoyair.com within 30	
days or these charges will not be covered.)	
Inpatient Physician Services,	20% coinsurance
Surgery, Anesthesia, and	20/0 combatance
Suigery, Amesinesia, and	I .

OOA Plan Features	In-Network and Out-of-Network	
Medically Necessary Assistant		
Surgeon		
Blood Transfusion	20% coinsurance	
Organ Transplant	20% coinsurance	
	10% if you use a Blue Distinction Center provider	
Emergency Ambulance	20% coinsurance	
Emergency Room (Hospital) Visit	20% coinsurance	
OUT-OF-HOSPITAL CARE		
Convalescent and Skilled	20% coinsurance	
Nursing Facility Following Hospitalization	(max of 60 days per year in-Network and out-of-Network combined)	
Home Health Care Visit	20% coinsurance	
Home Infusion Therapy	20% coinsurance	
Hospice Care	20% coinsurance	
OTHER SERVICES		
Tubal Ligation or Vasectomy	Tubal ligation covered at 100%	
(Reversals are covered if related	Vasectomy: 20% coinsurance	
to the infertility or fertility		
promotion benefits offered		
under the Plan)	200/	
Infertility Treatment	20% coinsurance	
D I C TI	Lifetime maximum of \$25,000 applies	
Radiation Therapy	20% coinsurance	
Chemotherapy	20% coinsurance	
Kidney Dialysis	20% coinsurance	
(If the dialysis continues more		
than 12 months, participants		
must apply for Medicare)		
Supplies, Equipment, and	20% coinsurance	
Durable Medical Equipment		
(DME)	EMICAL DEPENDENCY	
MENTAL HEALTH AND CHI	EMICAL DEPENDENCY	
Inpatient Mental Health Care	20% coinsurance	
Alternative Mental Health Center	20% coinsurance	
Outpatient Mental Health Care Visit	20% coinsurance	
Marriage Counseling	Not Covered	

OOA Plan Features	In-Network and Out-of-Network	
Detoxification	20% coinsurance	
(See details under "Covered	2070 Comsurance	
Expenses")		
Chemical Dependency	20% coinsurance	
Inpatient Chemical	20% coinsurance	
Dependency Rehabilitation		
Outpatient Chemical	20% coinsurance	
Dependency Rehabilitation		
Telehealth/MDLive	20% coinsurance	
PRESCRIPTION MEDICATION	ONS	
Pharmacy Deductible – Retail	\$50 per person per calendar year	
Retail Pharmacy	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$10 Min/\$50 Max)	
(Up to a 30 day supply)	Preferred Brand: 30% coinsurance (\$35 Min/\$100 Max)	
	Non-Preferred Brand: 50% (\$50 Min/\$125 Max)	
	If you select a brand-name drug when a generic equivalent is available,	
	you will pay the 20% generic co-insurance, plus the cost difference	
	between the generic and brand prices. Maximums do not apply.	
	An additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network	
	pharmacy	
Mail Service Pharmacy	Generic: 20% coinsurance (\$25 Min/\$125 Max)	
(Up to a 90 day supply)	Preferred Brand: 30% coinsurance (\$75 Min/\$200 Max)	
	Non-Preferred Brand: 50% coinsurance (\$125 Min/\$275 Max)	
	If you select a brand-name drug when a generic equivalent is available,	
	you will pay the 20% generic co-insurance, plus the cost difference	
	between the generic and brand prices. Maximums do not apply.	
Retail Pharmacy (Smart90)	The \$50 Retail deductible applies	
(90-day supply)	After your retail deductible is met, you will pay the mail order rates for your prescriptions at participating Smart90 pharmacies	
	To locate a participating pharmacy, contact ESI at 866-544-2994 or visit	
	their website at https://www.express-scripts.com/	
Retail Service Pharmacy	Member pays 100% of cost for maintenance drugs starting with 4th fill	
(Up to a 90 day supply)	at retail	
For Long-Term medications	Move your maintenance medications to the Express Scripts Mail Order	
(taken for 3 months or more)	pharmacy prior to your fourth fill to receive coverage.	
beginning with 4th fill.	Canaria and contracentives transdomest and introvesing tenter and in-	
Oral Contraceptives (Available only thru mail	Generic oral contraceptives, transdermal and intravaginal contraceptives	
(Available only thru mail service)	are covered by mail only at 100% with no co-pay or co-insurance. If a brand contraceptive has a generic equivalent, you will be responsible for	
SCI VICE)	the cost difference between the generic and brand prices, unless your	
	health care Provider determines that a generic contraceptive would be	
	medically inappropriate.	
Insulin	\$25 for a 30-day supply; \$75 for a 90-day supply	
Infertility Medication	Lifetime maximum of \$15,000 applies	
Over-the-counter Medication	Not Covered (Certain preventative OTC medications are covered as	
Orei-ine-counter memcanon	required by the Affordable Care Act)	
	required by the Ambidable Care Act)	

OOA Plan Features	In-Network and Out-of-Network
OTHER INFORMATION	·
Predetermination of benefits via your Network/claims	Call BCBS for a form, complete and mail
administrator	

Special Provisions

Missing Persons/Uncashed Checks: If the Network/claims administrator cannot locate a Plan participant, after making a reasonably diligent effort, including by giving written notice addressed to the Plan participant's last known address as shown by the records of the Network/claims administrator, the amount payable to the Plan participant is forfeited and shall be considered the property of the Plan. Plan Participants may contact the Network/claims administrator to request that forfeited benefits be reinstated. Similarly, unless otherwise provided in this EBG or other applicable governing documents, if a Participant fails to cash a check for benefits under the Plan within the time period noted on the check, or, if no time period indicated, within one year of issuance, the amount payable to the Participant is forfeited.

Specialists: Under the Medical Benefit Options, you may decide whether to use in-Network or out-of-Network Providers each and every time you need care. You also have the option of seeing any specialist Physician without a referral. However, when you use Network Providers, you receive a higher level of benefit, called in-Network benefits. If you need the care of a specialist and the Network in your area does not offer Providers in that specialty, you should contact your Network/claims administrator for approval to visit an out-of-Network specialist. Provided you have obtained approval from your Network/claims administrator, your out-of-Network care may be covered at the Network benefit level. If an approval is not obtained prior to the visit to the specialist, the visit will be covered out-of-Network.

For a detailed explanation of the eligible expenses and exclusions under the Medical Benefit Options, see "Covered Expenses" and "Excluded Expenses."

Individual annual Deductibles: For most covered expenses, the Deductible must be met before benefits are payable. The Deductible is satisfied with covered expenses that the Medical Benefit Option otherwise pays at a percentage (coinsurance) of the covered expense. You must pay all of the covered expense yourself until the amount you have paid equals the Deductible amount shown for the calendar year under the Medical Benefit Option that you are enrolled in – only then will the Medical Benefit Option begin to pay its percentage of covered expenses. If you are enrolled in the PPO 750 Option, and you are required to pay a flat dollar amount (copay) of the covered expense (e.g., PCP or Urgent Care), that dollar amount you pay for your copay does not count towards satisfaction of your Deductible. However, the copay amounts will apply to your out-of-pocket maximum.

Under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options, your Deductible applies toward eligible medical and Prescription drug expenses. Under the PPO 750 and Out-of-Area Options, you have a separate annual retail pharmacy Deductible that must be satisfied.

If you have elected medical coverage under the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Options, and you enroll at least one other family member with you in this coverage, the Individual Annual Deductible will not apply for any members of your family. All eligible expenses incurred and paid by covered family

members under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options will apply towards satisfaction of the Family Deductible.

Family annual Deductible: For most covered expenses, the Deductible must be met before benefits are payable. The Family Deductible is satisfied with covered expenses that the Medical Benefit Option otherwise pays at a percentage (coinsurance) of the covered expense. You must pay all of the covered expense yourself until the amount you have paid equals the individual annual Deductible amount shown for the calendar year under the Medical Benefit Option that you are enrolled in – the amount applied to each family member's individual annual Deductible also applies towards satisfaction of the Family Annual Deductible. Once the Family Annual Deductible amount has been satisfied, the Medical Benefit Option begins to pay its percentage of covered expenses for all family members. If you are enrolled in the PPO 750 Option, and you are required to pay a flat dollar amount (copay) of the covered expense (e.g., PCP or Urgent Care) that dollar amount you pay for your copay does not count towards satisfaction of your Deductible.

Under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options, your Deductible applies toward eligible medical and Prescription drug expenses. Under the PPO 750 and Out-of-Area Options, you have a separate annual retail pharmacy Deductible that must be satisfied.

If you have elected medical coverage under the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Options, and you enroll at least one other family member with you in this coverage, the Individual Annual Deductible will not apply for any members of your family. All eligible expenses incurred and paid by family members under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options will apply towards satisfaction of the Family Deductible.

Individual annual out-pocket-maximum: Only each covered individual's portion of covered expense can be used to meet his/her individual annual out-of-pocket maximum. Once the individual annual out-of-pocket is met for the calendar year, the Medical Benefit Option will pay 100% of covered expenses for the remainder of the calendar year. Copays, coinsurance, and Deductibles count toward satisfaction of the annual out-of-pocket maximum.

If you have elected medical coverage under the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Options, and you enroll at least one other family member with you in this coverage, the Individual Annual Out-of-Pocket will not apply to you and any members of your family enrolled in such coverage. The family deductible will apply. In general, an individual will not be required to pay more than the Plan's out of pocket maximum for self-only coverage in 2020 (\$6,650) unless an individual changes benefit options mid-year pursuant to a HIPAA special enrollment right. All eligible expenses incurred and paid by family members under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options will apply towards satisfaction of the Family Out-of-Pocket Maximum.

Family annual out-of-pocket maximum: Copay, coinsurance and Deductibles count towards satisfaction of the Family Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum. Once the Family Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum is met, the Plan pays covered expenses at 100% for all family members for the remainder of the calendar year.

If you have elected medical coverage under the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Options, and you enroll at least one other family member with you in this coverage, the Individual Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum will not apply for any members of your family. All eligible expenses incurred and paid by family members under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options will apply towards satisfaction of the Family Deductible. Once the Individual Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum for self-only coverage (\$6,650 for 2020) under the Plan has been satisfied, the Plan will pay covered expenses at 100% for

such Individual for the remainder of the calendar year, unless an individual changes benefit options mid-year pursuant to a HIPAA special enrollment right. All eligible expenses incurred and paid by family members under the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 Options will apply towards satisfaction of the Family Out-of-Pocket Maximum.

Medical Discount Program: The Medical Benefit Options offer a voluntary Preferred Provider Organization (PPO), which is a Network of Physicians, hospitals, and other medical service providers that have agreed to charge discounted fees for medical services. The Medical Discount Program helps save you and the Company money when you or a covered dependent needs medical care and chooses a participating Provider.

This discount is automatic when you present your Medical Benefit Option ID card to a PPO Provider, even if you are enrolled in the Out-of-Area Option. PPO Network Providers who contract with your Network/claims administrator agree to provide services and supplies at discounted rates. When you use a Network Provider, you are not responsible for the difference between the amount charged by the Network Provider and the amount allowed by their contractual agreement with your Network/claims administrator. Please keep in mind that some Providers charge more than others for the same services. For this reason, using a participating Provider may not always be the least expensive alternative. However, you will always receive a discount off that Provider's normal fees.

Contact your Network/claims administrator to learn more details about this Medical Discount Program feature or go to your Network/claims administrator's website for a list of PPO Providers in your area. Because these Network Providers may change, you should confirm that your Physician is part of the Network whenever you make an appointment.

Please keep in mind the following situations when using PPO Providers:

- If you go to a PPO hospital but receive services from a Physician who is not a PPO Provider, you receive the PPO discount for hospital charges, but the Physician's fee is not eligible for the discount.
- If you use a PPO Physician or hospital, charges for your lab services may not be eligible for the PPO discount if your Physician or hospital uses a lab that is not part of the PPO Network.
- Whenever possible, be sure to check with your Provider in advance to ensure you receive the maximum discount.

Out-of-Network Services

- Under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 Options, if you go to a Provider who is not part of the Network, you are still covered for eligible Medically Necessary services; however, coverage is at a lower level of benefits (out-of-Network benefit level) and you must first satisfy your out-of-Network Deductible.
- At the out-of-Network benefit level, you pay an annual per person per year Deductible and higher out-of-pocket coinsurance amounts for most services, the plan pays 60% and you pay the remaining 40% of covered out-of-Network charges, after you satisfy the annual Deductible. Additionally, you must pay any amount of the Provider's billed fee that exceeds the out-of-Network reimbursement rates, which are based upon a percentage of the Medicare allowable rate. Make sure you understand your financial obligation before you elect to go out-of-Network. Each time you or your covered dependent needs medical care, you choose whether to use a Network or out-of-Network Provider.

• Special rules apply for "Emergency" services as defined in the <u>Glossary</u>. In this case, you will pay the same coinsurance that applies to in-Network services. However, in some cases, the Provider may separately bill you for unreimbursed charges.

Primary Care Physicians

PCPs practice in pediatrics, family practice, general practice, gynecology, or internal medicine. You are encouraged to establish a relationship with a PCP. (If you are covered under the PPO 750 Option, you will pay a copay when you use a PCP or retail clinic.)

Care while traveling: If you have a medical Emergency while traveling, get medical attention immediately. If you need urgent (not Emergency) care, you should call your Network/claims administrator for a list of Network Providers and Urgent Care facilities. However, if it is after hours, seek treatment but call your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours. If you go to a Network Provider, you should only have to pay your Copayment or Deductible/coinsurance and your claim should be filed for you.

If you have a medical Emergency and go to an out-of-Network Provider, you or a family member should call your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours of your care to ensure that your claim is processed at the in-Network level as soon as possible. You will need to submit a claim, but are eligible for the Network level of benefits if you follow these procedures.

Continuing care: In the event you are newly enrolled in a Medical Benefit Option, and you or a covered family member has a serious illness, or you or your Spouse are in the 20th (or later) week of pregnancy, you may ask your Network/claims administrator to evaluate your need for continuing care. You may be eligible to continue with your current care Provider at the Network benefit level, even if that Provider is not part of the Network. Contact your Network/claims administrator for more information

Copayments vs. coinsurance: What you pay for eligible medical services depends on where you receive those services and the Medical Benefit Option you are covered under.

Deductibles: For eligible services, you pay an annual Deductible, whether in or out-of-Network.

Emergency care: If you have a medical Emergency, go directly to an Emergency facility. You or a family member must call your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours of your Emergency Services to be eligible for the Network benefit level. You should arrange any follow-up treatment through your Physician. If you receive Emergency Services at an out-of-Network facility, you will need to submit a claim.

Filing claims: In most cases, when you use Network Providers, they file your claims for you.

Leaving the service area: With the exception of the annual enrollment period or pursuant to a HIPAA special enrollment event as explained in "Life Events and Special Enrollment Events," the only other time you may change your medical election is if you relocate out of your Network service area.

If you move out of your Network service area, you will only be eligible for the Out-of-Area Option. You must contact the Benefits Service Center to process a relocation Life Event within 30 days of the event. This allows you to update your records and make a new benefits coverage selection, if

applicable. If you do not notify the Benefits Service Center of your election, you will be enrolled in a plan offered in your new location. (See the *General Enrollment* section.)

Network administrator: Your Network/claims administrator establishes standards for participating Providers, including Physicians, hospitals, and other service Providers. They carefully screen Providers and verify their medical licenses, board certifications, hospital admitting privileges, and medical practice records. They also periodically monitor whether participating Providers continue to meet Network standards. The Network administrator performs all these selection and accreditation activities

When you use Network Providers, you receive a higher level of benefits, called in-Network benefits.

TeleHealth: If you have a minor medical illness or injury, general medical services are available. Simply download the MDLive app, enter the information from your medical ID card and a form of payment. Behavioral telehealth services are also available as of January 1, 2020.

*Note that the telehealth coverage under the Plan during the COVID-19 emergency period may differ from what is generally provided under the Plan. Please check my.envoyair.com for the latest information.

Prior Authorization and Pre-Determination for Certain Medical Services

If you are covered by the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, or Out-of-Area Options, contacting your Network/claim administrator before receiving services allows you to find out if:

- The recommended service or treatment is covered by your selected Medical Benefit Option.
- Your Physician's proposed charges fall within the Plan's out-of-Network reimbursement rates.
- You may also contact your Network/claims administrator to determine if the proposed services are covered under your selected Medical Benefit Option or to obtain cost information for different in-Network Providers.

Please note that even if you contact your Network/claim administrator for a pre-determination of benefits in advance of receiving services, your Network/claim administrator may make adjustments upon receipt of your claim based on the treatment and the Plan's allowed amount. Payment of a claim depends upon the amount and type of coverage available at the time the claim is submitted, and the claim is still subject to all provisions, limitations and exclusions of the Plan(s) (such as eligibility and enrollment requirements, coverages, benefit amounts and maximums, etc.).

If you are having Outpatient surgery, your Network/claims administrator (as part of the Hospital Preauthorization process) will determine the Medical Necessity of your proposed surgery before making a pre-determination of benefits. Your Network/claim administrator will mail you a written response.

For hospital stays, your Network/claim administrator can predetermine the amount payable by the Plan. A pre-determination does not pre-authorize the length of a hospital stay or determine Medical Necessity. You must call your Network/claims administrator for pre-authorization (see "Prior Authorization").

Prior Authorization Recommended	
Assistant surgeon	A fee for an assistant surgeon is only covered when there is a demonstrated Medical Necessity. To determine if there is a Medical Necessity, you should contact your Network/claims administrator.
Multiple Surgical Procedures	If you are having Multiple Surgical Procedures performed at the same time, any procedure that is not the primary reason for surgery is covered at a reduced reimbursement rate because surgical preparation fees are included in the fee for the primary surgeon. You can contact your Network/claims administrator to find out how the Plan reimburses the cost for any additional procedures.
Wellness Preventive Services	Contact your Network/claims administrator to determine if your option covers a specific preventive service for a particular medical condition.

Pre-Authorization

You or your Providers, acting on your behalf, are required to request pre-authorization from your Network/claims administrator in the following circumstances. If you are using In-Network Providers, your Provider will call for you. If you are using out-of-Network Providers, you must call yourself (or a family member can call on your behalf).

If you do not contact your Network/claim administrator, your expenses are still subject to review and will not be covered under the Plan if they are considered not Medically Necessary. Failure to preauthorize may result in your expenses not being covered. If you are enrolled in one of the self-funded Medical Benefit Options, request pre-authorization by calling your Network/claim administrator.

If your Physician recommends surgery or hospitalization, ask your Physician for the following information before calling your Network/claim administrator for pre-authorization:

- Diagnosis and diagnosis code
- Clinical name of the procedure and the CPT code
- Description of the service
- Estimate of the charges
- Physician's name and telephone number
- Name and telephone number of the hospital or clinic where surgery is scheduled.

If your illness or injury prevents you from personally contacting your Network/claim administrator, any of the following may call on your behalf:

- A family member or friend
- Your Physician
- The hospital

Your Network/claim administrator will tell you:

- Whether the proposed treatment is considered Medically Necessary and appropriate for your condition
- The number of approved days of hospitalization
- In some cases, your Network/claim administrator may refer you for a consultation before surgery or hospitalization will be authorized. To avoid any delays in surgery or hospitalization, notify your Network/claim administrator as far in advance as possible

After you are admitted to the hospital, your Network/claim administrator provides case management services to monitor your stay. If you are not discharged from the hospital within the authorized number of days, your Network/claim administrator consults with your Physician and hospital to verify the need for any extension of your stay. If you are discharged from the hospital and then readmitted or transferred to another hospital for treatment of the same illness you must contact your Network/claim administrator again to authorize any additional hospitalization.

Pre-Authorization Required*

- Before any hospital admission,
- Before detoxification,
- Within 48 hours (or the next business day if admitted on a weekend) following Emergency care,
- Before Outpatient surgery to ensure that the surgery is considered Medically Necessary. (If you do not call, you may be subject to a retrospective review of the surgery to determine whether it was Medically Necessary. This means you or your Physician may be asked to provide medical documentation to support the Medical Necessity.)
- Before you contemplate or undergo any organ transplant (If you do not call, your claim will be denied.)
- Weight reduction: Hospitalization, surgery, treatment, and medications for weight reduction other than for approved treatment of diagnosed morbid Obesity. Contact your Network/claim administrator to determine if treatment is covered.
- Home Health Care if Medically Necessary
- Applied Behavioral Analysis Therapy

The Plan requires that you pre-authorize your coverage to ensure that these benefits are Medically Necessary and covered under the plan. If you do not pre-authorize you may be responsible for the full amount of the charges for the procedure or service.

Please note that obtaining prior approval does not guarantee that benefits will be paid. Your Network/claim administrator reserves the right to make adjustments upon receipt of the final claim papers if the actual service differs from the pre-authorization information that was submitted.

^{*}The list above is not comprehensive. Contact your Network/claim administrator for more information.

Please note that claims are processed in order of receipt. Payment of claim depends upon the amount and type of coverage available at the time the claim is submitted, and the claim is still subject to all provisions, limitations and exclusions of the Plan(s) (such as eligibility and enrollment requirements, coverage rules, benefit amounts and maximums, etc.).

Covered Expenses

This section contains descriptions of the eligible medical expenses (listed alphabetically) that are covered under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options when Medically Necessary. Benefits for some of these eligible expenses vary depending on the Medical Benefit Option you have selected and whether or not you use Network Providers. The "Medical Benefit Options Comparison" demonstrates how most services are covered.

For a list of items that are excluded from coverage, refer to "Excluded Expenses."

Acupuncture: Medically Necessary treatment (performed by a Certified Acupuncturist) for diagnosed illness or injury, only when acupuncture treatment has been proven both safe and effective treatment for such diagnosed illness or injury. (Coverage does not include acupuncture treatment for conditions in which the treatment has not been proven safe and effective—such as glaucoma, hypertension, acute low back pain, infectious disease, and allergies).

Allergy care: Charges for Medically Necessary Physician's office visits, allergy testing, shots, and serum are covered. (See "<u>Excluded Expenses</u>" for allergy care not covered under the Plan).

Ambulance: Medically Necessary professional ambulance services and air ambulance once per illness or injury to and from:

- The nearest hospital qualified to provide necessary treatment in the event of an Emergency
- The nearest hospital or Convalescent or Skilled Nursing Facility for Inpatient care

Air ambulance services are covered when, in the opinion of the patient's treating Provider, Medically Necessary services cannot be safely and adequately performed in a local facility and the patient's medical condition requires immediate medical attention for which ground ambulance services might compromise the patient's life. Ambulance services are only covered in an Emergency and only when care is required en route to or from the hospital.

Ancillary charges: Ancillary charges including charges for hospital services, supplies, and operating room use.

Anesthesia expenses: Anesthetics and administration of anesthetics. Expenses are not covered for an anesthesiologist to remain available when not directly attending to the care of a patient.

Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA) Therapy: ABA Therapy is an educational service under this Plan. The Plan covers ABA Therapy for autism spectrum disorder. Even though these are educational in nature, these services must be medically necessary. In the case of ABA Therapy, the Plan will cover services that are provided by a licensed ABA provider, that are habilitative in nature and that are backed by credible research demonstrating that the services have a measurable and beneficial effect on the patient's health outcome. To determine whether your case meets this definition, you must request pre-authorization for this service.

Assistant surgeon: The Medical Benefit Options only cover assistant surgeon's fees when the procedure makes it Medically Necessary to have an assistant surgeon. To determine whether an assistant surgeon is considered Medically Necessary, contact your Network/claims administrator.

Bariatric surgeries: Bariatric surgeries (including but not limited to Gastric bypass, LAP Band, etc.) will be covered in-Network only.

Blood: Coverage includes blood, blood plasma, and expanders. Benefits are paid only to the extent there is an actual expense to the participant.

Chiropractic care: Coverage includes Medically Necessary services of a restorative or rehabilitative nature provided by a chiropractor practicing within the scope of his or her license. You are limited to 20 visits per year for combined Network and out-of-Network Chiropractic Care.

Clinical Trials. Routine patient costs otherwise covered by the Plan that are associated with participation in phases I-IV of Approved Clinical Trials (i.e., clinical trials that are federally funded and certain drug trials) to treat cancer, ALS, or other Life-Threatening Conditions, as determined by the claims administrator and as required by law. These costs will be subject to the Plan's otherwise applicable deductibles and limitations and do not include items that are provided for data collection or services that are clearly inconsistent with widely accepted and established standards of care for a particular diagnosis or otherwise payable or reimbursable by another party.

Convalescent or skilled nursing facilities: These facilities are covered at 50% of the most common semi-private room rate in that geographic area for Inpatient hospital expenses for up to 60 days per illness (for the same or related causes) after you are discharged from the hospital for a covered Inpatient hospital confinement of at least three consecutive days. Under the PPO 750 Option, these facilities are covered the same as hospitalization, except there is a combined maximum stay of 60 days per illness or injury for Network and out-of-Network facilities.

To be eligible, the confinement in a Convalescent or Skilled Nursing Facility must begin within 15 days after release from the hospital and be recommended by your Physician for the condition which caused the hospitalization.

Eligible Expenses include room and board, as well as services and supplies (excluding personal items) that are incurred while you are confined to a Convalescent or Skilled Nursing Facility, are under the continuous care of a Physician, and require 24-hour nursing care. Your Physician must certify that this confinement is an alternative to a hospital confinement, and, your Network/claims administrator must approve your stay. Custodial Care is not covered.

Cosmetic surgery: Medically Necessary expenses for cosmetic surgery are only covered if they are incurred under either of the following conditions:

- As a result of a non-work related injury
- For replacement of diseased tissue surgically removed.

Other cosmetic surgery is not covered because it is not Medically Necessary.

Dental care: Dental expenses for Medically Necessary dental examination, diagnosis, care, and treatment of one or more teeth, the tissue around them, the alveolar process, or the gums, only when care is rendered for:

 Accidental injury(ies) to sound natural teeth, in which both the cause and the result accidental, due to an outside and unforeseen traumatic force

- Fractures and/or dislocations of the jaw
- Cutting procedures in the mouth (this does not include extractions, dental implants, repair or care of the teeth and gums, etc., unless required as the result of accidental injury (as set forth in the first bullet under Dental Care above).

Detoxification: Detoxification is covered when alcohol and drug addiction problems are sufficiently severe to require immediate Inpatient medical and nursing care services. Contact your Network/claim administrator for authorization.

Dietician services: Coverage includes services recommended by your Network Provider and provided by a licensed Network dietician. Dietician services are covered under every Plan option except the Out-of-Area Option.

Durable medical equipment (DME): Reimbursement for the rental of DME is limited to the maximum allowable equivalent of the purchase price. The Plan may, at its option, approve the purchase of such items instead of rental. Replacement of DME is covered only when Medically Necessary for a change in a patient's condition (improvement or deterioration) or due to the natural growth of a child. Replacement of DME resulting from normal wear and tear is not covered.

Coverage includes the initial purchase of eyeglasses or contact lenses required because of cataract surgery.

Emergency room: Charges for services and supplies provided by a hospital Emergency room to treat medical emergencies. You must call your Network/claim administrator within 48 hours of an Emergency resulting in admission to the hospital.

Facility charges: Charges for the use of an Outpatient surgical facility, when the facility is either an Outpatient surgical center affiliated with a hospital or a free-standing surgical facility.

Hearing care: Covered expenses include Medically Necessary hearing exams and up to one hearing aid for each ear every 36 months up to a maximum allowed benefit of \$3,500 per hearing aid. Cochlear implants and osseointegrated hearing implant systems (such as BAHAs) are covered if Medically Necessary.

Hemodialysis: Removal of certain elements from the blood through selective diffusion for treatment of kidney failure.

Home health care: Home health care, when your Physician certifies that the visits are Medically Necessary for the care and treatment of a covered illness or injury. Custodial care is not covered.

You should call your Network/claim administrator to be sure Home Health Care is considered Medically Necessary.

Hospice care: Eligible Expenses Medically Necessary for the care and treatment of a terminally ill covered person. Expenses in connection with Hospice Care include both facility and Outpatient care. Hospice care is covered when approved by your Network/claim administrator.

Inpatient room and board expenses: The PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options cover in-Network Inpatient hospital expenses based on the negotiated rates with that particular Network hospital. If you use an out-of-Network hospital under the PPO 750, PPO 1500,

PPO 2500 and Out-of-Area Options, the Plan will only consider the portion of the billed expense that does not exceed the out-of-Network reimbursement rates.

Intensive care, coronary care, or special care units (including isolation units): Coverage includes room and board and Medically Necessary services and supplies.

Mammograms: Medically Necessary diagnostic Mammograms, regardless of age.

Coverage for routine Mammograms for female employees and female dependents is based on the following guidelines:

- Once between ages 35 and 39 to serve as a baseline against which future Mammograms will be compared
- Once every one to two years from ages 40 to 49 as recommended by your Physician
- Once every year beginning at age 50.

Mastectomy: Certain reconstructive and related services are covered following a medically-necessary mastectomy, including:

- Reconstruction of the breast on which a mastectomy was performed
- Surgery or reconstruction of the other breast to produce a symmetrical appearance
- Services in connection with complications resulting from a mastectomy, such as treatment of lymphademas; and
- Prostheses

Medical supplies: Covered medical supplies include, but are not limited to:

- Oxygen, blood, and plasma
- Sterile items including sterile surgical trays, gloves, and dressings
- Needles and syringes
- Colostomy bags
- The initial purchase of eyeglasses or contact lenses required because of cataract surgery

Non-sterile or disposable supplies such as Band-Aids and cotton swabs are not covered.

Multiple surgical procedures: Out-of-Network reimbursement for Multiple Surgical Procedures is at a reduced rate because surgical preparation fees are included in the fee for the primary surgery. To determine the amount of coverage, and to be sure the charges are within the out-of-Network reimbursement rates, contact your Network/claim administrator. When you use in-Network Providers, benefits are based on the negotiated rate with the participating Network surgeon.

Newborn nursery care: Hospital expenses for a healthy newborn baby are considered under the baby's coverage, not the mother's.

To enroll your newborn baby in your health benefits, you must process a Life Event change within 30 days of the birth. If you miss the 30-day deadline you will not be able to add your baby to your coverage until the next annual enrollment period, even if you already have other children enrolled in coverage. The filing or payment of a maternity claim does not automatically enroll the baby.

You can process most Life Event changes online through the Benefits Service Center.

Nursing care: Coverage includes Medically Necessary private duty care by a licensed Nurse, if it is of a type or nature not normally furnished by hospital floor Nurses.

Oral surgery: Hospital charges in connection with oral surgery involving teeth, gums, or the alveolar process, only if it is Medically Necessary to perform oral surgery in a hospital setting rather than in a dentist's office. If Medically Necessary, the Medical Benefit Option will pay room and board, anesthesia, and miscellaneous hospital charges. Oral surgeons' and dentists' fees are not covered under the Medical Benefit Options. However, they may be covered under the Dental Benefit.

Outpatient surgery: Charges for services and supplies for a Medically Necessary surgical procedure performed on an Outpatient basis at a hospital, freestanding surgical facility, or Physician's office. You should pre-authorize the surgery by contacting your Network/claim administrator to ensure the procedure is Medically Necessary.

Physical or occupational therapy: Medically Necessary Restorative and Rehabilitative Care by a licensed physical or occupational therapist when ordered by a Physician. Please note that these services are covered in-Network. There is no coverage available if you receive these services from an out-of-Network Provider under the PPO 750, PPO 1500, and PPO 2500 medical options.

Physician's services: Office visits and other medical care, treatment, surgical procedures, and post-operative care for Medically Necessary diagnosis or treatment of an illness or injury are covered when provided by a Physician who is registered, licensed, or certified by the state in which he or she practices. The Medical Benefit Options cover office visits for certain preventive care, as explained under *Preventive Care*.

Pregnancy: Charges in connection with pregnancy, only for female employees and female Spouses of male employees. Prenatal care and delivery are covered when provided by a Physician or midwife who is registered, licensed, or certified by the state in which he or she practices.

Contact your Network/claims administrator to find out about the Maternity Management Program.

Delivery may be in a hospital or birthing center. Birthing center charges are covered when the center is certified by the state department of health or other state regulatory authority. Prescription prenatal vitamin supplements are covered. Federal law prohibits the Plan from limiting your length of stay to less than 48 hours following a vaginal delivery, or less than 96 hours following a cesarean section. However, Federal law generally does not prohibit the mother's or newborn's attending Provider, after consulting with the mother, from discharging the mother or her newborn earlier than 48 hours (or 96 hours as applicable). In any case, the Plan may not, under Federal law, require that a Provider obtain authorization from the plan or the insurance issuer for prescribing a length of stay not in excess of 48 hours. However, federal law does not require you to stay any certain length of time. If, after consulting with your Physician, you decide on a shorter stay, benefits will be based on your actual length of stay.

Charges in connection with pregnancy for covered dependent children are covered only if they are preventive care services based on USPSTF (Grade A & B recommendations) and CDC guidelines or due to certain complications of pregnancy, for example: ectopic pregnancy, hemorrhage, toxemia, placental detachment, and sepsis.

Prescription drugs: Medically Necessary Prescription drugs that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and prescribed by a Physician or dentist for treatment of your condition.

See "<u>Prescription Drug Benefits</u>" for details of the Prescription drug benefit. See "<u>Excluded Expenses</u>" for additional information regarding drugs that are excluded from coverage.

Medically Necessary medications are also covered for the following special situations:

- Medications administered and entirely consumed in connection with care rendered in a Physician's office are covered as part of the office visit unless the medication is a specialty medication only covered under the Prescription Drug benefit. Contact your Network/claims administrator or Express Scripts to determine if the medication is covered under your medical option.
- Medications which are to be taken or administered while you are covered as a patient in a licensed hospital, extended care facility, Convalescent hospital, or similar institution which operates an on-premises pharmacy are covered as part of the facility's Ancillary Charges.

Certain types of medicines and drugs that are not covered by the medical benefits may be reimbursed under the Health Care Flexible Spending Accounts (HCFSAs) (see the *Health Care FSA* section).

Preventive care: The Plan covers preventive care, including well-child care, immunizations, routine screening Mammograms, pap smears, male health screenings and annual routine physical exams for participants of all ages. Non-routine tests for certification, sports or insurance are not covered unless Medically Necessary.

- The Medical Benefit Options under the Plan comply with the PPACA preventive care requirements.
- o Preventive care focuses on evaluating your current health status when you are symptom free.
- o Preventive services include those performed on a person who:
 - ❖ has not had a preventive screening done before and does not have symptoms or other a documented related existing care related to the outcomes of the screening
 - ❖ has had diagnostic screenings that were normal after which your Physician recommends future preventive screening
 - ❖ has a preventive service done that results in a therapeutic service done at the same time (e.g. polyp removal during a preventive colonoscopy)
- The Company follows the USPSTF Grade A & B recommendations, CDC, and HRSA guidelines for preventive care. To get a full list of In-Network preventive care covered at no cost to you visit, http://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/uspstf/uspsabrecs.htm or https://www.healthcare.gov/preventive-care-benefits/
- Some preventive services have age and frequency limitations. These limitations can be based on Medical Necessity, medical review boards of the carriers in which we partner with to provide health care services and PPACA. Call your Network/claim administrator for details on coverage.
- o If you receive preventive care at any location other than a Physician's office such as Urgent Care or Emergency room, or from an out-of-Network Provider, services may not be covered at 100%.
- Your health care Provider determines how you are billed for all health plan expenses. When a service is performed for the purpose of preventive screening and is appropriately billed as such by your Provider, then it will be covered under preventive services.

Preventive care will not be covered out-of-Network under any of the Medical Benefit Options, except the Out-of-Area Option.

Prostheses: Prostheses (such as a leg, foot, arm, hand, or breast) necessary because of illness, injury, or surgery. Replacement of prosthesis is only covered when Medically Necessary because of a change in the patient's condition (improvement or deterioration) or due to the natural growth of a child. Replacement of a prosthesis resulting from normal wear and tear is not covered.

Radiology (x-ray) and laboratory expenses: Examination and treatment by x-ray, radium, or other radioactive substances, imaging/scanning (MRI, PET, CAT, and ultrasound), diagnostic laboratory tests, and routine mammography screenings for women (see Mammograms for guidelines). Please note that under the PPO 750 Option, your Network coverage depends on whether the care is received in a hospital-based setting or a Physician's office or independent non-hospital laboratory facility. If you are covered under the PPO 750 Option, and you receive radiology or laboratory services in a Network Physician's office, a Network non-hospital imaging center, or a Network non-hospital laboratory, the Plan will cover these expenses at 100% if Medically Necessary. Receiving radiology and/or laboratory services at a hospital will most likely cost you the most, as these services will be subject to the Deductible and coinsurance. Check with the Provider and ask if they bill as Outpatient hospital facility or as a free-standing non-hospital facility. There are some Providers who may appear as an independent facility but are actually owned by a hospital and bill as if the service was performed in a hospital.

If your Physician has ordered an MRI, CAT or PET scan for non-emergent services, you must call BCBS of Texas and obtain cost and quality information before you schedule your appointment. If you do not call prior to your procedure, you will be responsible for an additional \$100.

Reconstructive surgery: Surgery following an illness or injury, including contralateral reconstruction to correct asymmetry of bilateral body parts, such as breasts or ears.

Under the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act, covered reconstructive services include:

- Reconstruction of the breast on which a mastectomy was performed
- Surgery or reconstruction of the other breast to produce a symmetrical appearance
- Services in connection with other complications resulting from a mastectomy, such as treatment of lymphademas; and
- Prostheses.

Speech therapy: Restorative and rehabilitative care and treatment for loss or impairment of speech when the treatment is Medically Necessary because of an illness (other than a mental, psychoneurotic, or personality disorder), injury, or surgery. If the loss or impairment is caused by a congenital anomaly, surgery to correct the anomaly must be performed before the therapy. Out of Network Services are not covered under the plan.

Surgery: When Medically Necessary and performed in a hospital, free-standing surgical facility, or Physician's office. (See "<u>Prior Authorization</u>" for details about hospital pre-authorization and predetermination of benefits.)

TeleHealth: Telehealth services provided by MDLive for minor medical illness or injury, or general medical services.

Temporomandibular joint dysfunction (TMJD): Eligible Expenses under the medical benefits include only the following, if Medically Necessary:

- Injection of the joints
- Bone resection
- Application of splints, arch bars, or bite blocks if their only purpose is joint stabilization and not orthodontic correction of a malocclusion
- Manipulation or heat therapy.
- Crowns, bridges, or orthodontic procedures for treatment of TMJD are not covered.

Transplants: Expenses for transplants or replacement of tissue or organs if they are Medically Necessary and not Experimental, Investigational, or Unproven Services. Benefits are payable for natural or artificial replacement materials or devices.

Donor and recipient coverage is as follows:

- If the donor and recipient are both covered under the Plan, expenses for both individuals are covered by the Plan
- If the donor is not covered under the Plan and the recipient is covered, the donor's expenses are covered to the extent they are not covered under any other medical plan, and only if they are submitted as part of the recipient's claim.
- If the donor is covered under the Plan but the recipient is not covered under the Plan, no expenses are covered for the donor or the recipient

The total benefit paid under this Plan for the donor's and recipient's expenses will not be more than any Plan maximums applicable to the recipient.

You may arrange to have the transplant at a Network transplant facility rather than a local Network hospital. Although using a Network transplant facility is not required, these centers specialize in transplant surgery and may have the most experience, the leading techniques, and a highly qualified staff.

It is important to note that the listed covered transplants are covered only if the proposed transplant meets specific criteria—not all transplant situations will be eligible for benefits. Therefore, you **must** contact your Network/claim administrator as soon as possible for pre-authorization **before** contemplating or undergoing a proposed transplant. The following transplants are covered if they are Medically Necessary for the diagnosed condition and are not Experimental, investigational, unproven, or otherwise excluded from coverage under the Medical Benefit Options, as determined in the sole discretion of the Plan Administrator and its delegate, the claims processor:

- Artery or vein
- Bone
- Bone Marrow or stem cell
- Cornea
- Heart

- Heart and Lung
- Heart valve replacements
- Implantable prosthetic lenses in connection with cataract surgery
- Intestine
- Kidney
- Kidney and Pancreas
- Liver
- Liver and Kidney
- Liver and Intestine
- Pancreas
- Pancreatic islet cell (allogeneic or autologous)
- Prosthetic bypass or replacement vessels
- Skin

Transportation expenses: Regularly scheduled commercial transportation by train or plane, when necessary for your Emergency travel to and from the nearest hospital that can provide Inpatient treatment not locally available. Only one round-trip ticket is covered for any illness or injury and will be covered only if medical attention is required en route. For information on ambulance services, see Ambulance in this section.

Tubal ligation and vasectomy: These procedures are covered.

Urgent care: Charges for services and supplies provided at an Urgent Care clinic are covered. You should contact your Network Provider or your Network/claims administrator for authorization before seeking care at an Urgent Care clinic, or if you are traveling and need urgent medical care. If your Network/claims administrator's office is closed, seek treatment and then call your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours to ensure that you receive the Network level of benefits. Ask the Urgent Care center if they are owned by a hospital. Some Urgent Care centers may appear to be independent of a hospital but are actually owned by a hospital and bill as Outpatient hospital.

Well-child care: In-Network under the PPO 750, PPO 1500 and PPO 2500, as well as out-of-Network under the Out-of-Area Option, children are covered for initial hospitalization following birth, all immunizations, and well-child care visits.

Wigs and hairpieces: Employees and eligible dependents are covered up to a \$350 lifetime maximum for an initial synthetic wig or hairpiece, if purchased within six months of hair loss. The wig must be prescribed by a Physician for a covered medical condition causing hair loss. These conditions include, but are not limited to: chemotherapy, radiation therapy, alopecia areata, endocrine disorders, metabolic disorders, cranial surgery, or severe burns. This benefit is subject to the Deductibles, Copayments, coinsurance, and out-of-pocket limits of the selected Medical Benefit Option.

Replacement wigs or hairpieces are not covered, regardless of any change in the patient's physical condition. Hair transplants, styling, shampoo, and accessories are also excluded.

*Note that the Plan will cover testing for COVID-19 as required by law. Please check my.envoyair.com for the latest coverage information.

Mental Health and Chemical Dependency Benefits

Mental Health Care

Covered expenses include Medically Necessary Inpatient care (in a psychiatric hospital, acute care hospital, or an alternative mental health care center) and Outpatient care for a mental health disorder.

Inpatient mental health care: When you are hospitalized in a psychiatric hospital for a Mental Health Disorder, expenses during the period of hospitalization are covered the same as Inpatient hospital expenses (see Inpatient room and board expenses under "<u>Covered Expenses</u>").

Alternative mental health care center – residential treatment: Coverage for an alternative mental health care center is covered under the Plan when the care is Medically Necessary.

Alternative mental health care center – intensive Outpatient and partial hospitalization: This type of care is covered when Medically Necessary. Contact your Network/claims administrator for more information

Outpatient mental health care: Medically Necessary Outpatient mental health care is covered as any other illness.

Behavioral Telehealth: Behavioral telehealth services are through MDLive. For coverage details or to schedule a visit call 888-632-2738 or visit MDLIVE.com. The cost of the service varies based on the medical plan that you are enrolled in. In addition, the EAP offers counseling for your emotional wellbeing at no cost to you 24/7. Call Espyr at 866-312-5018 or visit Employee Assistance Program (EAP) on my.envoy.com for details.

Chemical Dependency Care

Chemical dependency rehabilitation: Covered chemical dependency rehabilitation expenses for treatment of drug or alcohol dependency can be Inpatient, Outpatient, or a combination. The Plan does not cover expenses for a family member to accompany the patient being treated, although many Chemical Dependency Treatment Centers include family care at no additional cost.

Detoxification: Chemical dependency rehabilitation does not include detoxification. However, the following provisions apply:

- You must call your Network/claims administrator for approval of detoxification.
- To receive the Network benefit level, detoxification treatment must be approved by your Network/claims administrator within 48 hours of admission for detoxification.
- If you do not receive your Network/claims administrator approval for detoxification, coverage is provided at the out-of-Network benefit level, even if you use a Network facility.

Prescription Drug Benefits

The Prescription drug program is administered by Express Scripts. Drugs prescribed by a Physician or dentist may be purchased either at retail pharmacies or through the Mail Service Prescription drug option.

For information on drugs that are covered, see "<u>Covered Expenses.</u>" For drugs that are excluded, refer to "<u>Excluded Expenses.</u>"

Retail Drug Coverage

As a participant in one of the Medical Benefit Options under the Plan, you may have your prescriptions filled at any pharmacy. However, if you present your Express Scripts ID card at a Network pharmacy, you will have access to negotiated discount prices. Express Scripts' broad retail pharmacy Network includes more than 65,000 pharmacies. When you fill prescriptions, you are encouraged to use a preferred pharmacy. A preferred pharmacy includes those within the Express Advantage Network, a subset of your broader Network, featuring major chain and independent pharmacies, grocery stores, and mass merchants. Non-preferred pharmacies include those retail pharmacies within your broader Network but outside of the Express Advantage Network. Filling your prescriptions at a non-preferred pharmacy (e.g., Walgreens or CVS) will result in an additional \$5 Copayment, on top of your copay/coinsurance referenced in the table below. To request a list of participating pharmacy chains in the broader Network as well as the Express Advantage Network, call Express Scripts at 1-866-544-2994 or visit the Express Scripts website at https://www.express-scripts.com/.

There are three categories of covered drugs with three different co-payments: generic drugs, preferred brand-name drugs and non-preferred brand-name drugs. You will pay the lowest co-payment/coinsurance for generic drugs.

A "formulary" is a preferred list of commonly prescribed medications that have been selected based on their clinical effectiveness and opportunities for savings. An independent committee of Physicians and pharmacies brought together by Express Scripts updates this list regularly based on continuous evaluation of medications. If a drug you are taking is not on the formulary, you may want to discuss alternatives with your doctor or pharmacist.

If you are taking a non-preferred drug, you have a choice – you can pay the higher co-payment for it or you can talk with your doctor about the possibility of switching to a generic or preferred brandname drug.

Contact Express Scripts at 1-866-544-2994 to determine if the brand-name drug you are taking is on the formulary list/preferred. You can also locate this information on the Express Scripts website at https://www.express-scripts.com/.

Pharmacy Deductibles: If you are enrolled in the PPO 750 or Out-of-Area Options, each covered individual will have to meet a \$50 calendar year Deductible for retail prescription drug purchases. This \$50 Deductible is in addition to your medical Deductible. If you are covered under the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500 Options, your medical Deductible also applies to pharmacy purchases at retail and mail. However, certain preventive medications will bypass the Deductible under the PPO 750, 1500 and PPO 2500 Options. Contact Express Scripts to determine if your medication is considered preventive.

The amounts you pay reflected in the chart below are after satisfaction of the Deductible. If your Deductible has not been satisfied, the amount you pay to purchase Prescription drugs will the Express Scripts negotiated/contract price. Please be sure to show your Express Scripts Prescription ID card to the pharmacy to ensure you pay the negotiated amount, and to make sure the amount you pay is counted towards satisfaction of your Deductible and out-of-pocket maximum.

Generic Drug	You pay 20%, with a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$50 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 20% for a 90-day supply, with a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$125 per prescription
Formulary Brand Drug	You pay 30%, with a minimum of \$35 and a maximum of \$100 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 30% for a 90-day supply, with a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$200 per prescription
Non-Formulary Brand Drug	You pay 50%, with a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$125 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 50% for a 90-day supply, with a minimum of \$125 and a maximum of \$275 per prescription

If the actual cost of your Prescription is less than the minimum shown above, then you pay just the actual cost. Smart90 – if you are enrolled in the PPO 750 option, the \$50 retail deductible applies.

If you select a brand-name drug when a generic equivalent is available, you will pay the 20% generic co-insurance, plus the cost difference between the generic and brand prices. Maximums do not apply, unless the drug is required for preventive care and your health care Provider determines that a generic would be medically inappropriate.

^{**} Oral contraceptives, transdermal and intravaginal contraceptives are covered by mail only at 100% with no co-pay or co-insurance. If a brand contraceptive has a generic equivalent, you will be responsible for the cost difference between the generic and brand prices, unless your health care Provider determines that a generic contraceptive would be medically inappropriate.

^{***} Copays for insulin are \$25 for a 30-day supply and \$75 for a 90-day supply.

Retail Refill Allowance

Coverage is provided for up to three fills (initial and two refills) of long-term maintenance drugs at retail. The Plan does not cover long-term maintenance drugs after the third refill, which means you will be responsible for 100% of the discounted cost when you purchase the drug at a retail pharmacy. However, the Plan does cover long-term maintenance drugs at Express Scripts Pharmacy mail-order service or Smart90 retail options.

Generic Drug**	You pay 20%, with a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$50 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 100%
Preferred Brand Drug	You pay 30%, with a minimum of \$35 and a maximum of \$100 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 100%
Non-Preferred Brand Drug	You pay 50%, with a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$125 per Prescription (an additional \$5 copay will apply if using a non-preferred Network pharmacy)	You pay 100%

^{**} Oral contraceptives, transdermal and intravaginal contraceptives are covered by mail only at 100% with no copay or co-insurance. If a brand contraceptive has a generic equivalent, you will be responsible for the cost difference between the generic and brand prices, unless the drug is required for preventive care and your health care Provider determines that a generic would be medically inappropriate. If you select a brand-name drug when a generic equivalent is available, you will pay the 20% generic co-insurance, plus the cost difference between the generic and brand prices, unless your health care Provider determines that a generic would be medically inappropriate. Maximums do not apply.

Filling Prescriptions

Follow these steps to fill prescriptions at a Network pharmacy:

- Present your Express Scripts ID card to the pharmacy and pay the appropriate copay/coinsurance.
- Follow these steps to fill prescriptions at an out-of-Network pharmacy:
- Pay the full retail price (undiscounted) for the Prescription and obtain a receipt when you pick up your prescription.

File a claim for reimbursement with Express Scripts. Express Scripts will reimburse the patient based on the discounted cost of the medication minus the applicable copay/coinsurance. Reimbursement will be accompanied by an EOB. Claim forms can be found on Express Scripts website or my.envoyair.com.

If you have questions concerning this program, contact Express Scripts at the phone number on your Express Scripts ID card.

If you elected to participate in the Health Care Flexible Spending Account (see the <u>Health Care FSA</u> section), your retail drug out-of-pocket expense is eligible for reimbursement. Contact Alight Solutions for questions concerning your reimbursement through your FSA.

Claim Filing Deadline

You must submit all claims, including Prescription drug claims, within one year of the date expenses were incurred. Claims submitted more than 12 months after expenses were incurred will not be considered for payment.

Prior Authorization

To be eligible for benefits, certain covered prescriptions require prior authorization by Express Scripts to determine medical necessity before you can obtain them at a participating pharmacy or through the mail service option.

When you fill your prescription, Express Scripts will send a message instructing your pharmacist to call Express Scripts. An Express Scripts pharmacist will then contact your Physician to review the request for approval. Express Scripts sends both you and your Physician a letter about the authorization review. If authorization is approved, the system automatically allows refills for the original approved time up to one year. In the event a pharmacy does not fill a prescription, the pharmacy's denial shall not be treated as a claim for benefits, instead you must file a claim with the claims administrator for the medication to initiate the benefit claim and appeal procedures under the Medical Benefit Option.

Prior authorizations expire and must be renewed. You will receive the expiration date with your approval and a reminder 30 days prior to the expiration date with instructions on how to renew.

To request prior authorization, ask your Physician's office to initiate the Prior Authorization by calling the PA hotline 1-800-753-2851. Express Scripts will fax the required prior authorization criteria to your Physician.

Express Scripts will advise you whether your prior authorization is approved or denied. If it is denied, they will explain the reason for denial.

Specialty Pharmacy Services

Specialty pharmacy services are services dedicated to providing a broad spectrum of Outpatient Prescription medicines and integrated clinical services to patients on long-term therapies which support the treatment of complex and chronic diseases.

Accredo Health Group, a subsidiary of Express Scripts, is designed to help you meet the particular needs and challenges associated with the administration and handling of these medications.

Prescriptions prescribed to manage the following medical conditions must be filled at one of Accredo's Health Group pharmacies through Express Scripts:

- Anemia/Neutropenia
- Growth Hormone
- Hemophilia
- Hepatitis C
- Immune Deficiency Therapy

- Metabolic Disorders
- Multiple Sclerosis
- Oral Cancer Drugs
- Osteoporosis
- Rheumatoid Arthritis and Other Autoimmune Conditions
- Pulmonary / Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension
- Other Various Indications

PLEASE NOTE: Specialty Agents are added as required/appropriate.

Whether these prescriptions are self-administered or administered in a Physician office, the prescriptions to treat the above conditions will no longer be reimbursed through your medical plan and must be filled through Accredo by Express Scripts. Express Scripts can ship the Prescription to the patient's home for self-administration or to the Physician's office for medications which are to be administered by a Physician.

The applicable Copayment associated with the Prescription drug benefit will apply to the Specialty Pharmacy prescriptions. If you are not sure if your medication is a specialty medication, please contact Express Scripts.

Please note that if you receive any type of manufacturer assistance, where the manufacturer of the medication pays a portion of the cost for you, the amount paid by the manufacturer or any other entity, will not count towards your out-of-pocket maximum. Only amounts paid directly by you will count towards your out-of-pocket maximum under the Plan.

Mail Service Prescription Drug Option

As a participant in the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and Out-of-Area Options, you and your covered dependents are eligible for the Mail Service Prescription Drug Option offered through Express Scripts. You may use the mail service option to order Prescription drugs you take on an ongoing basis to treat chronic medical conditions such as allergies, arthritis, diabetes, emphysema, heart disease, high blood pressure, thyroid disease, and ulcers. You may also purchase injectable drugs that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for self-administration.

To encourage you to take advantage of the Plan's mail order Prescription drug program, you may only get an initial purchase and two refill purchases of a maintenance medication at a retail pharmacy. After that, you should consider filling your remaining maintenance medication prescriptions through the mail order Prescription drug program to avoid paying the full cost for refills.

Generic Drugs

Many drugs are available in generic form. Your Prescription will be substituted with a generic when available and your Physician considers it appropriate. A-rated generic drugs are used because they generally cost less and have the same therapeutic effect and active ingredients as their brand equivalents. By using A-rated generic drugs, you save money for yourself and the Plan. If a brand name drug is not specified, your Prescription may be filled with the generic. However, if you elect to fill a Prescription with a brand name drug and a generic is available, you will pay the 20% generic

co-insurance, plus the cost difference between the generic and brand prices, unless the drug is required for preventive care and your health care Provider determines that a generic would be medically inappropriate.

Ordering Mail Service Prescriptions

Initial order: To place your first order for a Prescription through the mail service option, follow these steps:

- Provide the information requested on the back of your mail service order envelope, and complete and enclose the patient profile form found in your initial packet from Express Scripts. (The profile will not be necessary on refills or future orders unless your health changes significantly.)
- Insert the original written Prescription signed by your Physician.
- If the Prescription is for a non-Medically Necessary oral contraceptive, or you elect to take a brand name drug when a generic is available (unless your health care Provider determines that a generic contraceptive would be medically inappropriate), call Express Scripts or visit the Express Scripts website to find out how much you must pay for the prescription.
- Indicate the desired method of payment on the mail service order envelope. You may charge your payment to a major credit card (MasterCard, VISA, or Discover) or your FSA/HSA debit card or pay by personal check or money order. If paying by check or money order, enclose your payment with the order. Do not send cash.
- Mail your order to the address on the order envelope

You may request a mail order envelope by contacting Express Scripts at 1-866-544-2994 or visit the Benefits page on my.envoyair.com.

Internet Refill Option

The Internet gives you access to Express Scripts 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Using Express Scripts online, you can order Prescription drug refills, check on the status of your order, request additional forms and envelopes, or locate a Network pharmacy near you on the Express Scripts website at https://www.express-scripts.com/.

To refill a Prescription online, you will simply need to supply your Express Scripts member ID number (Social Security number), the Prescription (RX) numbers you want to refill and the method of payment. Verify your address on file and review your order. When you order refills online, you will receive a detailed summary of your order, including costs. Please allow up to 14 days for delivery of your prescription.

Other Refill Options

If you elect not to use the Internet refill option, place your order at least two weeks before your current supply runs out in one of the following two ways:

- Call at 1-866-544-2994 to request a refill. They will need your Express Scripts ID number, current mailing address, and Express Scripts Health Rx Services Prescription number
- If you prefer to order by mail, complete a mail service order envelope and attach your Express Scripts refill Prescription label to the form or write the Prescription refill number on the envelope. Include your payment with your order.

Consider Smart90 pickup option.

Smart90 Retail Option

- Smart90 is a retail pick-up option that allows you to pick up your long term maintenance medication at participating pharmacies at the mail order rates. Contact Express Script at 866-544-2994 or visit their website at www.express-scripts.com to find a participating pharmacy that can fill a 90-day supply.
- If you choose to use the Smart90 retail option, you will need to get a new 90-day prescription from your doctor.
- Simply drop off or have your doctor call in your prescription to a participating pharmacy and the pharmacy will fill your 90 day prescription and you will be charged the mail order rates when your prescription is ready for pickup.
- If you are enrolled in the PPO 750 option, the \$50 retail deductible applies to all retail purchases regardless of the quantity filled. If you are enrolled in the PPO 1500 or PPO 2500, the medical deductible applies.

Maximum Medical Benefits

Express Scripts Rx Services sends you a statement with each Prescription they fill. The statement advises you of your Copayment, and the amount the Company paid.

Reimbursement of Copayments/Coinsurance

Your mail order Copayment/coinsurance for eligible Prescription drugs counts towards your out-of-pocket maximum.

If you elected to participate in the Health Care Flexible Spending Account or the Health Care Savings Account (for the PPO 1500 and PPO 2500 options only) you may submit your Copayment/coinsurance expenses for reimbursement. (See the *Health Care FSA* section for details.)

Excluded Expenses

The following items are excluded from coverage, under all Medical Benefit Options offered under the Plan, unless otherwise stated.

Allergy testing: Specific testing (called provocative neutralization testing or therapy), which involves injecting a patient with varying dilutions of the substance to which the patient may be allergic.

Alternative and/or complementary medicine: Evaluation, testing, treatment, therapy, care and medicines that constitute alternative or complementary medicine, including but not limited to herbal, holistic, and homeopathic medicine.

Bariatric surgeries: Bariatric surgeries (including but not limited to Gastric bypass, LAP Band, etc.) will not be covered out-of-Network.

Claim forms: The Plan will not pay the cost for anyone to complete your claim form.

Care not Medically Necessary: All services and supplies considered not Medically Necessary.

Cosmetic treatment:

- Medical treatments solely for cosmetic purposes (such as treatments for hair loss, acne scars, liposuction, and sclerotherapy for varicose veins or spider veins)
- Cosmetic surgery, unless Medically Necessary and required as a result of Accidental Injury or surgical removal of diseased tissue

Counseling: All forms of marriage and family counseling

Custodial care and Custodial Care items: Custodial care and items such as incontinence briefs, liners, diapers, and other items when used for custodial purposes, unless provided during an *Inpatient* confinement in a hospital or Convalescent or Skilled Nursing Facility.

Developmental Therapy for children: Charges for all types of Developmental Therapy, except ABA Therapy.

Dietician services: Dietician services are covered under every Plan option except the Out-of-Area Option. Contact your Network/claims administrator or your Network Provider to determine what services are covered. All other dietician services are excluded unless they are considered a Preventive Care services.

Drugs:

- Drugs, medicines, and supplies that do not require a Physician's Prescription and may be obtained Over-the-Counter, regardless of whether a Physician has written a Prescription for the item. (This exclusion does not apply to certain preventative OTC medications as required under the ACA and to diabetic supplies, which are limited to insulin, needles, chem-strips, lancets, and test tape.)
- Drugs that are not required to bear the legend "Caution-Federal Law Prohibits Dispensing Without Prescription"
- Covered drugs in excess of the quantity specified by the Physician or any refill dispensed after one year from the Physician's order
- Contraceptive drugs, patches, or implants when not purchased through the Express Scripts
 Mail Order Pharmacy (See "Mail Service Prescription Drug Option" under "Prescription Drug
 Benefits").
- Drugs requiring a Prescription under state law, but not federal law
- Medications or products used to promote general well-being such as vitamins or food supplements (except for prenatal vitamins, which are covered prior to/during pregnancy)
- Drugs prescribed for cosmetic purposes (such as Minoxidil)
- Drugs labeled "Caution-Limited by Federal Law to Investigational Use," drugs not approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), or Experimental drugs, even though the individual is charged for such drugs
- Any and all medications not approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) as appropriate treatment for the specific diagnosis.

Ecological and environmental medicine: See Alternative and/or Complementary Medicine

Educational testing or training: Testing or training that does not diagnose or treat a medical condition (for example, testing for learning disabilities) is excluded, except the Plan provides coverage for testing for autism spectrum disorder.

Educational Services: The Plan does not pay the cost of Educational Services (except ABA Therapy). This exclusion applies regardless of the condition being treated.

Experimental, investigational, or unproven treatment: Medical treatment, procedures, drugs, devices, or supplies that are generally regarded as Experimental, Investigational, or unproven, including, but not limited to:

- Treatment for Epstein-Barr Syndrome
- Hormone pellet insertion
- Plasmapheresis

See the Experimental, Investigational or Unproven treatment definitions in the Glossary.

Eye care: Eye exams, refractions, eye glasses or the fitting of eye glasses, contact lenses, radial keratotomy or surgeries to correct refractive errors, visual training, and vision therapy.

Foot care: Diagnosis and treatment of weak, strained, or flat feet including corrective shoes or devices, or the cutting or removal of corns, calluses, or toenails. Bunion removal and foot orthotics are covered for medical conditions excluding flat feet, weak feet or foot strain. Routine foot care is not covered. (This exclusion does not apply to the removal of nail roots.)

Free care or treatment: Care, treatment, services, or supplies for which payment is not legally required.

Government-paid care: Care, treatment, services, or supplies provided or paid by any governmental plan or law when the coverage is not restricted to the government's civilian employees and their dependents. (This exclusion does not apply to Medicare or Medicaid.)

Infertility treatment services: Expenses related to a donor or surrogate, unless the donor or surrogate is a covered member of the Plan, Experimental or Investigational Services or Supplies, and artificial reproductive treatments done for genetic or eugenic (selective breeding) purposes. Reversal of tubal ligation and vasectomy is not covered unless related to the infertility or fertility promotion benefits provided under the Plan.

Lenses: No lenses are covered except the first pair of Medically Necessary contact lenses or eye glasses following cataract surgery.

Massage therapy: All forms of massage and soft-tissue therapy, regardless of who performs the service.

Medical error events: Services or supplies charged by the health care Provider that are directly associated with, resulting from, or caused by medical mistakes, medical or surgical error or complication, medical negligence or malpractice, preventable illness, preventable injury, or certain preventable complications arising from medical or surgical treatment, as defined by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services and identified as "never events." For more information on what comprises these events, go to http://www.cms.gov/ >Site Tools & Resources>Media Release Database. There you'll find fact sheets and news releases about these "never events."

Medical records: Charges for requests or production of medical records.

Missed appointments: If you incur a charge for missing an appointment, the Plan will not pay any portion of the charge.

Nursing care:

- Care, treatment, services, or supplies received from a Nurse that do not require the skill and training of a Nurse
- Private duty nursing care that is not Medically Necessary, or if medical records establish that such care is within the scope of care normally furnished by hospital floor Nurses
- Certified Nurses' aides.

Organ donation: Expenses incurred as an organ donor, when the recipient is not covered under the Plan.

Pregnancy for dependents: Prenatal care and delivery charges are excluded for covered dependent children unless the charges are due to certain complications. Examples of covered complications include ectopic pregnancy, hemorrhage, toxemia, placental detachment, and sepsis.

Relatives: Coverage is not provided for treatment by a medical practitioner (including, but not limited to: a Nurse, Physician, physiotherapist, or speech therapist) who is a close relative (Spouse, child, brother, sister, parent, or grandparent of you or your Spouse, including adopted and step relatives).

Sleep disorders: Treatment of sleep disorders, unless it is considered Medically Necessary.

Sex changes: Sex change, gender reassignment/revision, treatments or transsexual and related operations.

Sexual performance treatment: Procedures, devices, or other treatments prescribed, administered, or recommended to treat erectile dysfunction or other sexual dysfunction, or for the purpose of producing, restoring, or enhancing sexual performance/experience. The Plan covers prescription medications to treat erectile dysfunction or other sexual dysfunction.

Speech therapy: Except as described in "Covered Expenses," expenses are not covered for losses or impairments caused by mental, psychoneurotic, or personality disorders or for conditions such as learning disabilities, developmental disorders, or progressive loss due to old age. Speech therapy of an educational nature is not covered. Speech therapy is not covered if provided by an out-of-Network Provider unless you are covered under the Out-of-Area option.

TMJD: Except as described in "<u>Covered Expenses</u>," diagnosis or treatment of any kind for temporomandibular joint disease or disorder (TMJD), or syndrome by a similar name, including orthodontia to treat TMJD. Crowns, bridges, or orthodontic procedures to treat TMJD are not covered.

Transportation: Transportation by regularly scheduled airline, air ambulance, or train for more than **one** round trip per illness or injury.

War-related: Services or supplies when received as a result of a declared or undeclared act of war or armed aggression.

Weight reduction: Hospitalization, surgery, treatment, and medications for weight reduction other than for approved treatment of diagnosed morbid Obesity. Contact your Network/claim administrator to determine if treatment is covered.

Wellness items: Items that promote well-being and are not medical in nature, and which are not specific for the illness or injury involved (including but not limited to, dehumidifiers, air filtering systems, air conditioners, bicycles, exercise equipment, whirlpool spas, and health club memberships). Also excluded are:

- Services or equipment intended to enhance performance (primarily in sports-related or artistic activities), including strengthening and physical conditioning
- Services related to vocation, including but not limited to: physical or FAA exams, performance testing, and work hardening programs

Contact your Network/claims administrator to determine if your option covers a specific preventive service for a particular medical condition.

Work-related: Medical services and supplies for treatment of any work-related injury or illness sustained by you or your covered dependent, whether or not it is covered by Workers' Compensation, occupational disease law, or other similar law.

Filing Claims

Your Network/claims administrator is the claims processor for the PPO 750, PPO 1500, PPO 2500, and the Out-of-Area Options. Your Network/claims administrator provides claim services; however, they do not insure the health benefits. Benefits for these Medical Benefit Options are self-funded, which means that all claims are paid from the Company's general assets. Contributions also may be required by employees, in an amount determined by the Company in its discretion.

Regardless of which Medical Benefit Option you are enrolled in, if you received services from an in-Network/Medical Discount Program PPO Provider, your provider will generally file the claim for you. If you use a non-Network provider or for any reason you must file the claim yourself, follow the procedures below:

- Complete a <u>Medical Benefit Claim Form</u> (instructions are provided on the form) Claim forms can be found on the employee portal (my.envoyair.com) or bebstx.com
- Submit the completed form to your Network/claims administrator, along with all itemized receipts (originals) from your Physician or other health care provider. A cancelled check is not acceptable.

Each bill or receipt submitted to your Network/claims administrator must include the following:

- Name of patient
- Date the treatment or service was provided
- Diagnosis of the injury or illness for which treatment or service was given
- Itemized charges for the treatment or service
- Provider's name, address, and tax ID number

Be sure to make copies of the original itemized bill or receipt provided by your Physician, hospital, or other medical service provider for your own records. Photocopies are not accepted by your Network/claims administrator.

All medical claims payments are sent to you along with an Explanation of Benefits (EOB) explaining the amount paid.

It is very important that you fully complete the sections of the form regarding other possible coverage. Examples of other possible coverage include a Spouse's group health plan, Workers' Compensation, Medicare, Champus and no-fault motor vehicle insurance.

If you have questions about your coverage or your claim, contact your Network/claims administrator or Express Scripts.

Claims Filing Deadline

You must submit all claims, including Prescription drug claims, within one year of the date expenses were incurred. Claims submitted more than 12 months after expenses were incurred will not be considered for payment.

Notwithstanding the above, the Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS"), the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), or any other agency of the HHS may file claims under the Medicare Secondary Payer Statute within 36 months of the date on which the expense was incurred.

The full claims procedure is described in detail under "Claims" in the *Plan Administration* section.

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The Company recognizes that alcohol and drug dependency and other serious personal problems affect an employee's health and job performance. The Employee Assistance Program (EAP) helps employees obtain treatment for these problems before health, safety, and work performance are compromised. The EAP is available to all employees and their dependents at no cost.

The EAP protects confidentiality. Contacting the EAP for assistance does not jeopardize job security and advancement opportunities. However, the Company will not knowingly allow employees to work if there is a question concerning fitness for duty. In addition, EAP participation does not relieve an employee of the obligation to comply with Company rules and regulations.

You may contact the EAP by calling 1-866-312-5018. The EAP can help you find solutions to a full range of personal concerns. No problem is too big or small. These can include:

- Stress
- Crisis
- Marital and family problems
- Emotional concerns
- Relationship issues
- Child care referrals
- Psychiatric Disorders
- Alcohol or Drug problems
- Debt and financial problems

The EAP offers extensive online resources to help with most any of life's common issues and concerns. You may obtain expert advice on a wide range of topics, gather information and resources, take self-screenings, or just learn more about the EAP's offerings. To access the EAP website, go to ESPYR.com and sign in. Your password is envoyeap. You can also log in at my.envoyair.com and type EAP in the search bar.

The Legal Plan Benefit

The **Legal Plan** covers you, your Spouse and dependents. This plan is insured and administered by MetLife Legal Plans. This plan is not subject to ERISA.

The legal plan benefit offers <u>telephone and office consultation</u> along with online services for an unlimited number of personal legal matters with a Network attorney of your choice.

Legal Plan Plus Parents option: You can extend some of the legal services listed below to your parents for an additional cost. For details, visit the benefits page on my.envoyair.com.

Legal Plan services include:

- Estate Planning
- Document Review
- Family Law
- Immigration Assistance
- Elder Law Matters
- Real Estate Matters
- Document Preparation
- Traffic Offenses
- Personal Property Protection
- Financial Matters
- Juvenile Matters
- Defense of Civil Lawsuits
- Consumer Protection
- Family Matters
- Will Preparation

You may enroll in legal plan coverage during the annual enrollment period each year. Your election stays in effect for the entire calendar year. You may access legal services while covered under the Plan as many times as needed during the calendar year of your coverage. In most cases, you do not pay for these services when they are rendered.

Critical Illness Insurance

*Note: Capitalized terms relating to the Critical Illness Insurance benefit are defined at the end of this section.

When you and your eligible dependents elect to participate in Critical Illness Insurance, you will receive benefits in the form of lump-sum payments that can be used to help pay for expenses related to covered illnesses and diseases. Covered illnesses and diseases include invasive cancer, carcinoma in situ, heart attack, stroke, coronary artery bypass surgery, end-stage renal failure, Alzheimer's disease, and many others. This plan is not subject to ERISA.

Eligible Dependent(s)

For purposes of the Critical Illness Insurance, Eligible Dependents are your:

- 1. Spouse or Domestic Partner; and
- 2. Child(ren) and Domestic Partner's Child(ren).

Critical Illness Benefit

Benefits are payable if you are diagnosed with one of the conditions listed below or as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Insurance.

The following benefits are payable at 100% of your coverage election. Covered children receive 50% of your benefit amount:

- Heart attack
- Stroke
- Coronary artery bypass surgery
- Major organ transplant
- End stage renal failure
- Invasive Cancer
- Benign Brain Tumor
- Alzheimer's Disease
- Parkinson's disease
- Coma

Specified Diseases

The following diseases are covered under the critical illness plan if a covered person is diagnosed with a specified disease, provided that:

- a. the date of diagnosis is after the effective date of coverage;
- b. the date of diagnosis is while insured;
- c. the critical illness is not excluded by name or specific description; and
- d. Allstate has not paid an initial critical illness benefit for the critical illness before.

Specified Diseases	Percentage of Basic Benefit Amount	Specified Diseases (continued)	Percentage of Basic Benefit Amount
Addison's Disease	25%	Multiple Sclerosis	25%
Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis	25%	Muscular Dystrophy	25%
(Lou Gehrig's Disease)	2370	Myasthenia Gravis	25%
Cerebral Palsy	25%	Necrotizing fasciitis	25%
Cystic Fibrosis	25%	Osteomyelitis	25%
Diphtheria	25%	Poliomyelitis	25%
Encephalitis	25%	Rabies	25%
Huntington's Chorea	25%	Scleroderma	25%
Legionnaire's Disease		Sickle Cell Anemia	25%
(confirmation by culture or sputum)	25%	Systemic Lupus	25%
Malaria	25%	Tetanus	25%
Meningitis (bacterial)	25%	Tuberculosis	25%

Additional benefits:

• Lump sum recurrence

A recurrence benefit will be paid for heart attack, stroke, coronary artery bypass surgery, invasive cancer and carcinoma in situ.

Benefits will be paid at 100% of the first occurrence benefit for a recurrence of the same condition. Benefits will be paid as a percentage of elected coverage for a recurrence when the events are separated by a minimum of 12 months (12 months treatment-free for cancer). The same condition is included except for incurable diseases.

• Skin Cancer Benefit

The benefit pays \$250 if a covered person is diagnosed with skin cancer if:

o the date of diagnosis is after the effective date of coverage;

- o the date of diagnosis is while this policy is in force; and
- o it is not excluded by name or specific description in this policy.

This benefit is payable only once per covered person per coverage year.

• Carcinoma in situ pays 25% of the coverage benefit amount

Transportation

• Transportation of a covered person for the round trip distance between hospital, medical facility and residence of covered person; excludes hospitals within 100-mile radius; annual maximum of \$5,000.

Lodging

- Not payable for more than 24 hours prior to or following treatment; outpatient treatment must be more than 100 miles from residence; annual maximum of \$3,600 and 60 days/calendar year.
- National Cancer Institute Evacuation
 - o Includes coverage for evaluation/consultation and transportation/lodging if cancer center is more than 100 miles from residence.

Your Certificate of Insurance will contain complete information on the benefits payable through this coverage. To obtain a copy, visit Allstatebenefits.com/mybenefits.

Exclusions and Limitations

- Allstate Benefits does not pay benefits for: (1) being under the influence of narcotics or any other controlled chemical substance unless administered upon the advice of a physician; or (2) alcohol abuse or alcoholism, drug addiction, or dependence upon any controlled substance.
- Stroke Exclusions Transient ischemic attacks (TIAs), head injury, chronic cerebrovascular insufficiency and reversible ischemic neurological deficits are excluded.

When your critical illness insurance coverage begins

If you enroll during annual enrollment, your coverage will become effective on the first day of the Plan year related to annual enrollment.

If you enroll outside of annual enrollment, your coverage will become effective on the date of your status change event or the end of your eligibility waiting period, whichever is later. If you should die before your effective date (as indicated above), no Critical Illness Insurance benefit will be paid to your beneficiary(ies).

Your Critical Illness Insurance will begin whether or not you are actively-at-work, as long as you have reported for your first day of work and enrolled for the benefit.

Filing a claim

Within 180 days of the occurrence or commencement of any covered critical illness, send a notice of claim to:

American Heritage Life Insurance Company P.O. Box 43067

Jacksonville, FL 32203-3067

Be sure to provide the following information for the covered person:

- Name;
- Social security number; and
- Date the covered illness occurred or commenced.

You may request a claim form from Allstate Benefits or visit Allstatebenefits.com/mybenefits to obtain an online copy. If you don't receive a claim form within 15 days of your request, you may send a notice of the claim to Allstate Benefits by providing Allstate Benefits with a statement of the nature and extent of the loss.

Claims will be determined under the time frames and requirements set out in the <u>Claims and Appeals</u> section. You or your beneficiary has the right to appeal a claim denial. See the <u>Claims and Appeals</u> section for details.

Naming a beneficiary

If a covered person dies, the covered person's beneficiary(ies) will receive the benefits due at the time of the covered person's death.

You must name a beneficiary(ies) to receive your Critical Illness Insurance benefit if you die. You may do this by going to Allstatebenefits.com/mybenefits.

You can name anyone you wish. If the beneficiaries you have listed with the Plan differ from those named in your will, the list that the Plan has prevails.

The following information is needed when naming your beneficiary(ies):

- Beneficiary(ies) name;
- Beneficiary(ies) current address;
- Beneficiary(ies) phone number;
- Beneficiary(ies) relationship to you;
- Beneficiary(ies) Social Security number;
- Beneficiary(ies) date of birth; and
- The percentage you wish to designate per beneficiary up to 100%.

If two or more beneficiaries are designated and their shares are not specified, they will share the insurance benefit equally. If a named beneficiary dies before you, that beneficiary's interest will end, and will be shared equally by any remaining beneficiaries unless your beneficiary form states otherwise.

You can name a minor as a beneficiary; however, Allstate Benefits may not be legally permitted to pay the minor until the minor reaches legal age. You may want to consult with an attorney before naming a minor as a beneficiary.

It's important to keep your beneficiary information up to date. Proceeds will go to whomever is listed on your beneficiary form on file with the Plan, regardless of your current relationship with that person, unless state law requires otherwise.

You are automatically assigned as the primary beneficiary of your dependent's critical illness coverage. If you and your dependent(s) die at the same time, benefits will be paid to your dependent's estate or at Allstate Benefits' option to a surviving relative of the dependent.

Changing Your Beneficiary

Your beneficiary(ies) can be changed at any time on the Benefits Service Center (Alight Solutions) website which can be accessed from my.envoyair.com. Any change in beneficiary(ies) must be completed and submitted to the Plan before the covered person's death.

If You Do Not Name a Beneficiary

If no beneficiary is named or there is no surviving beneficiary at the time of your death, payment will be made to your surviving family member(s) in the following order:

- 1. Your Spouse/Domestic Partner; if not surviving, then
- 2. Your Children, in equal shares; if not surviving, then
- 3. Your parents, in equal shares; if not surviving, then
- 4. Your siblings, in equal shares; if not surviving, then
- 5. Your estate.

If You Go on a Leave of Absence

You may continue your coverage up to the last day of an approved leave of absence, provided that you pay your premiums either before the leave begins or during the leave.

Break in Coverage

If your coverage has been canceled (by your choice or due to nonpayment of premiums while you were on a leave) and you return to actively-at-work status within **one** year from cancellation, you will be enrolled for the same coverage (or, if this coverage is not available, the coverage that is most similar to your prior coverage). Your coverage will be effective the first day of the pay period that you meet the actively-at-work requirement.

If your coverage has been canceled (by your choice or due to nonpayment of premiums while you were on a leave) and you return to actively-at-work status after **one** year from cancellation, you will be considered newly eligible; you may enroll for coverage within the applicable time period under the conditions prescribed by the Plan by contacting the Benefits Service Center.

When Coverage Ends

Your critical illness insurance coverage ends on the earliest of the following:

- The last day of active employment;
- Upon failure to pay your premiums;
- The date the maximum total percentage of the basic benefit amount is paid; or

• When the benefit is no longer offered by the company.

Your critical illness insurance coverage for your Spouse ends:

- On the last day of the pay period when your job status changes to part-time;
- Upon a valid decree of divorce; or
- Upon your death.

Your critical illness insurance coverage for your dependent Child(ren) ends:

- When the Child reaches age 26;
- When the Child does not meet the requirements of an eligible dependent.

Continuation of Coverage at Termination

If your coverage under Critical Illness Insurance terminates as described earlier in this section, you may continue to receive Critical Illness Insurance directly from Allstate Benefits through portability coverage. To receive portability coverage, you must notify Allstate Benefits that you wish to receive portability coverage and send the first premium for such coverage within 60 days of the date your coverage under Critical Illness Insurance terminated.

The premiums for portability coverage are due in advance of each month's coverage, on the first day of the calendar month. The premiums will be at the same rate that is in effect under Critical Illness Insurance for active employees with the same coverage.

For more information, please contact Allstate Benefits at 1-800-521-3535.

When Your Dependent Becomes Ineligible

Any eligible dependent who was covered under Critical Illness Insurance at the time such coverage terminated may also receive portability coverage, under the terms described in the Continuation of Coverage at Termination section above.

For more information, please contact Allstate Benefits at 1-800-521-3535.

Definitions

For purposes of the Critical Illness Insurance, these terms have the following meaning when capitalized and used in the Critical Illness Insurance section:

Certificate of Insurance: A document that outlines a group insurance plan's coverage and the members' rights. The Certificate of Insurance is available to insured members of the group insurance plan.

Child(ren): A person under age 26 who is your or your Domestic Partner's natural or adopted son or daughter; stepson or stepdaughter; a foster child who is placed with you or your Spouse or Domestic Partner by an authorized placement agency or judgment, decree, or other order of any court of competent jurisdiction; or your or your Domestic Partner's dependent grandchild.

A child also includes an incapacitated dependent who:

- (1) is incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of mental or physical incapacity; and
- (2) is chiefly dependent upon you for support and maintenance.

Coverage for an incapacitated dependent child is provided regardless of the age of the child as long as your coverage remains in force and the child remains in such condition. Proof of the incapacity and dependency of the child must be furnished, in writing, to Allstate Benefits.

A child born to you or your Spouse or Domestic Partner will be eligible for coverage. This coverage begins at the moment of birth of such child and benefits will be the same as provided for any other child insured under the policy. No additional premium will be required for newborns added if you already have children or family coverage in force at the time the newborn is added.

If you do not already have children or family coverage in force, or do not have coverage in force that covers more than one child, newborn children are automatically covered from the moment of birth for a period of 31 days. If you desire uninterrupted coverage for a newborn child, you must notify the policyholder within 31 days of that child's birth. Upon notice, the policyholder will change the coverage to include the additional child and provide notification of the additional premium due. If you do not notify the policyholder within 31 days of the birth of the child, the temporary automatic coverage ends.

An adopted child or child pending adoption will be covered as follows:

- 1. Coverage is retroactive from the moment of birth for a child with respect to whom a decree of adoption has been entered by you within 31 days after the date of birth.
- 2. If adoption proceedings have been instituted by you within 31 days after the date of birth and you have temporary custody, coverage is provided from the moment of birth.
- 3. Coverage shall begin from the moment of placement.

Coverage will be provided as long as you have custody of the child pursuant to decree of the court and required premiums are paid. If you do not already have children or family coverage in force, or do not have coverage in force that covers more than one child, adopted children or children pending adoption are automatically covered as described above for a period of 31 days. If you desire uninterrupted coverage for an adopted child or child pending adoption, you must notify the policyholder within 31 days of the moment of placement. Upon notice, the policyholder will change the coverage to include the additional adopted child or child pending adoption and provide notification of the additional premium due.

No additional premium will be required for an adopted child added if you already have children or family coverage in force at the time the adopted child is added.

Domestic Partner: means your same-sex partner who is eligible for coverage provided that:

- 1. both you and your same-sex partner must be considered as domestic partners according to the law of your state of residence; or
- 2. if your state of residence has no domestic partnership law, you must satisfy the definition of domestic partner as defined by the policyholder.

If you enter into a domestic partnership and desire coverage for your Domestic Partner, you must notify the policyholder of the domestic partnership within 31 days of the date the domestic partnership was formed. Upon notice, the policyholder will change the coverage to include your Domestic Partner and provide notification of the additional premium due.

Spouse: means your legal spouse, not including a common law spouse. If you marry and desire coverage for your Spouse, you must notify the policyholder of the marriage within 31 days of the

marriage. Upon notice, they policyholder will change the coverage to include your Spouse and provide notification of the additional premium due.

Group Critical Illness benefits are provided under policy form GVCIPSATX or state variations thereof.

The coverage provided is limited benefit supplemental critical illness insurance. The policy is not a Medicare Supplement Policy. If eligible for Medicare, review Medicare Supplement Buyer's Guide available from Allstate Benefits.

This is a brief overview of the benefits available under the group policy underwritten by American Heritage Life Insurance Company (Home Office, Jacksonville, FL). Details of the coverage, including exclusions and other limitations are included in the certificates issues. For additional information, you may contact your Allstate Benefits Representative.

The coverage does not constitute comprehensive health insurance coverage (often referred to as "major medical coverage") and does not satisfy the requirement of minimum essential coverage under the Affordable Care Act.

Allstate Benefits is the marketing name used by American Heritage Life Insurance Company, a subsidiary of The Allstate Corporation.

Dental Benefits

The Company offers you the opportunity to enroll in the Dental Benefit to help pay for covered dental services. The Dental Benefit is self-funded by the Company and administered by MetLife. ID cards are not necessary under the Dental Benefit. The dental provider's office is responsible for verifying eligibility.

The Dental Benefit offers a Preferred Dentist Program (PDP) — a voluntary Network of over 120,000 participating dental locations nationwide that provide fee discounts to plan participants. You are not required to use a Network dentist, but you will generally save money when you do. To access a list of Network dentists in your area, log on to the MetLife website or call MetLife at 1-866-838-0875.

Key Features of the Dental Benefit

	Denta	l Core	Dental E	Inhanced
	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
Annual Deductible	\$75 per	person	\$50 per	person
Preventive Service (Exams, cleanings, Sealants and Space maintainers, routine x-rays (bitewings) maximum 2 visits per year.	100% In or Out of Network Deductible Waived		100% In or Out of Network Deductible Waived	
Basic (Amalgam/Resin Composite Fillings, Pulp Capping, Endodontic, Oral Surgery, Periodontics)	80% In or Out-of-Network after \$75 Deductible			of-Network after ductible
Major Services (Crowns, Bridges, Dentures, Implants)	50% In or Out-of-Network after \$75 Deductible			of-Network after ductible
Orthodontia Services (no Deductible applies)		of-Network up to n of \$1,500		of-Network up to n of \$2,500

	Dental	Dental Core		Dental Enhanced	
	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	
Maximum Benefit (Per person per year)	\$1,5	500	\$2,5	500	
Maximum Lifetime Orthodontia Benefit	\$1,5 (child		\$2,0 (per pe		

How the Dental Benefit Option Works

The following is information you need to know about Dental Benefit coverage and circumstances that determine how benefits are paid:

Medically Necessary: Only dental services that are Medically Necessary are covered by the Dental Benefit. Cosmetic services are not covered.

Pre-determination of benefits: If your dentist estimates that charges for a procedure will be substantial, you should request pre-determination of benefits before you receive treatment. However, it is recommended that you obtain pre-determination for any proposed procedure. To request pre-determination from the claims processor, your dentist may complete the standard Dental Claim Form, indicating that it is for pre-determination of benefits.

Alternative treatment: If you undergo a more expensive treatment or procedure when a less expensive alternative is available, the Dental Benefit pays benefits based on the less expensive procedure that is consistent with generally accepted standards of appropriate dental care.

When expenses are incurred: For purposes of determining Dental Benefit coverage and benefits, the dental expense is deemed to be incurred at the time of the initial treatment or preparation of the tooth.

The Preferred Dentist Program (PDP): The Dental Benefit offers a Network of participating dentists nationwide (general dentists and specialists) at locations who provide fee discounts to Dental Benefit participants. You are not required to use PDP Network dentists, but will benefit from cost savings when you do. You can request a customized directory of participating dentists in your area by calling MetLife (see "Contact Information" in the Reference Information section) or by visiting the MetLife website.

Injury by others: If you are injured by someone else and your dental plan pays a benefit, the Company will recover payment from the third party (see "<u>Subrogation</u>" in the *Plan Administration* section).

Health Care Flexible Spending Account: Dental expenses are eligible for reimbursement and will automatically roll over to your account if you participate in a Health Care Flexible Spending Account, unless you inform your Network/claims administrator that you want to discontinue the automatic rollover feature. See "<u>Eligible Expenses</u>" in the <u>Health Care FSA and Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account</u> section for important details.)

Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account: Dental expenses are also eligible for reimbursement if you participate in a Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account. See "Receiving Reimbursement for your Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account" in the *Health Care FSA and Limited Purpose Flexible Spending Account* section for information on how to submit a claim.

Coordination of benefits: If you or a covered dependent has coverage under any other group dental plan, the Dental Benefit coordinates benefits with the other plan. (See "Coordination of Benefits" in the *Additional Health Benefit Rules* section for additional information.)

Covered Expenses

To be covered by the Dental plan, a dental expense must be Medically Necessary and provided by a duly qualified and licensed dentist or Physician (unless specifically excluded). Out-of-network claims for Covered Services are generally reimbursed up to 90% of the reasonable and customary allowance for the applicable zip code. MetLife uses internal data accumulated through internal claim processing to establish the reasonable and customary charge.

The following dental services and supplies are covered by the Dental Benefit:

Dentures and bridgework: Full and partial dentures and fixed bridgework, including:

- Installation of the initial appliance to replace natural teeth extracted, including adjustments within six months of installation
- Replacement once in five years.
- Installation of the appliance for teeth missing as a result of a congenital anomaly. (Charges are limited to the allowance for a standard prosthetic device.)

The total allowance for both a temporary and permanent denture or bridge is limited to the maximum benefit for a permanent denture or bridge. Charges are determined from the date the first impression is taken.

Extractions, necessary surgery, and related anesthetics: These services are considered covered dental treatments. However, fractures and dislocations of the jaw are included under Medical Benefit Options.

Fillings and crowns: Composite, silver (amalgam) or porcelain fillings and plastic restorations subject to the following:

- Porcelain crowns are covered only for the 10 front upper and 10 front lower teeth
- Porcelain or plastic facings on crowns posterior to the second bicuspid are not covered
- Gold fillings and crowns are covered only when the tooth cannot be restored with other materials
- Crowns may only be replaced if the existing crown is more than five years old, regardless of the reason for the replacement.

Implants: Dental implants, inlays, and onlays only if Medically Necessary and approved by independent dental consultants selected by the Company are covered at 50%.

Night guards: Also referred to as occlusal guards and bruxism appliances are covered at 50% one per twenty-four months.

Oral examinations, x-rays, and laboratory tests: The following are covered if necessary to determine dental treatment:

- Full mouth x-ray once in five years.
- Adult or child Bitewing x-ray twice per calendar year
- Other x-rays necessary to propose diagnosis or examine progress of treatment.

Periodontal treatment: Medically necessary periodontal treatment of the gums and supporting structures of the teeth based on generally accepted standards of good periodontal care.

Preventive treatment:

- Exams twice per calendar year
- Teeth cleaning twice per calendar year
- Fluoride treatments twice a year for adult and children
- Sealants for children under age 15 (not covered on or after the child's 15th birthday)
- Space maintainers.

Root canals: Root canals and other endodontic treatments are covered. The charge for root canal therapy is considered to have been incurred on the date the tooth is opened.

Covered Orthodontia Expenses

The core dental plan covers orthodontic treatment for eligible dependent child(ren) up to age 23 and covers 50% of eligible and necessary expenses, to a maximum orthodontia benefit of \$1,500 per child, during the entire time the child(ren) is covered by the Plan. The enhanced dental plan covers orthodontic treatment for an eligible adults and dependent child(ren) up to age 23 and covers 50% of eligible and necessary expenses, to a maximum orthodontia benefit of \$2,500 per person, during the entire time the child is covered by the Plan. Orthodontic coverage includes examinations, x-rays, laboratory tests, and other necessary treatments and appliances. There is no Deductible for orthodontic treatments, and payments for orthodontia do not reduce the annual maximum benefit for other services.

The following explains additional information about orthodontia coverage:

Ongoing dental coverage: To remain eligible for coverage of orthodontic treatments that extend into a new coverage period (for example, the next calendar year), you must continue to cover the patient under your dental option during each annual enrollment period.

Payment of claims: Payment for orthodontia is made according to the following procedures (regardless of the payment method you arrange with your provider):

- The provider of service (orthodontist) should submit one billing that reflects the total cost of the patient's orthodontic treatment even if the duration of treatment moves across calendar years. The Dental Benefit will pay up to the maximum orthodontia benefit of \$1,500 for the Core option and \$2,500 for the Enhanced option, in one lump sum, based upon the orthodontist's lump sum billing for orthodontia treatment (provided the treatment is determined to be an eligible expense under the Dental Benefit).
- Coordination of benefits applies if the patient has other orthodontia coverage. If the patient has
 primary coverage under another plan, the amount paid for orthodontia under that plan will be
 deducted from the plan option maximum orthodontia benefit.

Health Care Flexible Spending Account

If you participate in the Health Care Flexible Spending Account (HCFSA) or the Limited Purpose Health Care Flexible Spending Account, the your share of the total cost of the patient's orthodontic treatment (based upon the lump sum billing from the orthodontist) will be reimbursed from your HCFSA in one lump sum, up to the amount you elected to contribute for the year. Other dental services are also eligible for reimbursement, as explained in "Eligible Expenses" in the *Health Care FSA* section). The FSA administrator is Alight Solutions.

Excluded Expenses

The following expenses are not eligible for reimbursement under the Dental Benefit:

Anesthesia: General anesthetics (unless provided for oral surgery or periodontics).

Cosmetic treatment: Treatment or services partly or completely for cosmetic purposes or characterization or personalization of dentures or appliances for specialized techniques.

Crowns or appliances: Crowns, adjustments, or appliances used to splint teeth, increase vertical dimensions, or restore occlusion. Replacement of crowns less than five years old will not be covered, regardless of the reason for replacement.

Education or training: Education, training, or supplies for dietary or nutritional counseling, personal oral hygiene, or dental plaque control.

Free care: Charges for services or supplies that you are not legally required to pay.

Medical expenses: Any charge for dental care or treatment that is an eligible expense under your Medical Benefit Option.

Prescription drugs: Dental prescriptions are excluded under the dental plan. However, if you are enrolled in a medical option, the drug may be covered. Contact Express Scripts prior to filling your prescription

Relatives: Treatment by a dentist or Physician who is a close relative, including your spouse, children, adopted and step relatives, sisters and brothers, parents, and grandparents of you or your spouse.

Replacement dentures or bridges: Replacement charges for full or partial dentures or a fixed bridge that is less than five years old. Appliances that are over five years old but can be made serviceable will be repaired or replaced. Any charges that exceed the cost of a standard prosthetic appliance will not be covered.

Services not provided by dentist or Physician: Any service not provided by a dentist or Physician, unless performed by a licensed dental hygienist under the supervision of a dentist or Physician, or for x-ray or laboratory tests ordered by a dentist or Physician

Temporary dentures, crowns, or bridges after 12 months: A temporary fixture, such as a temporary denture, crown, or bridge that remains in place for 12 months or more is considered permanent and the cost of replacement is only covered when the item is more than five years old.

Temporomandibular joint dysfunction (TMJD): TMJD is considered an illness and has limited coverage only under the Medical Benefit Options (see <u>Medical Benefits Overview</u> for more information).

U. S. government services or supplies: Charges for services or supplies furnished by or for the U. S. government.

War-related: Services or supplies received as a result of a declared or undeclared act of war or armed aggression.

Work-related claims: Dental care received because of a work-related injury or illness sustained by you or your covered dependent, whether or not it is covered under Workers' Compensation, occupational disease law, or similar law.

Filing Claims

MetLife is the claims processor for the Dental Benefit; however, MetLife does not insure these benefits. Benefits for the Dental Benefit are self-funded, which means all claims are paid from the Company's general assets. Contributions also may be required by employees, in an amount determined by the Company in its discretion.

Completing the Dental Claim Form

The following is a summary of how to file claims for dental expense benefits:

- Complete the top portion of the Dental Expense Claim Form. Follow the instructions that accompany the form and then present the form to your dentist, who completes the remaining portion.
- Mail the completed claim form to MetLife at the address on the form.
- All dental claims payments are sent to you along with an Explanation of Benefits (EOB) explaining the amount paid. Payments may, however, be sent directly to your dentist or other dental provider if your provider accepts Assignment of Benefits, see the "Assignment of Benefits" section. If you assign benefits to the service Provider, the EOB will be mailed to you and the payment mailed to your Provider.

Claim Filing Deadline

You must submit all dental claims within one year of the date the expenses were incurred. Claims submitted more than 12 months after expenses were incurred will not be considered for payment. Notwithstanding the above, the Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") and the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") or any other agency under the HHS may file claims under the Medicare Secondary Payer Statute within 36 months of the date on which the expense was incurred

For the complete claims procedures that apply to the Dental Benefit, see the "Claims and Appeals" section.

Additional Rules

The following sections of the *Additional Health Benefit Rules* section apply to the Dental Benefits.

- "Qualified Medical Child Support Order"
- "Coordination of Benefits"
- "Coordination with Medicare"
- "Continuation of Coverage COBRA Continuation

Vision Benefits

EyeMed Vision Insurance Plan

This Vision Insurance Plan is a preferred Provider insurance program contracted through EyeMed. EyeMed has a national Network of more than 4,000 chain and independent optical stores.

With EyeMed you'll receive savings averaging 37% on lenses and frames, a 20% savings on contact lenses and any sundry items and a 10% savings on disposable contacts. EyeMed preferred pricing limits the amount EyeMed Providers can charge for a comprehensive eye examination. The EyeMed preferred pricing cannot be used in conjunction with any other promotion.

Freedom Pass: New for the 2020 plan year – a special offer from Target Optical

Get any available frame*, any brand — no matter the original retail cost at \$0 out-of-pocket expense

*\$130 or higher frame allowance required. Complete pair purchase required. Your responsible for lenses, which are covered based on benefits outlined in the vision benefits below. Valid through 2023. In-store offer only at Target Optical. Proof of offer is required at time of purchase. Discount code: 755288. For more information to my.envoyair.com

Exam	\$10 co-pay
Frames	\$150 allowance
Lens (single/bifocal/trifocal/lenticular)	\$25 co-pay
Lens (Standard Progressive)	\$25 co-pay
Lens (Premium Progressive) Tier 1 - 4	\$45 - \$70 co-pay
CONTACT LENSES (IN LIEU OF LENSES AN	ND FRAMES)
Standard Contact Lens Fit & Follow-up	Up to \$55
Premium contact Lens fit & Follow-up	10% off retail price
Conventional	\$150 allowance,15% off balance over \$150
Disposable	\$150 allowance, plus balance over \$150
Medically Necessary	\$0 co-pay, paid in full
LENS OPTIONS	
UV treatment and Tints, Etc.	No additional cost (is included in the \$25 co-pay for lenses)
Scratch-Coating Protection for Lenses	No additional cost (is included in the \$25 co-pay for lenses

Out-of-Network Provider Benefits

Exam	Up to \$40
Single Vision Lenses	Up to \$40
Bifocal Lenses	Up to \$60
Trifocal Lenses	Up to \$80
Lenticular Lenses	Up to \$80
Frame	Up to \$45
Elective Contact Lenses	Up to \$150
Medically Necessary Contact Lenses	Up to \$210

Reimbursement for the above services are limited to once every calendar year.

Life Insurance Benefits

The Company offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in Employee Term Life Insurance as well as Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance. Employee Term Life Insurance is for you only and pays a benefit to your designated beneficiary in the event of your death. The Employee Term Life Insurance policy is a multi-state policy and certain exclusions apply. Please refer to your certificate of insurance for policy details or contact the Hartford at 800-523-2233 for claims questions. Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance cover your eligible spouse and children only and pay you a benefit if your covered spouse or child dies. Optional levels of Voluntary Term Life Insurance coverage are available (see "Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefits" under "Employee Term Life Insurance."

All life insurance benefits are paid solely by and through the insurance policies by the insurer. No life benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

"Term Life Insurance" is coverage that pays a death benefit, but has no cash value and remains in effect only during the time premiums are being paid. These coverages are insured by The Hartford and you pay your share of the cost of Voluntary coverage, if any, through payroll deduction.

Employee Term Life Insurance

Basic Life Insurance Benefits

As an eligible employee, the Company provides you Basic Term Life Insurance coverage of one times your base annual salary when you enroll in a medical benefit option.

You may not waive your Basic Term Life Insurance Benefits.

Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefits

You will be enrolled in Basic Term Life coverage equal to one times your base annual salary when you are enrolled in a company-sponsored medical option. When you are first eligible for benefits, you may elect the first level (equal to one times your annual salary) of Voluntary Term Life Insurance without providing proof of good health. You must complete a Personal Health Application online from the Hartford through the Benefits Service Center enrollment platform if you wish to elect amounts greater than this (e.g., levels equal one to seven times your annual salary). Coverage that requires Proof of Good Health becomes effective only after the Hartford approves your application and only after you (the employee) pay the first contribution, either directly or through payroll deduction. Rates for voluntary term life insurance are based on your age and the amount of coverage.

After you enroll, you may only increase your coverage by one level per year with Proof of Good Health. The maximum Voluntary Term Life Insurance value allowed is seven (7) times your annual salary up to a maximum of \$2,000,000.

Below are the options/levels of Voluntary Term Life Insurance available to employees:

• One (1) times your base annual salary

- Two (2) times your base annual salary
- Three (3) times your base annual salary
- Four (4) times your base annual salary
- Five (5) times your base annual salary
- Six (6) times your base annual salary
- Seven (7) times your base annual salary

Coverage After Age 65

Basic Life Insurance coverage for active employees age 65 and over decreases annually as shown below. If you elect Voluntary Term Life Insurance, it will not decrease at age 65 or over.

65	92%	71	56%
66	85%	72	52%
67	78%	73	48%
68	72%	74	44%
69	66%	75	41%
70	61%	76 and over	38%

Coverage If You Become Disabled

If you become permanently and totally disabled while covered, all of your Term Life Insurance coverage continues at no cost to you. To qualify for this benefit, you (i) must become permanently and totally disabled before age 60 and (ii) up to age 65 be absent from work at least nine (9) consecutive months because of your disability.

Permanent and total disability exists if all of the following requirements are met:

- You are not engaged in any gainful occupation
- Because of illness, injury, or both, you are completely unable to engage in any occupation for which you are reasonably fit
- Your disability is such that your inability to work will probably continue for the rest of your life.

To apply for a waiver of Basic and Voluntary Term Life Insurance contributions, you must file your claim with the Hartford between the 9th and 12th month after the date your disability began. Claims filed after the 12th month will not be considered. Contact the Benefits Service Center or the Hartford to request a claim form.

If you became disabled before January 1, 1995, and are approved for this waiver, your Basic and Voluntary Term Life Insurance coverage continues at no cost to you as long as you remain permanently and totally disabled.

The Hartford will require you to submit proof of your continuing disability at least once a year. Proof may include examination by doctors designated by the insurance company. If this proof is not submitted, coverage will terminate.

Additional Services

If you enroll for Voluntary Term Life Insurance you will be eligible to receive online:

- Will Preparation and Estate Resolution Services
- Travel Assistance Related Services
- Identity Theft Related Services
- Funeral Planning Services
- Employee Assistance Programs
- Beneficiary Support Services, at no cost (at time of claim)

Accelerated Benefit Option

The Accelerated Benefit Option (ABO) allows terminally ill people the opportunity to receive a portion of their life insurance during their lifetime. This money can be used to defray medical expenses or replace lost income during the last months of an illness and is not subject to income tax. The remaining portion of the life insurance benefit is payable to the named beneficiary when the covered person dies.

The ABO benefit is available to employees who have Company-provided Basic and/or Voluntary Term Life Insurance (active or on sick leave) and their spouses covered under Spouse Term Life Insurance. Employees who are approved as permanently and totally disabled (as defined above) and who continue the active amount of life insurance are also eligible for an ABO.

To qualify for an ABO payout, the covered person must have an injury or illness that is expected to result in death within 24 months or less, with no reasonable prospect for recovery. A Physician's certification is required, and all applications are subject to review and approval by the Hartford's medical department. Based on this review, the claim is either paid or denied. If it is paid, you may not later change the amount of your life insurance coverage.

ABO payout for approved claims is 80% of your total Employee Term Life Insurance (Basic and Voluntary) or Spouse Term Life coverage, up to a maximum of \$500,000. Therefore, any life insurance coverage in excess of \$500,000 is not eligible for the ABO. In addition, a minimum of \$3,000 in life insurance coverage is required to be eligible.

Your life insurance premiums must be current at the time of the ABO application. If you are on sick leave and have allowed your coverage to default to the Company-provided amount, you are only eligible to receive ABO benefits on that coverage amount. After an ABO payout, you are no longer permitted to change life insurance coverage levels. Employees who have irrevocably assigned their life insurance benefits (as explained below) are not eligible for ABO benefits. Contact the Benefit Service Center for information and assistance in filing an application for an ABO.

Requesting the Accelerated Benefit Option

Contact the Benefits Service Center for information on filing a request for an Accelerated Benefits Option (ABO).

Filing a Claim

The Hartford insures all life insurance benefits under a group insurance policy. They also process all claims. The following is a short summary of the procedures for filing a claim for Term Life Insurance benefits:

- Upon receiving notice of an active employee's death, the employee's supervisor should contact the Benefits Service Center to provide notification of the death. In addition, the employee's supervisor will complete the Employee Death Notification form and send it to Envoy Survivor Support. The Benefits Service Center will notify Envoy's Survivor Support if they receive notification first. The Benefits Service Center or Survivor Support determines your most recently named beneficiary and confirms the amount of life insurance.
- Survivor Support sends a letter to the designated beneficiary contact verifying the amount of life insurance payable as well as any other benefits or privileges the Beneficiary is entitled to Survivor Support will initiate a life claim on behalf of the Beneficiary.
- The Beneficiary will receive a packet from the Hartford with contact information and claim instructions.
- The life insurance claim will be paid approximately four to six weeks after the Hartford receives all necessary documentation.
- For the complete claims procedures that apply, see the Claims section.

Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance Benefits

You may cover either your spouse (under Spouse Term Life Insurance) or your children (under Child Term Life Insurance), or you may cover both your spouse and your children.

Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance options are as follows:

SPOUSE TERM LIFE INSURANCE	E
Level One	1 times your annual base salary
Level Two	2 times your annual base salary
Level Three	3 times your annual base salary, up to \$350,000 maximum
Waive	No coverage
CHILD TERM LIFE INSURANCE	
Basic Child Life	\$15,000 for each covered child
Waive	No coverage

Benefit amounts for Employee and Spouse coverage are rounded to the next nearest \$100 (if not already an even multiple). Benefit amounts and contributions may increase (or decrease) during the year if you experience a pay increase (or decrease).

You may elect Child Term Life Insurance for your eligible dependent child when first eligible or at a later date, and no Proof of Good Health is required. You may also elect Spouse Term Life Insurance for your spouse when first eligible at any level with Proof of Good Health. Coverage becomes effective only after you (the employee) pay the first contribution, either directly or through payroll deduction.

Your spouse must complete a Personal Health Application form. You must then forward the completed form to the Hartford for review. Upon approval from the Hartford, Spouse Term Life Insurance will be added or increased for your spouse. Coverage that requires Proof of Good Health becomes effective only after the Hartford's approval and only after you (the employee) pay the first contribution, either directly or through payroll deduction.

The following table defines pay for Employee Term Life Insurance:

Regular Full-time Employee	Base annual salary or annualized hourly pay plus market rate differentials, but excluding bonus and overtime
Converted Part-time Employees	Annualized hourly pay
Regular Part-time Employees	Average base salary
Employees on Temporary Assignment	Pay for the last permanent position held

You pay the entire cost for any Spouse and Child Term Life coverage you select. You elect coverage at the rate shown on your Enrollment Worksheet (or the online enrollment tool) and pay for this coverage with after-tax contributions. Your spouse's rate is based on your spouse's age, but coverage for your child(ren) is based on a flat rate, regardless of the number of children covered.

The cost of coverage for both the employee and spouse term life insurance will increase or decrease during the year if the amount of your coverage fluctuates due to changes in your pay.

Filing a Claim

All life insurance benefits are provided under a group insurance policy issued by the Hartford. The Hartford also processes and pays all claims.

The following is a short summary of the procedures for filing a claim for Spouse or Child Term Life Insurance benefits:

- Upon the death of your covered spouse or child, you or your supervisor should inform the Benefits Service Center of the death. You are the sole beneficiary for your spouse or child's term life insurance.
- After the Benefits Service Center is notified of the death, you are sent a letter indicating the amount of life insurance payable. The letter will include a *Beneficiary Life Insurance Claim Statement*.

- Complete the *Beneficiary Life Insurance Claim Statement* and return it, along with a certified copy of the death certificate, to the address on the claim form.
- The life insurance claim will be paid in approximately one to two weeks, or as soon as administratively possible, after the Hartford receives all necessary documentation. You may assign part of the benefits to pay funeral expenses (see "Assignment of Benefits" in the Additional Life and Accident Insurance Rules section).

When a spouse or covered dependent dies, you may want to make changes to your benefits coverages. To process these changes, contact the Benefits Service Center. For a list of allowable changes that may be appropriate at this time, see *Life Events*.

Total Control Account

When a claim is processed, the Hartford establishes a Total Control Account for you if your share is \$5,000 or more (smaller amounts are paid in a lump sum). The Hartford then deposits all insurance proceeds into the account, which is an interest-bearing checking account that earns interest at competitive money market rates and is guaranteed by the Hartford. The Hartford sends you a personalized checkbook, and you may withdraw some or all of the proceeds and interest whenever necessary. In addition, the Hartford sends you a description of alternative investment options. The Total Control Account gives you complete control over the money, while eliminating the need to make immediate financial decisions at a difficult time.

For income tax purposes, proceeds deposited into the Total Control Account are treated the same as a lump-sum settlement. Because the tax consequences of life insurance proceeds may vary, the Company strongly recommends that you consult a tax advisor.

The Hartford will only pay interest on life insurance claims (to cover the time between death and date of payment) if you live in a state that requires interest payments. Because state insurance laws vary, calculation of interest differs from state to state.

Exclusions

The Term Life Insurance policies do not cover loss caused by or resulting from any of the following:

- Intentionally self-inflicted injuries, suicide, or attempted suicide.
- Declared or undeclared act of war within the U.S. or any nation of which you are a citizen.
- An accident that occurs while you are serving full-time active duty for more than 30 days in the armed forces of any country or international authority.
- Illness, disease, pregnancy, childbirth, miscarriage, bodily infirmity, or any bacterial infection other than bacterial infection caused by an accidental cut or wound.
- Travel or flight in any vehicle or device for aerial navigation, including boarding or alighting from the vehicle or device while:
 - The vehicle is being used for Experimental purposes;
 - You are operating, learning to operate, or serving as a member of the crew of an aircraft other than an aircraft operated by or under contract with the Company.

- Voluntary self-administration of any drug or chemical substance not prescribed by and taken according to the directions of a licensed Physician (accidental ingestion of a poisonous substance is covered, as well as accidents caused by use of legal, Over-the-Counter drugs).
- Commission of a felony including, but not limited to: robbery, rape, arson, murder, kidnapping, or burglary.

Please refer to your certificate of insurance for details or contact the Hartford at 800-523-2233 for questions or concerns related to this plan.

Accident Insurance Benefit

The Company offers eligible employees two accidental insurance benefits through Cigna:

- Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance (AD&D)
- Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance (VPAI)

Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance

As an eligible employee, you automatically receive AD&D benefits equal to 1 times your annual salary (to a maximum of \$100,000) from the Company at no cost to you if you are enrolled in a company-sponsored medical option. In the event of an Accidental Injury, AD&D insurance pays benefits to:

- You in the case of certain accidental injuries to you; and
- Your named beneficiaries in the event of your death.

Coverage is available without regard to previous health history.

- The plan provides broad 24-hour protection, year round, including coverage during travel.
- Benefits are payable in addition to any other insurance you may have.

AD&D benefits are paid solely by and through the insurance policies by the insurer. No accident benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance

As an eligible employee, you may elect to purchase VPAI for yourself and your family. In the event of an Accidental Injury, VPAI pays benefits to:

- You in the case of certain accidental injuries to you;
- You in the event of your covered dependent's death; and
- Your named beneficiary in the event of your death.

VPAI coverage also includes the following features:

- You pay premiums through convenient before-tax payroll deduction.
- Coverage is available for you, your spouse, and your dependent children (if any). The amount of VPAI coverage for your covered spouse is \$10,000, up to \$350,000. Child AD&D provides \$10,000 coverage for each dependent child, regardless of the number of children covered.

• You may select coverage in \$10,000 increments up to \$500,000. If you elect family coverage, the amount of insurance for your family members is a percentage of the amount elected, and is based on the composition of your family at the time of loss, as shown in the table below:

Spouse Only	70% of the employee's elected benefit amount
Spouse and Children	Spouse: 60% of the employee's elected benefit amount
	Each child: 15% of the employee's elected benefit amount not to exceed \$75,000
Children Only	Each child: 25% of the employee's elected benefit amount not to exceed \$125,000

Coverage is available without regard to previous health history

- The plan provides broad 24-hour protection, year round, including coverage during travel
- Benefits are payable in addition to any other insurance you may have
- With VPAI coverage, you are also eligible for Travel Assistance Services

VPAI benefits are paid solely by and through the insurance policies by the insurer. No accident benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

Covered Losses and Accident Benefits

A covered loss includes death, paralysis, or loss of limb, sight, speech, or hearing. AD&D and VPAI coverages pay a benefit if you (or a covered dependent for VPAI) have a loss within one year of an Accidental Injury. If you experience more than one loss from the same accident, the coverages pay the largest amount applicable to one loss.

The following table explains when an injury is covered as a loss:

Hand or Foot	Severed through or above the wrist or ankle joint
Arm or Leg	Severed through or above the elbow or knee joint
Eye	The entire, irrecoverable loss of sight
Thumb and Index Finger	Severed through or above the metacarpophalangeal joint (the point where the finger is connected to the hand)
Speech	An irrecoverable loss of speech that does not allow audible communication in any degree
Hearing	An irrecoverable loss of hearing in both ears, that cannot be corrected with any hearing aid or device

The following table shows the portion of benefits that the AD&D and VPAI coverages pay if you (or your covered dependent for VPAI) have an Accidental Injury that results in a loss:

SCHEDULE OF COVERED LOSSES

Covered Loss	Benefit
Loss of Life	100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Two or More Hands or Feet	100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight of Both Eyes	100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or One Foot and Sight in One Eye	100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Speech and Hearing (in both ears)	100% of the Principal Sum
Quadriplegia	100% of the Principal Sum
Paraplegia	100% of the Principal Sum
Hemiplegia	100% of the Principal Sum
Coma	1% of the Principal Sum
Monthly Benefit	
Number of Monthly Benefits	11
Lump Sum Benefit	100% of the Principal Sum
When Payable	Beginning of the 12 th month
Loss of Use of One Leg	75% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Use of One Arm	75% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Use of Two Limbs	66.6% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Use of One Limb	50% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or Foot	50% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight in One Eye	50% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Speech	50% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Hearing (in both ears)	100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand	25% of the Principal Sum

If your Accidental Injury results in the loss of use of a limb (arm or leg) within one year from the date of an accident, the AD&D and VPAI Insurance Benefits pay the following benefits:

Loss of Use of Two Limbs	66.6% benefit amount
Loss of Use of One Limb	50% benefit amount

Loss of use must be complete and irreversible in the opinion of the treating physician.

Special VPAI Benefit Features

VPAI offers several special features. These features do not apply to AD&D.

Airbag benefit: If a participant dies as the result of a motor vehicle accident and his/her safety airbag deployed during the accident, the participant will receive an additional 10 percent of the AD&D principal sum benefit, up to a maximum of \$10,000. A Seat Belt benefit must be payable in order for the Airbag benefit to be payable.

Child care benefit: If you or your spouse dies as the result of an accident and your child is covered under the family VPAI, the coverage pays the surviving spouse an annual benefit of 5% of the total coverage amount (up to \$7,500 per year) for the cost of surviving children's care in a licensed child care facility. This benefit is payable up to five years or until the child enters first grade, whichever occurs first.

COBRA reimbursement: If you die as a result of an accident and your spouse and child are covered under the family VPAI, the coverage pays your dependents an additional annual benefit of 3% of your VPAI coverage amount to assist them in paying for continuation of group medical coverage, up to \$6,000 per year. This COBRA reimbursement benefit may be paid for up to three (3) years or for the duration of your dependents' COBRA eligibility. To be eligible for this benefit, your spouse and dependent children must be covered under the family VPAI as well as your company-sponsored Medical Benefit Option.

Coma benefit: If you or a covered dependent becomes comatose as the result of an accident within 31 days of the accident, you receive 1% per month of the VPAI death benefit amount each month for up to 11 months. This benefit ends the earliest of:

- The month the covered person dies
- The end of the 11th month for which the benefit is payable
- The end of the month in which the covered person recovers.

This benefit is payable after a 31-day waiting period which begins on the day the covered person becomes comatose.

If the covered person remains comatose after 11 months, the coverage pays the amount of coverage for accidental death reduced by benefits already paid for injury or paralysis. If the covered person dies as the result of the accident while the coma benefit is payable, the coverage pays benefits for accidental death.

Coma benefits are paid to the legal guardian or person responsible for the care of the comatose patient. The claims processor determines who is most responsible if a legal guardian is not named.

Payment of the coma benefit to the legal guardian or person responsible for care does not change the designated beneficiary in the event of death.

Common disaster benefit: If you elect family VPAI coverage and, as the result of a Common Accident, you or your spouse dies within one year of the covered accident, the spouse's loss of life benefits will be increased to 100% of your amount of coverage. However, the combined benefits of you and your spouse will not be more than \$1 million.

Counseling and bereavement benefits: VPAI pays an additional benefit if you or an insured family member suffers a covered loss. VPAI will pay up to \$100 per session, for expenses incurred within one year of the date of the covered accident. Benefits are payable for the insured and any of the insured's immediate family members, including parents (includes stepparent), child, legally adopted child or stepchild, mothers/fathers-in-law, and brothers/sisters-in-law.

Double benefit for dismemberment of children: If a covered child experiences a loss as the result of an accident, the benefit amount is double (to a maximum benefit of \$60,000). This provision does not apply if death occurs within 90 days of the accident.

Home/vehicle modification benefit: If, as the result of an accident, the participant's covered injury(ies) require use of or accommodations to his/her home or motor vehicle, the participant will receive a benefit equivalent to 10% of his/her principal sum benefit, up to a maximum benefit of \$10,000.

Escalator benefit: Your VPAI benefits will automatically increase by 3% of your elected benefit amount each year up to a maximum of 15% for a maximum of five continuous years. This increased coverage is provided at no additional cost. If coverage ends for any reason, such as layoff, unpaid sick leave of absence, or termination of contributions, any previous escalator benefit is lost. A new five-year escalator benefit period starts if you decrease your coverage or re-enroll. If you increase your level of coverage, you will retain the escalator benefit that has accrued on the previous amount and will begin a new five-year escalator period for the additional amount of coverage.

This coverage applies only to accidents that occur on or after the January 1, 2001. It is subject to all of the provisions, limitations and exclusions of the Policy except as they are specifically modified by this coverage.

Rehabilitation benefit: If a covered person suffers an accidental loss for which benefits are payable under the Policy, we will reimburse the covered person for covered rehabilitative expenses that are due to the injury causing the loss. The covered rehabilitative expenses must be incurred within two years after the date of the accident causing the loss and will be payable up to a maximum of \$50,000 for all injuries caused by the same accident.

Hospital means a facility that: (1) is licensed and operated according to law for the care and treatment of injured people; (2) has organized facilities for diagnosis and surgery on its premises or in facilities available to it on a prearranged basis; (3) has 24 hour nursing service by registered Nurses (R.N).; and (4) is supervised by one or more Physicians. A hospital does not include: (1) a nursing, Convalescent or geriatric unit of a hospital when a patient is confined mainly to receive nursing care; (2) a facility that is, other than incidentally, a rest home, nursing home, Convalescent home or home for the aged; nor does it include any ward, room, wing, or other section of the hospital that is used for such purposes; or (3) any military or veterans hospital or soldiers home or any hospital contracted for or operated by any national government or government run agency for the treatment of members or ex-members of the armed forces.

Medically necessary rehabilitative training service: As used in this coverage, means any medical service, medical supply, medical treatment or hospital confinement (or part of a hospital confinement) that: (1) is essential for physical rehabilitative training due to the injury for which it is prescribed or performed; (2) meets generally accepted standards of medical practice; and (3) is ordered by a doctor.

Covered rehabilitative expense(s) means an expense that: (1) is charged for a Medically Necessary rehabilitative training service of the covered person performed under the care, supervision or order of a Physician (2) does not exceed the usual level of charges for similar treatment, supplies or services in the locality where the expense is incurred (for a hospital room and board charge, does

not exceed the most common charge for hospital semi-private room and board in the hospital where the expense is incurred); and (3) does not include charges that would not have been made if no insurance existed.

Exclusions: In addition to the exclusions in the general exclusion section of the Policy, covered rehabilitative expenses do not include any expenses for or resulting from any condition for which the covered person is entitled to benefits under (1) any Workers' Compensation Act or similar law; or (2) the accident medical expense Benefit coverage.

In addition to other VPAI exclusions, the coma benefit has one other exclusion. Benefits are not payable for a loss resulting from illness, disease, bodily infirmity, medical or surgical treatment, or bacterial or viral infection, regardless of how it was contracted. However, a bacterial infection that is the natural and foreseeable result of an accidental external bodily injury or accidental food poisoning is covered.

Seat belt benefit: If you or your covered dependent dies in an accident as the driver or passenger of any land vehicle (including Company-owned cars, pickups, and commercial vehicles) and the covered person was properly wearing a seat belt at the time of the accident, the coverage pays an additional 20% of the benefit applicable to you or your dependent, to a maximum of \$25,000. If the vehicle was not equipped with seat belts or the accident report shows seat belts were not in proper use, no seat belt benefit is payable.

Special education benefit: If either parent dies as the result of an accident and you, your spouse, and your children are all covered by the family VPAI, the coverage pays 5% of that parent's total coverage amount (up to \$10,000 per year) to each dependent child for higher education. This benefit is payable for up to four consecutive years, as long as the child is enrolled in school beyond 12th grade. If coverage is in force but there are no children who qualify at the time of the accident, the coverage pays an additional \$1,000 to the designated beneficiary.

Spouse critical period: If you or your covered spouse dies as a result of an accident, VPAI pays the surviving spouse an additional monthly benefit of 0.5% of the deceased person's coverage amount. This benefit, provided to help the surviving spouse cope with the difficult period immediately following a death, is paid monthly for 12 months.

Spouse retraining benefit: If you die accidentally and your spouse is also covered by the family VPAI, the coverage pays up to a maximum of \$10,000 for your spouse to enroll as a student in an accredited School within 365 days of your death. This benefit is in addition to all other benefits.

Waiver of premium: If you elect VPAI coverage for you and your dependents and you die as the result of an accident, any VPAI coverage you have elected for your spouse and children continues without charge for 24 months.

Travel Assistance Services:

If you elect VPAI coverage for yourself, you may also take advantage of travel assistance services when you and your covered family members travel internationally. This package of valuable services and benefits is called CIGNA Secure Travel and is provided by Generali Global Assistance.

Through CIGNA Secure Travel, you have access to more than 250,000 service professionals in over 200 countries. These agents are available 24 hours a day, seven days a week to provide you with the highest level of service whenever you need it.

CIGNA Secure Travel offers the following services for international travel:

- Services before your departure, including:
 - Immunization requirements
 - Visa and passport requirements
 - o Foreign exchange rates
 - o Embassy/consular referral
 - Travel/tourist advisories
 - Temperature and weather conditions
 - o Cultural information and special events
- Prescription assistance to refill a Prescription that has been lost, stolen, or depleted
- Assistance in replacing lost luggage, documents, and personal items
- Legal referrals to local attorneys, embassies, and consulates. The legal referral services are a benefit of VPAI coverage; however, you will need to pay for any professional services rendered.
- Medical referrals to local Physicians, dentists, and medical treatment centers in the event of
 an accident or illness (The legal referral services listed in the preceding bullet are a benefit of
 VPAI coverage; however, you will need to pay for any professional services rendered. You
 must also follow your Medical Benefit Option rules in order to receive reimbursement for any
 eligible expenses.)
- Emergency message relay to notify friends, relatives, or business associates if you have a serious accident or illness while traveling
- Emergency medical evacuation for transportation to the nearest adequate hospital or treatment facility if Medically Necessary
- Repatriation of remains in the event of death overseas to cover the cost of returning remains to the place of residence and arranging necessary government authorizations to transfer remains
- Emergency cash advance up to \$1,500
- Emergency Medical Payments up to \$10,000 for onsite medical expenses
- Return of dependent children (who are under age -18) traveling with a covered member and who are left unattended when the covered member is hospitalized (Generali Global Assistance will arrange and pay for their transportation home. If someone is needed to accompany the children, a qualified escort will be arranged and expenses paid. Children do not have to be covered under VPAI for this benefit.)

If a covered member is traveling alone and must be hospitalized for 7 or more consecutive days, arrangements will be made and paid to provide round-trip economy class transportation for an immediate family member or friend designated by the covered member from his/her home to the place where the covered member is hospitalized. (Generali Global Assistance will also arrange and pay for a maximum of \$150 per day for up to seven days for meals and accommodations for the family member or friend while they are visiting the hospitalized covered member.)

Take care of all your beneficiary designations in one efficient online process. Visit *My Beneficiaries* in the online Benefits Service Center on my.envoyair.com. Please keep in mind that wording is important when designating a beneficiary, and you can designate an unlimited number of beneficiaries. Once the online form is completed and submitted, it supersedes all previous designations. See "Beneficiaries" in the *Additional Life and Accident Insurance Rules* section for more information on designating beneficiaries.

Terrorism and Hostile Act AD&D Insurance for Pilots and Flight Attendants

The Terrorism and Hostile Act AD&D Insurance coverage covers both the Company and its Affiliates' pilots and flight attendants while on duty, and covers accidental death, dismemberment, and permanent total disability resulting from terrorism, sabotage, or other hostile actions anywhere in the world.

The maximum benefit of this insurance is \$200,000 per covered individual, and loss must occur within 365 days after the date of the covered accident.

Loss of Life	Full benefit amount
Loss of Two or More Hands and/or Feet	Full benefit amount
Loss of Sight of Both Eyes	Full benefit amount
Loss of Sight of One Eye	Full benefit amount
Loss of One Hand or Foot	1/2 benefit amount
Loss of Speech	1/2 benefit amount
Loss of Hearing in Both Ears	1/2 benefit amount

The aggregate maximum of all benefits paid under this insurance, per accident, is \$10,000,000.

In addition, this insurance provides a permanent and total disability (PTD) benefit of \$200,000 per covered individual effective January 1, 2009. If the covered individual becomes permanently and totally disabled from a covered accident; remains permanently and totally disabled for the duration of the waiting period (12 months after the date of the covered accident); and at the end of the waiting period, is certified by a Physician to be disabled for the remainder of his/her life; the insurance will

pay a lump sum benefit of \$200,000, less any other AD&D benefit paid under the Plan for the covered loss causing the disability.

Exclusions

The AD&D and VPAI Insurance policies do not cover loss caused by or resulting from any of the following unless coverage is specifically provided for by name in the Description of Benefits Section in the certificate of coverage:

- 1. Intentionally self-inflicted injury, suicide or any attempt thereat while sane or insane;
- 2. Commission of a felony;
- 3. Declared or undeclared war or act of war;
- 4. Sickness, disease, bodily or mental infirmity, bacterial or viral infection or medical or surgical treatment thereof, except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or wound or accidental ingestion of contaminated food;
- 5. A covered accident that occurs while engaged in the activities of active duty service in the military, navy or air force of any country or international organization. Covered accidents that occur while engaged in Reserve or National Guard training are not excluded until training extends beyond 31 days;
- 6. Travel or flight in an experimental aircraft or device;
- 7. Travel or flight serving as a student taking a flying lesson in any aircraft other than aircraft operated by the policyholder;
- 8. Voluntary ingestion of any narcotic, drug, poison, gas or fumes, unless prescribed or taken under the direction of a Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage.

Filing a Claim

VPAI and AD&D are provided under group insurance policies issued by the Life Insurance Company of North America (LINA). CIGNA processes all claims for LINA. The following is a short summary of the procedure for filing a claim for VPAI and AD&D benefits:

- Contact the Benefits Service Center at 844.843.6869 to report the Accident.
- Visit my.envoyair.com to locate a <u>CIGNA Claim Form</u>. Complete and submit the form according to accompanying directions within 30 days of the death or injury. All claims must be submitted on CIGNA forms. Proof of loss will be required in order to validate your claim. (In the event of your death, your supervisor will notify Survivor Support Services, who will coordinate filing for VPAI and AD&D benefits, similar to the procedures outlined for life insurance claims in Term Life Insurance).
- CIGNA processes claims within 90 days from the day they are received. In some cases, however, more time may be needed. If this is the case with your claim, CIGNA notifies you that an additional 90 days will be required. At any point during the claim review period, you may be asked to supply additional information and/or submit to a medical examination at LINA's expense.

- If your claim is approved the insurance proceeds will be deposited into a CIGNA Resource Manager Account (similar to a money market checking account) which earns interest.
- If your claim is denied, you or your beneficiary will be notified in writing. Notification explains the reasons for the denial and specifies the provisions of the LINA group policy that prevent approval of the claim. The notification may also describe what additional information, if any, could change the outcome of the decision.
- If your claim is denied or you have not received a response by the end of the second 90-day review period, you may request a review of your claim.
- No one may take legal action regarding the claim until 60 days after filing the claim. No legal action may be taken more than three years after filing the claim. You must exhaust your administrative appeals before filing any legal action regarding a claim denial.

For the complete claims procedures that apply, see the <u>Claims and Appeals</u> section.

Conversion Rights

You can convert up to \$250,000 in VPAI coverage for you and your spouse and up to \$10,000 in coverage for each eligible child to individual policies offered by Life Insurance Company of North America (LINA) within 31 days of termination of coverage if coverage terminates for one of the following reasons:

- Your employment ends
- Your eligibility ends (However, a dependent who is no longer eligible for coverage may not convert to an individual policy while you remain eligible for coverage.)
- The coverage ends.

Contact LINA at 800-238-2125 for details on conversion. Visit my.envoyair.com for a Cigna Accident Conversion Form.

Insurance Policy

The terms and conditions of this AD&D and VPAI coverages are set forth in the group insurance policies issued by Life Insurance Company of North America (LINA). These group policies are available for review from LINA. In the event of a conflict between the description in this Guide and the provisions of the insurance policies, the insurance policies will govern.

Other accident insurance, including Special Risk Accident Insurance and Special Purpose Accident Insurance, is provided under group insurance policies issued by LINA (see *Other Accident Insurance* below). CIGNA processes and pays all claims for LINA. To file a claim, you (or your supervisor for your beneficiary, in the event of your death) should contact CIGNA.

Other Accident Insurance

The Company and its Affiliates provide other accident insurance for certain situations described in this section. Other accident insurance programs include Management Personal Accident Insurance (MPAI), Special Risk Accident Insurance (SRAI) and Special Purpose Accident Insurance (SPAI).

Benefits from these programs are payable in addition to any benefits you may receive under the AD&D and VPAI plans. These insurance coverages all have the following features:

- Premiums are paid by the Company.
- Coverage is provided without regard to your health history.
- The insurance provides 24-hour protection while you are traveling on Company business, from the time you leave until you return home or to your base, whichever occurs first.
- Benefits are payable in addition to any other insurance you may have.
- Covered losses include death or loss of limb, sight, speech, or hearing. The insurance pays a benefit if you have a loss within one year of an Accidental Injury. For a description of injuries and how benefits are paid, see "Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance."
- As an eligible employee, you automatically receive AD&D benefits equal to 1× your annual salary to a maximum of \$100,000 from the Company, at no cost to you if you are enrolled in a company-sponsored medical option. In the event of an Accidental Injury, AD&D insurance pays benefits to:
- You in the case of certain accidental injuries to you; and
- Your named beneficiaries in the event of your death.

Coverage is available without regard to previous health history.

- The plan provides broad 24-hour protection, year round, including coverage during travel
- Benefits are payable in addition to any other insurance you may have.

AD&D benefits are paid solely by and through the insurance policies by the insurer. No accident benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance

As an eligible employee, you may elect to purchase VPAI for yourself and your family. In the event of an Accidental Injury, VPAI pays benefits to:

- You in the case of certain accidental injuries to you;
- You in the event of your covered dependent's death; and
- Your named beneficiary in the event of your death.

VPAI coverage also includes the following features:

- You pay premiums through convenient before-tax payroll deduction
- Coverage is available for you, your spouse and dependent children (if any). The amount of VPAI coverage for your covered spouse is \$10,000 up to \$350,000. Child AD&D provides \$10,000 coverage for each dependent child, regardless of the number of children covered.

• You may select coverage in \$10,000 increments up to \$500,000. If you elect family coverage, the amount of insurance for your family members is a percentage of the amount elected, and is based on the composition of your family at the time of loss, as shown in the table below:

Spouse Only	70% of the employee's elected benefit amount
Spouse and Children	Spouse: 60% of the employee's elected benefit amount Each child: 15% of the employee's elected benefit amount not to exceed \$75,000
Children Only	Each child: 25% of the employee's elected benefit amount not to exceed \$125,000

Coverage is available without regard to previous health history

- The plan provides broad 24-hour protection, year round, including coverage during travel
- Benefits are payable in addition to any other insurance you may have
- With VPAI coverage, you are also eligible for Travel Assistance Services

VPAI benefits are paid solely by and through the insurance policies by the insurer. No accident benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

 Covered Losses and Accident Benefits payable under these other accident coverages do not reduce any accident benefits you may receive under the AD&D and VPAI insurance coverages.

MPAI Benefits

MPAI provides coverage for management employees while traveling on Company business and for non-occupational accident including any land or water vehicle. Coverage is three times your salary up to a maximum of \$200,000.

SRAI Benefits

SRAI provides coverage for management, agent, support staff and Transportation Workers Union ("TWU") -represented employees for accidental death and dismemberment that occurs as a result of terrorism, sabotage or felonious assault while performing your duties anywhere in the world. SRAI pays a benefit of five times your annual base salary up to a maximum of \$500,000.

SRAI pays a benefit of five times your annual base salary up to a maximum of \$500,000. This coverage only applies to employees on active payroll. SRAI benefits are reduced by any benefits you receive under MPAI.

SPAI Benefits

This coverage applies to management, agent, support staff and TWU-represented employees. It pays up to \$100,000 to each employee who is injured in an accident while engaging in an organized search

because of a bomb threat or warning of the presence of an explosive device. Coverage does not apply to an aircraft that is airborne.

The plan also pays up to \$100,000 to non-flight employees injured in an accident while riding on Company business as passengers, mechanics, observers or substitute flight attendants in any previously tried, tested and approved aircraft operated by a properly certified pilot.

Policy Aggregates

An accident may involve more than one employee. Total benefits to all covered employees involved in a single incident are limited to:

- \$5,000,000 per aircraft under MPAI
- \$10,000,000 per accident under SRAI
- \$2,000,000 per aircraft accident under SPAI.

If benefits for one incident would exceed the limit, benefits are distributed to beneficiaries in proportion to the amounts of insurance covering all employees who suffer losses in the same incident.

Exclusions

These accident insurance policies do not cover losses caused by or resulting from any of the following:

- Suicide, attempted suicide, or intentional self-inflicted injuries.
- Declared or undeclared act of war (Under SRAI, hostile acts of foreign governments are not covered within the U.S.).
- An accident that occurs while you are serving on full-time, active duty in the armed forces of any country or international authority.
- Illness, disease, pregnancy, childbirth, miscarriage, bodily infirmity, or any bacterial infection other than bacterial infection caused by an accidental cut or wound.
- Travel or flight in any vehicle or device for aerial navigation, including boarding or alighting, while:
 - The vehicle is used for test or Experimental purposes
 - You are operating, learning to operate, or serving as a member of the crew except while riding solely as a passenger, mechanic, substitute flight attendant, or acting as a crewmember on any aircraft owned by or under contract to the Company and its Affiliates
 - Being operated under the direction of any military authority other than transport-type aircraft operated by the Military Airlift (MAC) of the United States of America or a similar air transport service of any other country
- Commuting to and from work (SRAI Plan).
- While a driver/occupant of any conveyance engaged in race/speed test (MPAI Plan).

Insurance Policy

The terms and conditions of the Other Accident Insurance coverages are set forth in the group insurance policies issued by the Life Insurance Company of North America (LINA). The group policies are available for review from the Plan Administrator.

In the event of a conflict between the description in this Guide and the provisions of the insurance policies, the insurance policies will govern.

Additional Life and Accident Insurance Rules

This section includes rules that apply to the life and accident insurance.

Beneficiaries

In the event of your death, Life Insurance coverage benefits are paid to the named beneficiaries on file with **the Benefits Service Center**.

Unless prohibited by law, your life insurance benefits are distributed as indicated on your Beneficiary Designation Form on file with **the Benefits Service Center**. For this reason, you should consider updating your beneficiary designation periodically, especially if you get married, or you or your spouse give birth or adopt a child, or if you get divorced. Beneficiary Designation can be completed online in the Benefits Service Center.

The table below provides sample wording for the most common beneficiary designations:

One Person, Related	Jane Doe, spouse	
One Person, Not Related	Jane Doe, friend	
Your Estate	Estate	
Member of a Given Religious Order	Mary L. Jones, known in religious life as Sister Mary Agnes, niece	
Two Beneficiaries with the Right of Survivorship	John J. Jones, father, and Mary R. Jones, mother, equally or to the survivor	
Three or More Beneficiaries with the Right of Survivorship	James O. Jones, brother, Peter I. Jones, brother, Martha N. Jones, sister, equally or to the survivor(s)	
Unnamed Children	My children living at my death	
One Contingent Beneficiary	Lois P. Jones, wife, if living; otherwise, Herbert I. Jones, son	
Unnamed Children as Contingent Beneficiaries	Lois P. Jones, wife, if living; otherwise, my children living at my death	
Trustee (A trust agreement must be in existence)	ABC Trust Company of Newark, NJ, Michael W. Jones, Trustee, in one sum, under Trust Agreement dated (insert date)	

^{*} Always include your beneficiary's address

If none of the suggested designations meets your needs, contact an attorney for assistance.

When a beneficiary is a minor (under the legal age defined by the beneficiary's state of residence), a guardian must be appointed in order for the life insurance benefits to be paid. The Hartford requires a

certified court document appointing the guardian of the minor's estate or property. If the beneficiary does not have a guardian, the life insurance benefits will be retained by The Hartford and interest will be compounded daily until the minor child reaches the legal age.

To avoid complications in paying beneficiaries, an organization or endowment should not be named unless it is a legal entity (has a legal existence, such as a corporation or trust that has been legally established). If you designate a trust, The Hartford assumes that the designated trustee is acting in proper fiduciary capacity unless written notice to the contrary is received at the home office of The Hartford. The Hartford and the Company are not liable for any payment made to a trustee before receiving such written notice. If the full amount of your insurance is not payable to the trustee or if a testamentary trustee is named, write to The Harford for assistance in proper documentation.

If your beneficiary is not living at the time of your death, the benefits under your coverage are paid to the first class of surviving family members in the order outlined below:

- Spouse
- Children or stepchildren
- Parents
- Brothers and sisters
- Estate

For dependent coverage, you are the sole beneficiary. If a covered dependent dies at the same time or within 24 hours of your death, benefits are divided equally among members of the first class of beneficiaries in which there is a relative of the covered dependent. The classes of beneficiaries are listed above in the order they would be considered.

If your beneficiary does not survive you (for example, you are both killed in a common disaster) benefits are paid to your estate according to the terms of the Policy.

Take care of all your beneficiary designations in one efficient process available online at **the Benefits Service Center** on my.envoyair.com. Please keep in mind that wording is important when designating your beneficiary, and you can designate an unlimited number of beneficiaries. Once the online form is completed and submitted, it supersedes all previous designations. If your marriage ends, you should immediately complete new beneficiary designations.

Accident Insurance Beneficiaries

You are the beneficiary for all covered losses resulting from Accidental Injury. You should designate a beneficiary to receive benefits in the event of your accidental death. If you do not designate a beneficiary, your beneficiary is the same as your Term Life Insurance beneficiary. If your beneficiary is not living at the time of your death, benefits are paid according to the terms of the insurance policy.

Taxation of Life Insurance

If your total coverage is more than \$50,000, you may owe taxes on the value of your coverage over \$50,000. This value is called imputed income. IRS regulations require the Company to report employee federal wages and deduct Social Security taxes (FICA) on imputed income from your paycheck and report it on your Form W-2 each year (see example).

Under IRS regulations, imputed income is based on your age and the monthly cost per \$1,000 of life insurance over \$50,000. To determine your monthly amount of imputed income, multiply the rate in the following IRS table by the amount of your insurance coverage over \$50,000.

Under 25	\$.05
25-29	.06
30-34	.08
35-39	.09
40-44	.10
45-49	.15
50-54	.23
55-59	.43
60-64	.66
65-69	1.27
70 and over	2.06

An example of how imputed income works:

Assume a 30-year-old employee earning \$3,000 per month selects three times salary of Voluntary Term Life Insurance coverage. The following calculations show the employee's taxable imputed income:

1. Figure the amount of Term Life Insurance coverage:

$$36,000 \text{ salary} \times 3 = 108,000$$

2. Figure the taxable amount of coverage (amount over \$50,000):

$$108,000 - 50,000 = 58,000$$

3. Divide that amount by \$1,000:

$$$58,000 / $1,000 = 58$$

4. Multiply the result by the IRS rate from the table above for an employee who is age 30:

$$58 \times \$0.08 = \$4.64$$

The monthly imputed income shown on this employee's paycheck will be \$4.64. This is the amount that is subject to federal income and Social Security taxes. Spouse and Child Term Life Insurance are purchased after-taxes. Therefore, it is not subject to taxation as imputed income.

Portability and Conversion

Portability

Voluntary Term Life Insurance has a portability feature which means you may continue your life insurance coverage if you leave the Company or an Affiliate or retire. The rates for this continuing coverage are not the same as those you pay as an active employee, but they are preferred group rates based on your age. The Hartford will provide the rate schedule if you apply for portability. The minimum amount of coverage you may continue is \$20,000 and the maximum amount is your current voluntary amount of life insurance coverage. Spouse, Child and Basic Life Insurance may not be continued under the portability feature. (However, Spouse, Child and Basic Life Insurance may be converted to an individual policy.) To apply for this continuing coverage, you must submit an application form to The Hartford within 31 days after you leave or retire from the Company.

Contact **the Benefits Service Center** to request a portability application or call The Hartford toll free at 1-866-216-0370 to discuss provisions relating to portability plans.

Conversion

Subject to policy provisions, you can convert all or any part of your Basic and/or Voluntary Term Life Insurance coverage to a personal policy (other than term life insurance) offered by The Hartford without providing Proof of Good Health, if coverage terminates for one of the following reasons:

- Your employment ends or you are no longer in a class that is eligible for Term Life Insurance coverage
- The coverage ends, and you have been covered under this insurance for at least five years
- Coverage for your particular job classification ends, and you have been covered under this insurance for at least five years

If you are applying for a personal policy because your employment terminated, the amount of the Policy may not be more than the amount of your Term Life Insurance on the day your coverage ended

If you are applying for a personal policy because this Plan ended or changed, and you have been covered for at least five years, the amount of your policy will not be more than the lesser of the following:

- The amount of your coverage on the day it ended, less any amount of life insurance you may be eligible for under any group policy that takes effect within 31 days of the termination of this coverage
- \$10,000.

You or your spouse or child can convert all or any part of the Spouse or Child Term Life Insurance coverage to a personal policy (other than term life insurance) offered by The Hartford if coverage terminates for one of the following reasons:

- Your employment ends or you are no longer in a class that is eligible for Spouse or Child Term Life Insurance coverage
- The coverage ends and your spouse or child has been covered under this insurance for at least five years

- Coverage for your particular job classification ends and your spouse or child has been covered under this insurance for at least five years
- You die
- Your spouse or child no longer qualifies as a dependent.

To convert to a personal policy, you must call The Hartford toll free at 1-866-216-0370 to begin the conversion process.

If you or your dependent should die during the 31-day period, whether or not you have applied for the conversion policy or portability, The Hartford will pay the appropriate beneficiary a death benefit equal to the amount of life insurance you had on the date coverage terminated.

Verbal Representations

Nothing you say or that you are told regarding this insurance is binding on anyone unless you or your beneficiary have something in writing from the Company and The Hartford confirming your coverage.

Assignment of Benefits

You may irrevocably assign the value of your life insurance coverage. This permanently transfers all right, title, interest, and incidents of ownership, both present and future, in the benefits under this insurance coverage. Anyone considering assignment of life insurance coverage should consult a legal or tax advisor before taking such action.

If you assign your benefits, you are obligated to fulfill any conditions you have agreed to with your assignee. The Hartford's only obligation is to pay the life insurance benefits due at your death.

Your beneficiary may assign a portion of his or her benefit directly to the funeral home to cover the cost of the funeral. To assign benefits to a funeral home, the beneficiary signs an agreement with the funeral home. The funeral home sends a copy of the signed agreement and an itemized statement of funeral expenses to The Hartford. When The Hartford processes the claim, a separate check for this portion of the benefit will be paid directly to the funeral home.

Total Control Account

When a claim is processed, The Hartford establishes a Total Control Account for each beneficiary whose share is \$5,000 or more. (Smaller amounts are paid in a lump sum.) All insurance proceeds are deposited into this interest-bearing checking account that pays competitive money market interest rates and is guaranteed by The Hartford.

The Hartford sends a personalized checkbook to your beneficiary, who may withdraw some or all of the proceeds and interest whenever necessary. In addition, The Hartford sends descriptions of alternative investment options to your beneficiary. The Total Control Account gives your beneficiary complete control over the money, while eliminating the need to make immediate financial decisions at a difficult time.

For income tax purposes, proceeds deposited into the Total Control Account are treated the same as a lump-sum settlement. Because the tax consequences of life insurance proceeds may vary, the Company strongly recommends that you or your beneficiary contact your tax advisor.

The Hartford will only pay interest on a life insurance claim (to cover the time between death and date of payment) if the beneficiary lives in a state that requires interest payments. Because state insurance laws vary, calculation of interest differs from state to state.

Disability Benefits

The following summary helps you understand the benefits you may be eligible to receive in the event of an illness or disability. Both Optional Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability Insurance are not taxable income because you pay for this coverage with after-tax contributions.

Optional Short Term Disability Insurance

You pay the cost of your OSTD insurance on an after-tax basis. The insurance is paid by employee contributions and administered by The Hartford. No OSTD benefits are available outside of the insurance policy.

How the OSTD Insurance Works

Optional Short Term Disability Insurance (OSTD) protects you in the event you are not able to work due to a non-occupational illness or injury. If you have a qualifying disability, the OSTD benefit covers the difference between any third-party short term disability benefit and the lesser of 50% of your pre-disability earnings on your last day worked, or the weekly amount of \$1,923.

For regular, full-time employees, "pre-disability earnings" is defined as your regular weekly rate of pay including market rate differentials and skill and license premiums but not counting bonuses, commissions and tips and tokens, overtime pay or any other fringe benefits or extra compensation, in effect on the last day you were actively at work before you became disabled. For part-time employees, "pre-disability earnings" is defined as your regular weekly rate of pay including skill and license premiums but not counting bonuses, commissions and tips and tokens, overtime pay or any other fringe benefits or extra compensation, in effect on the last day you were Actively at Work before you became disabled. For pilots, "pre-disability earnings" is defined as your regular weekly rate of pay including skill and license premiums but not counting bonuses, commissions and tips and tokens, overtime pay or any other fringe benefits or extra compensation, for the 78 hour calculation period prior to the last day you were actively at work before you became disabled.

The cost of OSTD insurance is collected through payroll deductions. If you enroll, your selection remains in effect for two (2) calendar years. If you choose not to enroll when you are first eligible and decide to enroll later, Proof of Good Health is required. You may add coverage if you experience a qualifying Life Event. Your OSTD insurance will not become effective until you meet the eligibility criteria described below and a payroll deduction has been taken.

If you are unable to work your normal work schedule for any reason, you must address your work status with your supervisor. This is true regardless of whether you receive OSTD pay.

Eligibility

In order to be eligible to receive OSTD benefits, you must be "Actively at Work" on the date your insurance would become effective. "Actively at Work" or "Active Work" means that you are at work at Envoy on a day that is one of Envoy's scheduled workdays. On that day you must be performing for wage or profit all of the regular duties of your occupation in the usual way and for your usual number of hours. The Harford will consider you actively at work on a day that is not a scheduled work day only if you were actively at work on the preceding scheduled day.

Definition of Total Disability